COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
EIGHTY-FOURTH BOARD MEETING
To be held 5.30 pm, Monday 28 September 2015
Room 1, First Floor Rowan House
Sheepen Road, Colchester
AGENDA – Part A
(Open to the public)
1.

Apologies & quorum

2.

Declarations of Interest by Board Members and Officers
Members and officers to declare any interests not in the Register

3.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Page 1)
To approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2015,
and to deal with any matters arising

4.

Voice Your View

ITEMS FOR DECISION
5.

Strategic Risk Register (Page 7)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

6

Adoption of Audited Accounts (Page 13)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

7.

Value for Money – Strategy (Page 63)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

8.

Approval of Company Annual Report (Video presentation)
Greg Falvey, Chief Executive

9.

Information and Confidentiality Policy (Page 109)
Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
10.

CBH Foundation (Page 125)
Gerardine Murphy, Service Development Manager

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
11.

Annual Human Resources Report (Page 137)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

12.

Strategic Health & Safety Policy (Page 143)
Mark Wright, Director of Property Services

13.

Homelessness Strategy Progress Report (Page 161)
Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer, CBC
Continued…/

14.

Gateway to Homechoice – Annual report & future development
(Page 209)
Claire Beckett, Gateway to Homechoice coordinator

15.

Annual Report from Finance & Audit Committee (Page 241)
Nigel Chapman, Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee

16.

Annual Equality & Diversity Report (Page 247)
Claire Holland, Equality & Diversity Officer

STANDING ITEMS
17.

Finance Assurance Report (Page 267)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

18.

Performance Assurance Report (Page 271)
Karen Loweman, Director of Housing

19.

Committee Minutes (Page 283)
Board members are invited to raise questions and comments on the following
items:
Operations
Governance & Remuneration
Finance and Audit

30 June 2015 & 2 September 2015
9 July 2015 & 1 September 2015
30 July 2015

20.

Forward Look (Page 307)
An update of future decisions required and items to be discussed at future
Board meetings.

21.

Any Other Business

Exclusion of the Public

Meeting Dates for 2015
Tuesday 27 October (inc AGM)
Wednesday 9 December
All meetings start at 5.30pm and take place in Room 1, Rowan House except for the
meeting on Tuesday 27 October at St John Payne Church Hall, 21 Blackthorn
Avenue, Colchester CO4 3QD.

Colchester Borough Homes Ltd
Company Number 4843624
A Company Limited by Guarantee
Registered in England
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Minutes of the Eighty-Third Board Meeting
Held on 17 June 2015 at 5.30 pm
In Room 1, Rowan House
Sheepen Road, Colchester CO3 3WG
Present:
Anne Grahamslaw
Nigel Chapman
Alan Blois
Michala Carey
Geoff Foster
Tina Graves
Glenn Houchell
Gerard Oxford
Julie Parker
Dionne Philp

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)
(Vice Chair)

In Attendance:
Greg Falvey
Michael Hadjimichael
Karen Loweman
Mark Wright
Bob Barnes
Mell Robinson

Item 7
Item 9

Berkeley Young

(Minutes)

Observing:
Lynn Thomas
Ann Carey
Jan Sexton
James Watson

(CBC)
(TLCC)
(TLCC)
(TLCC)

1.

Apologies and Quorum

1.1

Apologies had been received from Julia Havis and Mike Lilley. Anne confirmed
that the meeting was quorate.

1.2

Anne welcomed guests and members of the TLCC to the meeting, and noted
that Jan Sexton would be presenting the group’s comments on three agenda
items. Anne also welcomed Michael Hadjimichael, the new Director of
Resources, and noted that Lynn Thomas was attending in place of Gareth
Mitchell.

2.

Welcome to new Council-appointed Board Members

2.1

Anne welcomed the new Council-appointed Board members, Gerard Oxford
and Julia Havis. Julia was not able to attend the meeting as she was chairing a
meeting of the CBC Trading Board at the same time.

2.2

Anne paid tribute to the contribution of the departed Board Members, Ray
Gamble and Nigel Offen.

2.3

The Board approved the proposed allocation of members to committees.

3.

Declarations of interest by Board Members and officers

3.1

There were no new declarations of interest.

3.2

Geoff Foster and Alan Blois had attended the Pets Policy task and finish group.
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4.

Minutes of the meeting held 24 February 2015

4.1

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record and
signed by the Chair.

4.2

The actions had all been completed.

5.

Voice Your View

5.1

No one had requested to voice their view.

6.

Whistleblowing Policy

6.1

Michael Hadjimichael introduced the policy. In clause 6.1, ‘Standards
Committee’ would be changed to ‘Finance & Audit Committee’ before
publication. Action: Berkeley Young to amend.

6.2

The Board unanimously approved the Whistleblowing Policy.

7.

Annual Risk, Quality & Environmental Report

7.1

Jan Sexton presented the comments of the TLCC, who welcomed the news
that accidents and incidents had reduced from the previous year and queried
progress with Legionella testing.

7.2

Mark Wright responded to the TLCC’s query about Legionella testing. CBH was
not required to carry out the tests on expansion tanks in three-storey blocks but
did so as a matter of best practice. A chemical ‘pill’ had been dropped into each
tank ahead of a removal programme within the next 12 months.

7.3

Anne welcomed Bob Barnes, recently retired from CBH, to present the report.
Anne congratulated Bob on his work to secure the ISO 18001 certification for
the Company. Bob thanked Anne, the Board’s Health & Safety Champion, for
her assistance during the process. The ISO audit had raised a concern about
document control, which CBH needed to improve.

7.4

The Enoch House sprinkler system will go ahead subject to a successful
outcome from the bid to the Fire Service for 50% funding. The fire suppression
system would cover the whole scheme. Individual rooms would have heat
sensors to minimise the risk of setting off the system by accident.

7.5

The new Construction Design Management (CDM) regulations were
challenging; three repairs operatives had taken on the role of environmental
champions and were inspecting one job in every ten completed.

7.6

Bob had designed a health & safety and fire safety inspection checklist for the
two- and three-storey blocks. Community Caretakers had a rolling two-year
programme to inspect all the stairwells, of which there were approximately 475.
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7.7

While gas incidents were at a low level, the number of false alarms had
increased. Bob explained that all properties had a CO2 alarm fitted and people
rang to report whenever these were triggered. Where these were not false
alarms, the leaks were generally due to wear and tear or tenant error.

7.8

The Enoch House refurbishment project would be inspected weekly by the
Health & Safety Co-ordinator or the Clerks of Work. CBH was looking to
employ a CDM Co-ordinator to take over this responsibility.

7.9

The intranet had gone live earlier in the week and Board Members would be
given access in due course.

8.

ICT Provision – priorities and relationship

8.1

Michael Hadjimichael introduced the report.

8.2

It was noted that the Colbea report on new business opportunities had raised
concerns about the capacity of the current ICT provision for new ventures.
Greg Falvey commented that the Local Authority had commercial interests and
would be developing their ICT systems accordingly, but the nature of any new
business may require an independent ICT solution. Anne noted that any trading
subsidiary would require autonomous ICT systems.

9.

Resident Involvement Strategy – Year Two Action Plan

9.1

Jan Sexton presented the TLCC’s three highlights from the review of the action
plan:
(a) The TLCC completed their first independent scrutiny review project on the
Decent Homes Plus standard. Five of the six recommendations made as a
result of the review were accepted and implemented.
(b) TLCC members have linked with more housing partners to share training
and learning/networking.
(c) The new way of delivering Equality and Diversity tenant training, which
resulted in the creation of a ‘myth-busting’ video created by the delegates
that will be uploaded to YouTube.

9.2

MR took members through the report, noting that the TLCC was responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the action plan.

9.3

Members discussed the approach to measuring Social Return On Investment
(SROI). MR reported that a simple approach had been taken to measure the
cost of three tenant groups, and the output of the groups would be assessed for
impact. Mell was researching best practice and the action would be
implemented in October-March 2015/16.

10.

Finance Assurance Report

10.1

Michael Hadjimichael introduced the report.
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10.2

The ‘New Business Income’ table (para 6.1) showed income after costs and
contributions to overheads had been taken into account. Income generated
would fund business opportunities, and consideration would be given to moving
commercial activity to any trading subsidiary as appropriate.

10.3

The scored Strategic Risk Register was presented to the board for comment.
The format could be amended if members agreed it was unclear. It was noted
that risk descriptions should be worded to reflect the fact that the register was a
public document. Action: Michael Hadjimichael to review the wording and
amend as necessary.

11.

Performance Assurance Report

11.1

Karen Loweman took members through the report, explaining the context of the
red indicators at year-end.

11.2

Households in temporary accommodation – people were only placed in
property outside of the Borough in an emergency and the target for 2015/16
was to use no accommodation outside of the borough.

11.3

Tenancy audits – progress with tenancy audits was reported to the Operations
Committee. The two auditors had reported in person and would return to the
Committee in due course to provide an update.

11.4

Average call waiting time – Karen reported that there had been no complaints
from customers about the service and that the average call waiting time for May
2015 had reduced to 19 seconds. The Customer Service Team analysed call
volumes and planned staff coverage accordingly.

11.5

% underoccupied council homes – Karen explained that the percentage of
underoccupied homes included those not affected by welfare reform due to
occupants being of pensionable age or not claiming benefits.

12.

Committee Minutes
Operations Committee (14 May 2015)

12.1

Alan Blois reported that the Committee had received assurance from the
Customer Service Team about the call centre performance.

12.2

Karen Loweman confirmed that comments on the Complaints Policy had been
received from Committee Members ahead of the next meeting, and that a
suitable member of staff would be present to respond to these.

13.

Forward Look

13.1

The TLCC scrutiny report on pre-termination workshops would be available to
present at the September Board meeting. Action: Berkeley Young to add to
Forward Look.
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14.

Any Other Business
Information Pack

14.1

The TLCC made the following comments on the Chief Executive’s report, which
they had considered at their meeting:
(a) The TLCC welcomed CBH’s support of the Gas Access Campaign due to
the potential dangers to council tenants and leaseholders of uninspected
gas appliances in neighbouring Housing Association properties.
(b) TLCC members gave Greg Falvey a number of ideas for the Board to
consider as part of their ‘vision and mission statement’ discussion at the
Board Away Day.
(c) The TLCC were keen to play a part later in the Future Proofing project and
were very supportive of the CBH Academy, which aimed to bring together
under one umbrella all CBH's resident-focused training activity.

The meeting closed at 6.45 pm.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

5

SUBJECT:

Strategic Risk Register

REPORT BY:

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
 01206 507815
 michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR DECISION
1.

Purpose

1.1

To review the Strategic Risk Register and progress on mitigating actions.

1.2

To review the two new risks identified as a result of the Chancellor’s budget
on 8 July 2015.

2.

Background & Content

2.1

The Board approved a new Risk Management Strategy at its meeting on 29
April. Under this strategy the Finance and Audit Committee (F&A) has a remit
to scrutinise the Risk Register and to report to the Board on high-level and
difficult-to-manage risks. This will be a standing item on the agenda for all
future meetings.

2.2

The Strategic Risk Register attached was presented to Finance and Audit
Committee on 30 July 2015.

2.3

The format of the reporting has been reviewed following the appointment of
the new Director of Resources, and updated with the approval of the F&A
Committee.

2.4

New Risks
Following the Chancellor’s budget on 8 July 2015, two new risks have been
added to the Risk Register:
• The impact of Welfare Reform adversely affecting the ability to collect
rents from tenants
• The impact of the budget announcement on the financial viability of the
organisation
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2.5

Progress on Further Actions:
Five actions to further mitigate the strategic risks identified have now been
completed (highlighted in green on Appendix 1). This has resulted in the
current score of 2 risks: Relationship with CBC not being effective and
Inability to attract and retain staff - being reduced from 8 to 6 in both cases.
Completed actions on other identified risks are not sufficient on their own to
warrant a reduction in the current score of associated risks.

2.6

All risks have been given a ‘direction of travel’ to indicate movement in the risk
scoring since the last Board Meeting.

3.

Financial Implications

3.1

The budget announcement is likely to have an adverse impact on the future
management fee of the organisation. Robust cost control and financial
management is required to ensure that service delivery is not compromised.
Discussions with the Council on next year’s management fee commenced in
August 2015 as part of the 2016/17 Budget Setting Process.

4.

Value for Money Implications

4.1

Strong financial control will identify and drive efficiencies, enabling resources
(both financial and people) to service provisions that may require it.

5.

HR Implications

5.1

At this stage, this is unknown. A possible change in management fee and
additional requirements on Welfare reform may result in resources being redeployed to meet requirements.

6.

Residents at the Heart Implications

6.1

There is likely to be an adverse effect on residents, with a reduction of the
benefit cap to £20,000 and a review of rent on homes with income greater
than £30,000.

7.

Legal, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications

7.1

None.

8.

Risk Management

8.1

If the Company does not have a robust Risk Management Strategy and Action
Plan, then its progress to achieving its key goals will be impaired or
unachievable.

9.

Appendix

9.1




Appendix 1 – Strategic Risk Register
Appendix 2 – Risk Heat Map
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05a. Strategic Risk Report Att 1 & 2

Item 5. Appendix 1.

CBH Risk Register - 2015/16
Risk
No

1

2

Risk Name
Reliance on CBC's
Contractual
Relationship with
CAPITA to Deliver
CBH's IT
Requirements leads to computer
failure to meet
business needs

New Trading
Opportunities
Detract from Core
Business

Possible Consequences

Service delivery impeded, restricted
or compromised by IT systems
breaking down or not meeting new
business requirements, resulting in
poor service and additional cost

Risk Type

Technological /
Economic and
Financial /
Reputational

Unmitigated
Score

15

Assurances

New relationship manager arrangement in place from
late 2014 with CBC. Agreed list of prioritised works now
in place and programme considered at Principal Liaison
meetings

Current Score

15

Risk Owner

Director of Resources

Further Actions

Status

1) Fundamental review of the CAPITA relationship with CBH (through CBC) with a
view to getting closer to the provider and reducing bureaucracy. (Rethink the whole
approach).
2) SMARTen up user specifications from CBH to CBC and improve process of
implementation controls.
3) Improve ability to get reports and especially ad-hoc reports
4) Resolve the licensing issue relating to adding new properties to the system.

Reduced Performance - Increase in Reputational/
complaints and loss of reputation
Professional

12

Ring fence new business wherever possible.
Trading protocol created. Business Opportunities Panel
in place.
Financial Risk Management for new
business agreed.

9

3

4

Breach of Data
Security

ICO-imposed monetary penalty
notice of up to £500k and/or
Economic/
negative reputational impact through Reputational
media exposure.

12

12

Trading Protocol in place.
Panel in Place

Business Opportunities

Newly appointed Board Assurance Officer will complete
BCS certificate in Data Protection. Information &
Confidentiality Policy approved by Committee in July
2015. Good practice guidelines agreed and disseminated
to staff through team meetings.

8

9

Initial conversations held with CBC/new DOR.
Plan to address identified issues to be drafted
in Q3 2015

6

The trading subsidiary has been rejected by
CBC for the time being. Trading activities to be
increased within CBH. Appropriate accounting
controls and transparency of activity are
already in place.

5

The trading subsidiary has been rejected by
CBC for the time being. Trading activities to be
increased within CBH. Appropriate accounting
controls and transparency of activity are
already in place.

4

The Appointment of a full time Board
Assurance Officer will enable the delivery of
the agreed actions.

4

Increasing Confidence has been identified as a
key component of the 'future proofing' project
as presented at the July 2015 Board Away Day.
The draft VFM strategy was reviewed by CBC,
with a summarized version to be submitted to
Board in September 2015 (in line with CBC
comments).

4

The findings of the HAY evaluation was
reported to G&R Cmte in Jul'15. A market
supplements policy was approved by G&R
Cmte in Sept'15 to attract and retain
appropriate staff. A Salary Sacrifice proposal
is currently being considered and will be
presented to G&R Cmte in Nov'15.

9

Pending detail of implementation of Welfare
Benefit changes. Profiling of tenant
information will provide estimate of impact.
Rent income recovery is key priority for
Housing Officers, the Income policy has
recently been reviewed to ensure early
intervention and robust monitoring. KL 20/6/15

10

HRA Project Group set up with key CBC/CBH
staff. See Budget Implications paper on
Confidential Agenda

Mar-15
Oct-15

1) Properly resourced initiatives.
2) Carry out a core business risk assessment before agreeing new projects.

Ongoing
Ongoing

Chief Executive/Director of 3) Separate functions as far as possible through the subsidiary (look at why we
Resources
should trade paper)

Ongoing
Ongoing
Ongoing

3) Clarify the reward for Company and agree with Council.
Chief Executive/ Director
4) Review whether there should be a reward/recognition for employees - individually
of Resources
or as a whole.

Director of Resources

Ongoing

Ongoing

4) Assessment for each project
5) Accounting Controls
1) Establish a trading subsidiary - produce a plan of action.

9

COLBEA
work
completed
14/4/15
TBC
Dec-15

5) Produce a business plan from the outcome of this for the subsidiary, including
identifying a need and quantifying income requirements short/medium and long term,
developing an appropriate business plan with sensitivities.

Complete

6) Accounting controls in place to mitigate risk.
1) Raise profile through emails highlighting ICO judgements.
2) E-learning module completed by all staff.

Ongoing
Complete

3) Publish document retention schedule.

Dec-15

4) Introduce secure printing.

Dec-15

5) Audit or advisory visit from ICO.

Dec-15

1) No surprises, no blame culture:- Celebrate what is good - SMT members in
different groups to identify joint targets. One organisation - where there is a joint
accountability across teams and resolve

On-Going

2) Review complaints and enquiries.

5

Relationship with
CBC not
maintained or
effective

Detract focus of Board and senior
management leading to the
damaging of service delivery and
new initiatives, ultimately closure of
ALMO.

Reputational

12

Maintaining the regular liaison meetings at all levels.
Chief Executive keeping a watching brief that these are
maintained and effective.

• Members - ensure SMART response and introduce feedback system at least
quarterly.
6

Chief Executive

• Speak with one voice for CBH.
complaints, learn lessons & put right.

• Process & analyse

On-Going

• Review where role sits within organisation and who reports to - identify as a
function and not person.
3) Celebrate accreditation from Housemark.
4) Publish Value for Money Strategy.

Complete
Sep-15

(1) Pay Levels;
a)
Review the Hay evaluation scheme to verify its use and consistency within CBH,
b) Identify our comparator levels of DMT and SMT using Hay benchmarking,
c) Introduce Market Supplements Policy,
d) Establish process of ongoing market review

6

Inability to Attract
and Retain
Appropriate Staff

Damage to services, performance
and reputation.

Professional /
Economic and
Financial

8

Good working environment and reasonable working
conditions, pension, holidays, flexitime

6

Director of Resources

Sep-15

(2) Benefits Package;
a)
Identify full benefits package and consider introducing a Total Reward Statement,
b) Enhance Salary Sacrifice provision

Dec-15

3) Recruitment Process;
a) Ensure that the best use of advertising mechanisms are being used,
b) Ensure that the full benefit package is being advertised and/or explained when a
job offer is made,

Dec-15

4) Sucession Planning/Talent Management;
Introduce a Talent Management programme

Comments

Ongoing

5) Look at alternatives to CAPITA for new business.

2) Use COLBEA or other organisation to do some work to:-carry out a critique of our
strategic approach, identify opportunities and gaps etc., identify what are our
products, the market, pricing etc.
Inability to Raise
Reduction in Council's confidence in Reputational/
Sufficient Income
CBH through failing to meet key
Economic and
through new
expectation
Financial
business initiatives

Target Score

a)

Feb-16

Review impact of further cap on benefits to £20,000 per household
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8

Impact of Welfare
Reform adversely
affecting the ability
to collect rents
from tenants

Increasing financial pressure on
tenants leading to possibility of
increasing rent arrears, possible
transfers and increase in
homelessness, increase in court
actions

Management Fee reduced or cut
Impact of budget
and not being able to maintain
announcement on
contracted level of services. CBH
financial viability of
service delivery adversely affected
organisation
due to financial constraints

Economic/
Reputational

Economic/
Reputational

15

15

Increased resources to support tenants to maintain
payment and claim Discretionary Housing payments;
Close work with CBC Housing Benefits. Revision to
financial inclusion strategy. Creation of digital inclusion
strategy. Worklessness strategy. Increased payment
methods available. Increased financial support and
assistance. Increased opportunity for DD. Staff trained.
Reduced impact - only 364 tenants (6%) affected by
Spare Bedroom Subsidy and only 5 tenants affected by
benefit cap.

Established regular liaison between CE and CBC Head
of Service. Established regular formal meetings CE CBH
and CE CBC. Established regular CBC/CBH Delivery
Plan meetings. Annual management fee budget setting
process. Annually agreed Delivery Plan. Regular liaison
with Portfolio Holder.

12

Director of Housing

Review impact on tenants/rents for homes with income greater than £30,000
Review approach/methodology for collated information and monitoring and consider
resourcing requirements where necessary
Develop partnership with the DWP to make most effective use of resources
Welfare Reform Strategic Action Group set up with key partners within CBC and
CBH
Support CBH Foundation development to provide training, advice and support for
residents into employment
Review implications of the budget and assess possible impact on Management Fee
(both in Short and Medium Term)

12

Director of Resources

Engage CBC for early discussions as to possible consequences for 2016/17
management fee
Report to Board on possible issues and considerations for the 2016/17 Budget

Apr-16
Apr-16
Dec-15
Jun-15
On-Going
Sep-15

Complete

Complete
Sep-15

10

Likelihood

Relationship with
CBC not
maintained or
effective

Inability to
Attract and
Retain Staff

Current Score

2

1

9

5

New Trading
Opportunites
detract from core
business

13

3

6

10

CBH Risk Register 2015.16 - Heat Map

Inability to raise
sufficient Income
from new
business

Impact

Breach of Data
Security

Impact of Jul'15
Budget
Announcement
on fin. viability of

Reliance on
Capita

4

8

12

15

Impact of
Welfare Reform

7

11

14

16

Item 5. Appendix 2.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

6

SUBJECT:

Audit of Company Accounts 2014/15

REPORT BY:

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
 01206 507815
 Michael.Hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR DECISION
1.

Decisions Required
Following its meeting on 30th July 2015, the Finance and Audit Committee
(F&A) recommends that the Board:

1.1

Approves the 2014/15 Audited Final Accounts.

1.2

Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Final Accounts.

1.3

Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Directors’ Report.

1.4

Agrees that the Chair of the Board signs the Letter of Representation.

1.5

Agrees that the Chair of the Board and the Chair of the Finance & Audit
Committee sign the Annual Governance Statement.

2.

Supporting Information

2.1

The Final Accounts for the Company for 2014/15 have been completed and
audited. An unqualified opinion has been issued and the accounts are being
submitted to Board for approval.

2.2

A summary report to the Board and the detailed statutory Company Accounts
are attached for your information as Appendices 1&2.

3.

CBH Accounts

3.1

The company made a surplus of £370,878 for 2014/15 before FRS17
adjustments. The accounts have now been fully audited and this original figure
has been verified.

3.2

The completion of the year end process was achieved within agreed
timescales, thanks to support by key staff and our auditors, Scrutton Bland.
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3.3

Set out below is a reconciliation between the surplus from the management
accounts to the Financial Accounts:

Management Accounts Surplus
FRS Staff Costs Adjustment
Interest Charges

£
370,878
(764,000)
(171,000)

Deficit for Year (per statutory accounts)

(564,122)

4.

Director’s Responsibilities

4.1

As part of the consideration of the Financial Statements, the Chair of the
Board is required to sign on behalf of the Directors the Directors’
Responsibilities. These are set out on pages three and four of the Financial
Statements. The following arrangements have been put in place to provide
confidence to members in supporting this:
•

All accounting policies have been presented to the Board and are
discussed with the External Auditors each year.

•

The Accounts have been closed on an accrual basis and any estimates or
provisions have been supported by detailed workings.

•

UK Accounting Standards have been followed.

•

The Accounts have been prepared on an ongoing basis and the External
Auditor is satisfied that the FRS17 liability is supported by future funding
levels from Colchester Borough Council.

•

Regular Management Accounts updates have been provided to the
Finance & Audit Committee and expenditure has been maintained within
the Management Fee.

•

Meetings have taken place between the External Auditor and the Director
of Resources where all relevant audit information has been given to the
Auditor. The Finance section has also provided the auditor with a bundle
of information and supporting evidence to meet the Auditor’s list of
requirements for the audit.

5.

Letter of Representation

5.1

In addition, the Chair of the Board is required to sign a letter of representation
on behalf of the Board to the Auditors. In a change to previous years, the Chief
Executive will also sign the letter of representation on behalf of the Directors
Management Team.

6.

Financial Implications

6.1

The financial implications are included in the body of the report.
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7.

Risk Management

7.1

If the Company’s Annual Accounts are not signed by the Board and filed at
Companies House within nine months of the financial year-end (31 December
2015) the Company will be liable for a penalty and the Directors (Board
Members) would also become liable. Subject to the Board’s approval on 28
September, the accounts will be submitted to Companies House following the
Board meeting.

8.

HR Implications

8.1

There are no direct HR implications arising from this report.

9.

Equality and Diversity Implications

9.1

There are no direct equality implications arising from this report.

10.

Legal Implications

10.1

The legal implications are set out in the risk paragraph.

11.

Residents at Heart

11.1

Not applicable.

12.

Appendices

12.1

Appendix 1 – Auditors’ Report to the Board

12.2

Appendix 2 – The Statutory Accounts (incl. Annual Governance Statement)

n.b. These Appendices will be provided in the electronic copies of Board
Papers issued to Board Members and staff, and will be made available for the
public via the website and upon request. For reasons of saving paper and
postage, they will not be included in the Board Papers printed and mailed to
Board Members.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES
REPORT TO THE BOARD
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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1

Introduction

1.1

In accordance with International Standards on Auditing 260 (“Communication with
those charged with governance) we are setting out various matters relating to our
audit of the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes (“the Company”) for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

1.2

We can confirm that we have completed our audit work, subject only to the
finalisation of our work in respect of events since the balance sheet date and the
receipt of a signed letter of representation. We currently anticipate being able to give
an unqualified opinion on these financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

2

The Financial Statements
The financial statements can be summarised as follows:

2.1

Income and expenditure account
31 March 2015
£

31 March 2014
£

Turnover

13,818,718

13,949,175

Staff costs
Other operating charges

(5,917,825)
(7,545,262)
________
355,631
14,481
_______
370,112

(4,959,225)
(8,877,515)
________
112,435
8,192
______
120,627

Interest income
Operating surplus before taxation
Tax on ordinary activities
Operating surplus after taxation
FRS 17 (charges)/credits:
Staff costs adjustment
Interest costs
(Deficit) after taxation
per financial statements

766

(6,524)

370,878

114,103

(764,000)
(171,000)
_______

(511,000)
(259,000)
_______

£ (564,122)

£ (655,897)

1
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2.2

The income and expenditure account has been presented in the above format in this
report in order to show the results before and after adjustments under FRS 17. The
results before the FRS 17 adjustments are the results that management are able to
influence and control. The FRS 17 adjustments are only known after the end of the
financial year and are determined by the actuary of the Essex County Council
Pension Scheme (“LGPS”)

2.3

The income and expenditure account of the Company can be considered to have
three discrete components:
•

There are the costs of the direct labour work force and costs of materials which
are invoiced at cost to Colchester Borough Council: therefore these transactions
produce neither a surplus nor a deficit;

•

There are then the various overheads costs of the Company which are funded, in
accordance with a budget, by a management fee from Colchester Borough
Council. To the extent that the actual costs are greater than or less than the
management fee, the Company records either a deficit or a surplus.

•

Finally, commercial activities such as the management of properties for external
housing companies, as in the previous year, a small number of properties owned
by the Co-operative Group have been managed, including the ongoing project in
respect of refurbishing properties for Gurkha Homes.

2.4

We do not consider that the surplus made by the Company in respect of the ALMO
activity with Colchester Borough Council to be taxable. Any other surpluses made will
be subject to corporation tax. Our work in respect of taxation is set out in Section 5.

2.5

Balance sheet
31 March 2015
£
Net current assets

1,072,778

686,650

Less: Provisions

(26,470)
_______
1,046,308

(11,220)
_______
675,430

(6,443,000)
________
£ (5,396,692)

(3,728,000)
_________
£ (3,052,570)

Net assets before FRS 17
FRS 17 net pension liability
Net Liabilities including FRS 17
2.6

31 March 2014
£

The balance sheet of the Company shows net liabilities of £5,396,692 compared to
£3,052,570 in the previous year.

2
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2.7

We consider that the most meaningful figure in considering the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern is the net current assets of £1,072,778
(2014: £686,650). This is the surplus of the current assets over the current liabilities
and is therefore closer than other figures on the balance sheet to a cash flow
measure. This, together with the knowledge that the Company generally forecasts to
breakeven, and that the management fee is received on a profiled basis from
Colchester Borough Council, is indicative of the robustness of the balance sheet.

2.8

The large liability of £6,443,000 (2014: £3,728,000) in respect of pension obligations
is not an immediate liability to be met from cash flows: it represents the current best
estimate of the pension deficit for those Company employees in the LGPS. The
expectation is that future budgets presented to Colchester Borough Council will
include the appropriate amounts in respect of future employer contributions and that
these contributions will be then be funded by the management fee.

2.9

Under FRS 17 there is a requirement for the pension surplus or deficit to be shown
on the face of the balance sheet. As noted above, there is also a requirement for the
income and expenditure account to be amended in order to show pension costs
based on the current costs accruing, rather than on the basis of the employer
contributions payable to the scheme.

3

Main Areas of Audit Risk

3.1

There is always a concern that certain material or subcontractors’ costs incurred by
the Company may not be accepted by Colchester Borough Council. The Company
makes no margin on the recharge of such materials and there is therefore no surplus
available to absorb costs in such a situation. We have obtained confirmation from the
management of the Company that there have been no such cases; we are able to
confirm this by reviewing the recharges made to Colchester Borough Council and the
accounting evidence that all costs have been recharged and not challenged to date.

3.2

There is an audit risk that late costs may be incurred in relation to overheads of the
Company. We therefore carry out a review of purchase invoices and payments after
the end of the year in order to identify any such costs. We also seek to agree larger
supplier balances on the bought ledger to statements from those suppliers.

3.3

There is a significant audit risk that the information in respect of FRS 17 may be
presented incorrectly or may be based on inappropriate assumptions. We therefore
review the detailed figures provided by the Actuary, including the assumptions, and
carry out detailed reviews of the information provided in the financial statements with
regard to the net pension liability and the pension costs.

3.4

With the current economic climate many organisations in the public sector have a
heightened requirement to consider their ability to continue as going concerns. The
Company has been involved in a Fundamental Service Review, as a result of Central
Government funding cuts. We have discussed the implications of this review on the
Company. We consider that the management team are taking the appropriate steps
in order that the Company can continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12
months from today’s date.

3
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4

Controls

4.1

During our audit we examined certain of the control procedures operated by the
management team. We also reviewed the various reports issued by Mazars, the
internal audit service to the Company.

5

Taxation

5.1

We are responsible for the corporation tax compliance work for the Company.

5.2

It is our opinion that the nature of the surpluses made by the Company (comprising
the making of savings on a management fee awarded by the sole member of the
Company) is such that they are not subject to corporation tax as they do not
represent surpluses from a taxable undertaking.

5.3

There is no such exemption available in respect of interest income and the interest
income of the Company is therefore subject to corporation tax.

5.4

During the year the Company has engaged in a number of trading activities, and as
such any surplus in this area is subject to Corporation Tax.

6

Independence

6.1

We can confirm that we consider the partners and employees of Scrutton Bland and
Scrutton Bland Limited to be independent of both the Company and also Colchester
Borough Council.

6.2

In addition to the audit services, we provide tax compliance services to the Company.
The fee in respect of these tax compliance services is very much less than our audit
fee; we therefore do not consider that our undertaking this extra service impacts on
our independence from the Company.

Scrutton Bland
...................2015

4
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Appendix 1
Adjustments to Financial Statements
Balance Sheet
Dr
Cr

Other income
Grant income

I&E
Dr

Cr

20,000
20,000

Being reanalysis of other income
Accounts receivable
Accruals
Income in advance
Colchester Borough Council

1,079,262
289,319
1,554,055
764,112

Being reanalysis of balances due to CBC
5,262

Accreditation expenses
Auditors remuneration

5,262

Being reanalysis of audit fee costs
Co-op debtors
Co-op bad debt provision
Co-op provision (sinking fund)

775
956
1,731

Being reanalysis of Co-op properties control account
1,845,105
Effect on general reserve profit

1,845,105

25,262

25,262

0

5

24

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES
REPORT TO THE BOARD
___________________________________________________________________
FRS 17 Adjustment

Balance Sheet
Dr

Cr

I&E
Dr

FRS 17 interest adjustment

171,000

Employer service costs

764,000

FRS 17 interest adjustment

171,000

Employer service costs

764,000

Balance brought forward

3,728,000

Actuarial loss

1,780,000

Balance carried forward

6,443,000

Adjustment to reserves

935,000
6,443,000

7,378,000

935,000

Effect on pension reserve

(935,000)

Effect on profit

(935,000)

Surplus after tax per client draft
Deficit after tax per accounts

1

Cr

0

370,878
(564,122)

Items Adjusted After Audit Commencement
The only item that altered the reported result was in respect of FRS 17. The other
adjustments in respect of reanalysis had no effect on the reported result.

6
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Appendix 2
Letter or Representation

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
1st Floor
Rowan House
33 Sheepen Road
Colchester
CO3 3WG
Company Number: 04843624

Scrutton Bland
Chartered Accountants
and Statutory Auditor
820 The Crescent
Colchester Business Park
Colchester
CO4 9YQ
Dear Sirs
We confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience and where appropriate, of
inspection of supporting documentation, sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly
make each of the following representations to you in connection with your audit of the
company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware.
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are
aware of that information.
1

We acknowledge, as directors, our collective responsibility under the Companies Act
for presenting financial statements, which give a true and fair view, and for making
accurate representations to you and confirm that we have approved the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015. All the accounting records have been
made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions
undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the
accounting records. All other records and related information, including minutes of all
management meetings, have been made available to you.

7
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2

We confirm that the accounting policies and estimation techniques, including those
measured at fair value, adopted for the preparation of the financial statements are
the most appropriate to the circumstances in which the company operates.

3

We confirm that only one director received remuneration during the year and that the
remuneration of this director was £6,500 in the period.

4

We confirm that we have notified you of all related party relationships, and
transactions that the company has entered into with those related parties during the
year of which we are aware. Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the
company has not entered into any transactions involving directors, officers or other
related parties, which require disclosure under the Companies Act or Financial
Reporting Standards. Appropriate disclosure has been made of the control of the
company.

5

Other than those disclosed in financial statements we are not aware of any material
liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets or contracted for capital
commitments, that need to be provided for or disclosed in the financial statements.

6

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal
controls to prevent and detect errors or fraud, and have disclosed to you the results
of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud. We are unaware of any irregularities, including fraud
and suspected fraud, involving management, employees or others who have
significant roles in internal control, or those employed by the company where the
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. No allegations of such
irregularities or breaches have come to our notice.

7

We have disclosed all known or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards. We are
unaware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, contracts,
agreements or the company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association which might
result in the company suffering significant penalties or other loss. No allegations of
such irregularities or such breaches have come to our notice.

8

The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the going concern
basis as we believe that adequate cash resources will be available to cover the
company’s requirements for working capital and capital expenditure for at least the
next twelve months. We are not aware of any other factors which could put in
jeopardy the company’s going concern status during or beyond this period, other
than disclosed in the financial statements.

9

There have been no events since the balance sheet date which necessitate revision
of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto.
Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures
included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you
accordingly.

8
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10

We confirm that we have been notified by you that either no unadjusted or only
clearly trivial errors were identified during the audit.

11

We confirm that we have agreed the adjustments included in the report at Appendix 1
which have been made to the Trial Balance which we presented to you.

12

We confirm receipt of your management letter.

13

We confirm that we have been notified by you that there are no matters which you
are required to raise with us to comply with your profession’s ethical guidance.

Yours faithfully

Signed on behalf of the Executive
Date:

Signed on behalf of the board of directors
Date:

9
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Appendix 3
Management Letter
The Directors
Colchester Borough Homes Limited
1st Floor
Rowan House
33 Sheepen Road
Colchester
CO3 3WG

Dear Sirs
Colchester Borough Homes Limited
Following our recent final audit in connection with the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015, we are writing to bring to your attention certain matters that we have
identified during the course of our work. We hope that you will find our comments helpful.
Our work during the audit included an examination of some of the company’s transactions
and procedures with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements for the year.
This work was not directed primarily towards discovering weaknesses or towards the
detection of fraud. We have only considered matters that have come to our attention as a
result of our normal audit procedures and consequently our comments should not be
regarded as a comprehensive record of all weaknesses that may exist or of all
improvements that might be made.
Our work also included a review of the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements
and consideration of the appropriateness of the accounting policies and estimation
techniques adopted by the company. This review identified no significant matters which we
believe are necessary to draw to your attention.
We would like to draw your attention to the following points:
Going Concern - Pension liability
The balance sheet includes a large provision of £6,443,000 in respect of the FRS 17 defined
benefit pension fund deficit. The inclusion of this provision means that there is a deficit of
member’s funds of £5,396,692. If the future performance of the pension scheme remains
identical to the assumptions made by the Actuary, then there would need to be an increase
in total contributions into the pension scheme in order to cover the funding shortfall.
We consider that the financial statements should continue to be prepared on the going
concern basis, provided that the directors are of the view that increased pension
contributions in future years will be met by the funding received each year from Colchester
Borough Council.

10
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Accounting and auditing developments
As previously notified, there will be a significant change in UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice that will take effect for year ends commencing on or after 1 January
2015. Therefore the first year end for which Colchester Borough Homes would need to
prepare accounts under the new UK GAAP would be the year ending 31 March 2016.
The comparatives for this set of accounts would also need to be compliant, meaning that 1
April 2014 is the effective conversion date.
It is important that Colchester Borough Homes are either able to readily obtain accounting
information retrospectively, or have collated the data for the year’s ended 31 March 2014
and 2015 in preparation for the transition to FRS 102.
An area where FRS 102 will impact upon the financial statements of Colchester Borough
Homes is the way in which defined benefit pension schemes will be accounted for. Although
the pension liability itself is arrived at in the same way as previously, the elements that pass
through the profit and loss account will change.
There will also be the need to include an accrual for holiday pay within the financial
statements of Colchester Borough Homes. This is a figure that is already calculated by the
company as part of the consolidation process with Colchester Borough Council, although we
should note that for the year ended 31 March 2015 the accrual was calculated as at 31
January 2015. The directors therefore need to be satisfied that this figure would not differ
significantly to the holiday pay accrual figure at 31 March 2015 as this figure will be included
within the financial statements of the company when FRS102 accounts are prepared next
year.
If you require any further information or assistance, we shall be very pleased to help you.
We would appreciate an acknowledgement of the receipt of this letter and look forward to
receiving your comments when you have had the opportunity of considering the matters that
we have raised.
This letter is for private use only. It has been prepared on the understanding that it will not be
disclosed to any third party, or quoted to or referred to, without our prior written consent and
we assume no responsibility to any other party.
We should like to take this opportunity of thanking you and your staff for the assistance and
co-operation we have received during the course of our work.
Yours faithfully

Scrutton Bland

11
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Strategic Report
Year ended 31st March 2015
The directors have pleasure in presenting their strategic report for the year ended
31st March 2015.
Principal activities and business review
The principal activity of the company during the period was the repair and improvement of
council properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears, and other property
management associated services.
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the
‘Council’) continued throughout the year.
Results
The initial surplus after tax, but before FRS17 for the year was £370,878
(2014: surplus £114,103). This resulted in a deficit of £564,122 (2014: deficit £655,897) for
the year, after adjustments for FRS 17.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The directors consider that the main risks to the company are that expenditure is not
controlled in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’. The company has
budgeting and management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks.
The company is also exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in
order to fund the deficit in the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by
improved investment performance.
The company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main
key performance indicators include tenant satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length
of time taken to re-let empty properties, customer satisfaction with repairs, and the length of
time taken to pay invoices.
The company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other
financial instruments for treasury management. The company therefore has very little
exposure to cash flow risk.
The Welfare Reform Act will have a significant effect on the way that the Company collects
the rent on behalf of the Council. This could lead to substantial additional costs to maintain
performance if not managed effectively. The Company is currently working with the Council
to identify the key areas of risk and putting in place arrangements to mitigate these risks.
The directors are committed to ensuring that proper governance arrangements are in place.
Registered office:
1st Floor
Rowan House
33 Sheepen Road
Colchester
Essex
CO3 3WG

Signed on behalf of the directors

Ms A Grahamslaw
Director

Approved by the directors on
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Directors' Report
Year ended 31st March 2015
The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2015.
Directors
The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:
Mr A Blois
Miss M Carey
Cllr N Chapman
Mrs C Graves
Cllr L Sykes
Mr G Houchell
Cllr R Gamble
Cllr M Lilley
Ms A Grahamslaw
Mrs J Hartland
Miss J Parker
Cllr N Offen
Mr G Foster
Miss D Philp

(resigned 3rd July 2014)
(resigned 4th June 2015)

(resigned 14th November 2014)
(appointed 24th February 2015)
(appointed 3rd July 2014) (resigned 4th June 2015)
(appointed 15th July 2014)
(appointed 15th July 2014)

Directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of the company for that period. In
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Directors' Report (continued)
Year ended 31st March 2015
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
In so far as the directors are aware:
•

there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware; and

•

the directors have taken all reasonable steps that they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is
aware of that information.

Registered office:
1st Floor
Rowan House
33 Sheepen Road
Colchester
Essex
CO3 3WG

Signed on behalf of the directors

Ms A Grahamslaw
Director

Approved by the directors on
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of
Colchester Borough Homes Limited
Year ended 31st March 2015
We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year
ended 31st March 2015 which comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, Statement of
Total Recognised Gains and Losses, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related
notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the company's member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company's member those matters we are required to state to the member
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
member as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 3 to 4,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of
Colchester Borough Homes Limited
Year ended 31st March 2015
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31st March 2015 and
of its deficit for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the strategic report and the Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

•

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

TIM O’CONNOR (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of
SCRUTTON BLAND
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor
820 The Crescent
Colchester Business Park
Colchester
CO4 9YQ
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Note

Turnover

2

Staff costs
FRS 17 staff costs adjustment
Other operating charges

3
3/14h

2015

2014

£

£

13,818,718 13,949,175
(5,917,825) (4,959,225)
(764,000)
(511,000)
(7,545,262) (8,877,515)
---------------------------------------------------

Operating (deficit)
Interest receivable
FRS 17 interest adjustment

4

(408,369)

(398,565)

14h

14,481
(171,000)

8,192
(259,000)

---------------------------------------------------

(Deficit) on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on ordinary activities

(564,888)
5

766
---------------------------------------------------

(Deficit) for the financial year

---------------------------------------------------

(564,122)

---------------------------------------------------

(649,373)
(6,524)
--------------------------------------------------

(655,897)

==================================================

=================================================

370,878

114,103

(764,000)
(171,000)

(511,000)
(259,000)

The deficit for the financial year before and after
adjustments required under FRS 17 is as follows:
Operating surplus after tax
FRS 17 charges:
Staff costs adjustment
Interest costs

-----------------------------------------------------

(Deficit) for the financial year

(564,122)
=====================================================

All of the activities of the company are classed as continuing.

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
Year ended 31st March 2015

Note

(Deficit) for the financial year

2015

2014

£

£

(564,122)

Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from pension liabilities

14d (3,549,000)

Difference between expected and actual return on
pension fund assets

14d

Total recognised gains and losses for year

2,250,000

1,769,000

686,000

-----------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------

(2,344,122)

2,280,103

==========================================

==========================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
31st March 2015
2015
Note

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

6

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one
year

7

£

2014
£

1,412,353
1,389,976

446,223
2,500,992

-----------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------

2,802,329

2,947,215

1,729,551

2,260,565

-----------------------------------------------

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities
Other provisions

8

Net assets excluding pension fund
Estimated pension fund liability

14a

-----------------------------------------------

1,072,778

686,650

-----------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------

1,072,778

686,650

26,470

11,220

-----------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------

1,046,308

675,430

(6,443,000) (3,728,000)
-----------------------------------------------

Net liabilities

£

---------------------------------------------------

(5,396,692) (3,052,570)
=========================================

Reserves
Income and expenditure account –
excluding FRS 17 reserve
FRS 17 reserve

12

1,046,308
675,430
(6,443,000) (3,728,000)
-----------------------------------------------

Member's funds (deficit)

============================================

-----------------------------------------------

(5,396,692) (3,052,570)
=========================================

==============================================

These financial statements were approved by the directors and authorised for issue on
and are signed on their behalf by:

Ms A Grahamslaw
Director
Company Registration Number: 04843624

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31st March 2015
2015

2014

Note

£

£

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities

13

(1,119,263)

Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

13

14,481

8,192

Taxation

13

(6,234)

(111)

(Decrease)/increase in cash

13

_________________

______________

(1,111,016)

674,948

================================================

===========================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
1.

Accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of £1,046,308
but net liabilities of £5,396,692 once the provision for pension liabilities is included. The
financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concern, on the
assumption that the core funding from the ‘Council’ in future years will enable the
increased pension contributions to be met.
Turnover
Turnover principally comprises of income derived from the ‘Council’ and is stated
exclusive of Value Added Tax.
Income received from the ‘Council’ is for the management of Colchester Borough
Homes and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs
are also recharged direct to the ‘Council’ in respect of property services running costs.
Included in turnover is an amount of £4,618,856 (2014: £10,139,470) which relates to
the recharging of property services costs incurred by the company. A property services
management fee of £5,003,327 was received in the year (2014 : £Nil).
Within turnover is also an amount of £20,000 (2014: £20,000) relating to grants received
and redistributed in due course.
Operating lease agreements
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of
ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.
Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
The company operates a defined benefit pension scheme for employees. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the company.
Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit
method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate.
Pension scheme assets are valued at market value at the balance sheet date.
The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the balance sheet. There are no
deferred tax implications.

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
1.

Policies (continued)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the company's
offices at the end of the lease.
Bank balances
The company's bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the
‘Council’. Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and
placed on overnight deposit.
Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified and accounted for, according to the substance of
the contractual arrangement, as either financial assets, financial liabilities or equity
instruments. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Taxation
Any operating surplus of the company, before FRS17 adjustments, arising from savings
of overhead costs compared to the core funding provided by the ‘Council’, is nontaxable. Taxation is chargeable only on the interest income of the company, and also
any surplus from its activities with other housing associations.

2.

Turnover
The turnover and profit before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the
company. An analysis of turnover is given below:
2015

2014

£

£

13,818,718 13,949,175

United Kingdom

===================================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
3.

Particulars of employees
The average number of staff employed by the company during the financial year
amounted to:
2015
209

Number of staff

==============================================

2014
185
==============================================

The aggregate payroll costs of the above were:
2015
£

2014
£

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Employer pension contributions
Redundancy payments

4,934,477
344,059
584,734
54,555
----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

FRS 17 pension costs adjustment

5,917,825
764,000

4,959,225
511,000

4,154,247
294,865
503,966
6,147

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

6,681,825

5,470,225

==========================================

==========================================

The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was:
2015
Aggregate remuneration

2014

£

£

6,500

2,167

======================================

===========================================

The Chair of the Board is the only paid director, with the level of remuneration set by an
independent panel. Other directors are only reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.
4.

Operating deficit
The operating deficit is stated after charging:
2015
Auditor’s remuneration - audit of the financial statements
Auditor’s remuneration - other services
Internal audit
Operating lease costs:
Other operating leases

2014

£

£

11,900
980
26,550

11,600
300
24,485

357,420

297,659

==========================================

==========================================

The auditors’ remuneration for other services relates to Scrutton Bland providing an
IFRS conversion working, reviewing employment related taxes and providing guidance
on the relative benefits between limited companies and limited liability partnerships.
From 1 February 2014 internal audit relates to services provided by Mazars PSIA
Limited and prior to that by Deloitte & Touche PSIA Limited.
The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
5.

Taxation on ordinary activities
Analysis of charge in the year
2015

2014

£

£

Current tax:
UK Corporation tax for the year at 20% (2014 : 20%)
Over provision in previous period

(766)
------------------------------------------

(766)

Total current tax

=====================================

7,000
(476)
----------------------------------------

6,524
====================================

The company is not subject to tax on its activities performed for the ‘Council’.
Corporation tax is charged on interest income and services provided to other housing
associations.
6.

Debtors
2015
£

the ‘Council’
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

7.

2014
£

1,251,194
124,999
36,160

257,813
158,510
29,900

-------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------

1,412,353

446,223

======================================

=======================================

Creditors : Amounts falling due within one year
2015
£

225,402
-

Other creditors
Corporation tax
PAYE and social security
VAT
Accruals and deferred income
Trade creditors

99,001
179,466
1,066,191
159,491

£

56,391
7,000
90,630
605,133
1,421,981
79,430

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

1,729,551

2,260,565

=========================================

========================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
8.

Other provisions

Provision for building reinstatement:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

2015

2014

£

£

4,300
14,950

4,210
90

----------------------------------------

----------------------------------------

19,250
====================================

Environmental provision:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

4,300
====================================

4,000
-------------------------------------------

4,000
---------------------------------------------

4,000
====================================

Provision for privately leased building venture:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

4,000
========================================

2,920
300

600
2,320

-------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------

3,220

2,920

====================================

Total provisions carried forward
9.

============================

26,470

11,220

====================================

=====================================

Commitments under operating leases
At 31st March 2015 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as set out below.
Land & Buildings
2015
2014
£

Operating leases which expire:
Less than 1 year
Within 2 to 5 years
Over 5 years

£

155,740
====================================

143,640
=====================================

Other
Operating leases which expire:
Less than 1 year
Within 2 to 5 years

2015

2014

£

£

921
164,999
====================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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921
149,176
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
10. Related party transactions

The company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control
of the ‘Council’. The company is taking advantage of the exemption not to disclose
related party transactions as the consolidated accounts of the ‘Council’ are publicly
available.
11. Company limited by guarantee
The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the
member, the ‘Council’, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1.
12. Income and expenditure account
2015
£

2014
£

Balance brought forward
(Deficit) for the year
Actuarial profit in respect of the pension scheme

(3,052,570) (5,332,673)
(564,122)
(655,897)
(1,780,000) 2,936,000

Balance carried forward

(5,396,692) (3,052,570)

----------------------------------------------------==============================================

Being:
FRS 17 reserve
Other

----------------------------------------------------==============================================

(6,443,000) (3,728,000)
1,046,308
675,430
-------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------

(5,396,692) (3,052,570)
=============================================

==============================================

The level of reserves the company can hold is capped at an amount determined by the
Council. If this is exceeded, the excess will be paid back to the Council at the end of the
financial year in which it occurred.
At 31 March 2015 there were committed reserves of £781,000 and uncommitted
reserves of £265,308.

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
13. Notes to the cash flow statement
Reconciliation of operating (deficit) to net cash (outflow)/inflow
from operating activities
2015
£

Operating (deficit)
(Increase) in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors
Increase in provisions
FRS 17 pension adjustment

£

(408,369)
(966,130)
(524,014)
15,250
764,000

(398,565)
(400,444)
952,466
2,410
511,000

-----------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------

(1,119,263)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

2014

=========================================

666,867
=========================================

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of
finance

2015

2014

£

£

14,481

8,192

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

14,481

8,192

=========================================

========================================

Taxation
2015
£

(6,234)

Taxation paid

========================================

2014
£

(111)
=========================================

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
2015
£

2014
£

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the period

(1,111,016)

Change in net funds

(1,111,016)

674,948

2,500,992

1,826,044

----------------------------------------------

Net funds at 1st April 2014

674,948
----------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

1,389,976

2,500,992

==========================================

=========================================

At
1 April
2014 Cash flows

At
31 March
2015

Net funds at 31st March 2015
Analysis of changes in net funds

£

Net cash:
Cash in hand and at bank

£

2,500,992 (1,111,016)
-----------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------

2,500,992 (1,111,016)

Net funds

==========================================

============================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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£

1,389,976
-----------------------------------------------------

1,389,976
==============================================
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
14. Pension commitments

(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme and the expected rate of return at
31st March were:
2015
Long-term
rate of
return
expected
%

Equities
Bonds
Properties
Cash
Alternative assets

5.4
2.7
4.4
2.0
3.0

Total market value of assets

4.7

Present value of scheme liabilities
Net estimated pension liability

2014

Value
£

14,744,000
3,061,000
2,381,000
481,000
1,252,000
------------------------21,919,000

Long-term
rate of
return
expected
%

6.7
3.9
5.7
3.4
4.2

Value
£

11,976,000
2,860,000
2,053,000
358,000
715,000
------------------------------------------------------------

6.0

17,962,000

(28,362,000)

(21,690,000)

-----------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------

(6,443,000)

(3,728,000)

=====================================================

===================================================

(b) Asset and liability reconciliation:
2015

2014

£

£

Reconciliation of liabilities (funded)
Liabilities at start of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Actuarial loss/(gain)
Benefits paid
Loss on settlement

21,690,000 21,596,000
1,001,000
994,000
1,032,000
982,000
278,000
229,000
3,549,000 (2,250,000)
(553,000)
(441,000)
1,365,000
580,000
----------------------------------------------------------------------------28,362,000 21,690,000

Liabilities at end of period

===================================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: (continued)
2015

2014

£

£

Reconciliation of assets
Assets at start of period
Expected return on assets
Actuarial gain
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits received
Administrative expenses
Settlement received

17,962,000 15,702,000
861,000
723,000
1,769,000
686,000
605,000
486,000
278,000
229,000
(553,000) (441,000)
(3,000)
(8,000)
1,005,000
580,000
----------------------- ----------------------------------------------------------21,919,000 17,962,000

Assets at end of period

====================================================== =====================================================

(c) History of scheme assets and liabilities:

Fair value of the
scheme assets
Present value of
scheme liabilities

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

£

£

£

£

£

21,919,000

17,962,000

15,702,000

13,739,000

(28,362,000) (21,690,000) (21,596,000) (19,269,000) (14,937,000)
-------------------------------------------------------------

Scheme deficit

12,749,000

-------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------

(6,443,000)

(3,728,000)

(5,894,000)

========================================================

========================================================

=========================================================

-----------------------------------------------------------========================================================

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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(5,530,000) (2,188,000)
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(d) History of experience gains and (losses):

Difference between the
expected and actual
return on scheme assets:
amount
percentage of scheme
assets

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

£

£

£

£

£

1,769,000

8%

686,000

915,000

(739,000)

414,000

4%

6%

5%

2%

(967,000) (2,525,000)

365,000

Experience (losses)/gains
on scheme liabilities:
(3,549,000) 2,250,000
amount
percentage of the
present value of
13%
scheme liabilities
10%

4%

13%

2%

------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------

Total amount recognised
in statement of total
recognised gains and
losses:
------------------------------------------------------

Total amount

==============================================

Cumulative amount
recognised in the
statement of total
recognised gains and
losses

------------------------------------------------------

(1,780,000) 2,936,000
==============================================

------------------------------------------------

(52,000) (3,264,000)
==============================================

=========================================

779,000
===========================================

(1,381,000)
==============================================

Percentage of the
present value of
scheme liabilities

5%

4%

18%

27%

8%

(e) Return on scheme assets:
The overall expected rate of return on scheme assets was expected to be 6.0% in
2014/15. This figure will vary year on year depending on the assumptions made and the
underlying distribution of the fund’s assets which will vary during the year and as a result
it is not appropriate to break down the expected return on assets across the different
asset categories. Actual returns on scheme assets have been £2,630,000 for the year to
31 March 2015, being 12.0% of the year end asset value.

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(f)

A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31st March
2013 and updated to 31st March 2015 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were:
2015
2014
%

Main assumptions:
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
Discount rate
Inflation assumption

4.2
2.4
3.4
3.3

%

4.6
2.8
4.5
3.6

(g) Movement in deficit during the year:

At 1st April 2014
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Actuarial (losses)/gains
Employer contributions
(Loss) on settlement
Administrative costs

(note 14(d))

2015

2014

£

£

(3,728,000) (5,894,000)
(1,001,000) (748,000)
(171,000) (259,000)
(1,780,000) 2,936,000
605,000
486,000
(360,000)
(246,000)
(8,000)
(3,000)
----------------------------------------------------

At 31st March 2015

----------------------------------------------------

(6,443,000) (3,728,000)
==============================================

================================================

The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough
Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee.
FRS17 disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial review of the
pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. FRS17 is a one off
assessment at the year end for accounting disclosure purposes. The FRS17 calculations
are more prescriptive. At the current time they emphasise the liabilities and produce a
balance sheet position worse than the triennial valuation position.
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that:

• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current
assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement.

• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs
generally. There is a national problem for pension funds both private and public
sector.
• The Essex pension fund is regularly reviewed and additional contributions have
already been initiated to address the problem over a period of years.
The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2015
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(h) Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:
2015
£

Current service cost
Employer contributions
Administration Costs

2014
£

1,361,000 994,000
(605,000) (486,000)
8,000
3,000
---------------------------------------------

FRS 17 adjustment

764,000

-------------------------------------------

511,000

========================================

====================================

2015

2014

Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs:
£

Other finance costs: expected return on assets in
the scheme
Other finance costs: interest costs

861,000 723,000
(1,032,000) (982,000)
---------------------------------------------------

Net return

£

---------------------------------------------

(171,000) (259,000)
==========================================

========================================

During the year to 31 March 2015 the employer contribution rate was 14%.
(i)

Life assumptions:
2015

2014

Current pensioner aged 65
male
female

22.8
25.2

22.7
25.1

Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years time
male
female

25.1
27.6

24.9
27.4

Life expectancy:

The notes on pages 11 to 22 form part of these financial statements.
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Management Information
Year ended 31st March 2015

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements
which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 5 to 6.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Detailed Income and Expenditure Account
Year ended 31st March 2015
2015
£

Turnover
Management fee
Property services management fee
Property services and recharges
Grant income
Other income

2014
£

£

4,064,429 3,469,142
5,003,327
4,618,856 10,139,470
20,000
20,000
112,106
320,563
---------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------

13,818,718 13,949,175
Operating costs (before FRS 17 adjustment)
Staff costs
Other operating charges

5,917,825
7,545,262

4,959,225
8,877,515

---------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------

13,463,087 13,836,740
Operating surplus
Interest on management fee
Surplus on ordinary activities
FRS 17 staff cost adjustments
FRS 17 interest adjustment

---------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------

355,631
14,481

112,435
8,192

--------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------

370,112
(764,000)
(171,000)
---------------------------------------------------

Deficit on ordinary activities post FRS 17
adjustment and pre taxation

(564,888)
==============================================
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120,627
(511,000)
(259,000)
--------------------------------------------------

(649,373)
=============================================
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Detailed Income and Expenditure Account
Year ended 31st March 2015
2015
£

Staff costs
Salaries
Employers national insurance contributions
Staff pension contributions
Redundancy payments

2014
£

4,934,477
344,059
584,734
54,555

4,154,247
294,865
503,966
6,147

----------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

5,917,825
764,000

FRS 17 pension costs adjustment

Other operating charges
Establishment expenses:
Rent, rates, water and management fees
Light and heat
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Other establishment expenses

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

5,470,225

==========================================

==============================================

211,366
2,689
58,563
5,279
350,899

--------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------

649,866
10,647
83,476
77,919
6,233
78,894
90,505
24,939
20,000
7,013
488,264
26,550
12,880
5,262
48,101
554,442
175,686
5,184,024

-----------------------------------------------

6,894,835
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628,796
9,057
42,034
76,902
6,708
66,333
78,544
5,289
20,000
4,483
557,816
24,485
11,925
3,875
110,081
2,260
558,094
182,893
6,487,298

----------------------------------------------

Financial costs:
Bank charges

4,959,225
511,000

6,681,825

216,592
8,479
58,933
1,467
364,395

General expenses:
Travel and subsistence
Telephone
Publicity, printing, postage and stationery
Staff subscriptions
Staff training
Other staff related expenses
Recruitment
Grants
Catering
Support services
Internal auditors remuneration
Auditors remuneration
Accreditation expenses
Consultancy, support and subcontract costs
Bad debts
Materials, repairs and equipment
Motor expenses
Sub contractors

£

8,248,077

561

642

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

7,545,262

8,877,515

=========================================

===========================================
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Annual Governance Statement
Year ended 31st March 2015
1.

Scope of Responsibility
Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms Length
Management Organisation of the ‘Council’, responsible for the management and
maintenance of the Council's homes and transferred general fund services. In 2014/15,
these were primarily financed from the Council through a budgeted Management Fee of
£9,478,500, a significant increase on previous years as this now includes Property
Services professional fees, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH Revenue
work costs. Property Services also manages capital and revenue work costs paid
directly by CBC, budgeted total of £12,457,861.
There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in
place until August 2023, with a review in 2020. This clearly sets out the governance
arrangements that should apply between the two parties and complies with national
best practice.
CBH is managed by a Board comprising four Council nominees, four tenants and four
independent members. In discharging this overall responsibility, Colchester Borough
Homes is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its
affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements
for the management of risk. Four committees report to the Board: Business
Opportunities Panel, Finance & Audit, Governance & Remuneration and Operations.
These have formal, approved terms of reference.

2.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework
Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship,
good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service
user. Good governance enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well
as underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and management of risk.
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by
which the Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it
accounts to, engages with and serves the community. It enables the Company to
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process, designed to:
•

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims
and objectives

•

to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised

•

to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
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Annual Governance Statement
Year ended 31st March 2015
The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of
accounts.
Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through:
•

corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of
Association, the Code of Governance and the Standing Financial Instructions.

•

the employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility
for key areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal
system.

•

the preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the
executive officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and
identify variances arising during the monthly reporting cycle.

•

business planning is based on a Medium Term Development Plan that sets out
key actions to enable CBH to achieve its goals for the ensuing year. This
cascades through supporting Service Plans and individual performance
appraisals. The key aims for 2015/16 are:
 Maximise the supply of housing to meet local needs at a price people can
afford
 Work with partners and residents to create mixed and sustainable
communities
 Prevent homelessness and rough sleeping
 Improve the life chances of Colchester’s residents
 Work with customers to enable them to make informed choices about their
housing
 Make the best use of existing homes, including reducing the number of
empty homes and homes that are under-occupied.
 Work to ensure that existing and new homes are healthy, safe and energy
efficient
 Ensure that housing and related services meet a range of specialist needs

The Executive Management and the Board carry out regular review of performance
against objectives and targets detailed in the Medium Term Delivery Plan.
3.

Review of Effectiveness
Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
its governance framework, including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Senior Management within the Company,
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
environment. This is supported by the Internal Audit’s annual report, and by comments
made by external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

- 27 -

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

60

Annual Governance Statement
Year ended 31st March 2015
The company produces a Medium Term Delivery Plan every three years which is
refreshed every year. From this plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and projects
are produced. A performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and monitor
delivery against these. This is a combination of company, tenants and CBC scrutiny as
well as benchmarking against other providers.
CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance
arrangements consist of:
•

the Operations Committee receiving quarterly performance reports.

•

The Governance & Remuneration Committee monitoring the implementation of
the Governance Action Plan and significant staffing matters.

•

the Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout the
year, reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and
monitoring financial performance against budgets.

•

the Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies
against an agreed policy review timetable.

•

the production and approval of annual Manager Assurance Statements by service
directors and their teams to assess compliance with key governance processes
throughout the year.

Internal Audit
Internal Audit is delivered through a contract with Mazars Public Sector Internal Audit
Ltd (Mazars). A five-year risk-based Strategic Audit Plan was initially prepared based
on an audit needs assessment undertaken in April 2011. This has been refreshed on
an annual basis in consultation with the Senior Management and has been extended to
cover the period 2014/17. The updated plan was approved by the Finance & Audit
Committee in March 2015.
The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion
of each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions
required to address them. Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were
implemented properly by the due date. Reports are presented to each Finance & Audit
Committee of progress against the audit plan as well as the status of outstanding
recommendations.
The Head of Internal Audit prepares an annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HOIA)
report that includes an overall opinion on CBH’s internal control environment based on
the results of the audit work completed. This was considered by the June 2015 Finance
& Audit Committee.
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Annual Governance Statement
Year ended 31st March 2015
Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in
order that they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council
with the following assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements
during the year:
•

Internal Audit reports

•

Summary results of Manager Assurance Statements

•

The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report
(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal
control)

External Audit
External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland with a
view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
In carrying out the audit work Scrutton Bland will consider whether the financial
statements are free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the
relative significance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a
whole. An item will normally be considered material if its omission would reasonably
influence the decisions of those using the financial statements.
Scrutton Bland will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work.
This will include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations
for improvements in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will
be discussed with management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also
include details of significant adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the
audit work.
The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and
recommends adoption of the financial statements to the Board.
4.

Significant Governance Issues
The main areas for further work identified through the Governance Assurance Process
in 2014/15, and which should be disclosed in the Governance Statement Action Plan
are:
•

Financial Procedures
The Company needs to draw up a new set of financial procedures to reflect the
updated Standing Financial Instructions and Contract Procedure Rules.

•

Disaster Recovery
Carry out a disaster recovery exercise.
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5.

Action Plan
An action plan is set out below, which will be monitored by the Finance & Audit
Committee.

Description

Proposed Actions

Responsibility

Target
Completion
Date

Standing
Financial
Instructions

Update the standing
financial instructions

Director of
Resources

31 October
2015

Disaster Recovery

Carry out a Disaster
Recovery Exercise

Business Finance
Manager

31 October
2015

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address
the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will
monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed:
(Chair of the Board)
Signed:
(Chair of the Audit & Finance Committee)
Signed:
(Chief Executive Officer)
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

7

SUBJECT:

Value for Money Strategy

REPORT BY:

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources

FOR DECISION
1.

Introduction & Purpose

1.1

To present and approve the Value for Money (VfM) Strategy and Executive
Summary.

1.2

The Finance and Audit Committee recommended the strategy for approval at
its 10 March 2015 meeting.

2.

Background & Content

2.1

VfM is a core value at CBH, is one of the key priorities in our Medium Term
Delivery Plan 2014-17 and is to ‘Make the most of resources and
opportunities’ to achieve:
1. Increased Customer Satisfaction
2. Improved range, scope and quality of services
3. Better value for money
4. An organisation fit for the future.

2.2

To help achieve this objective, CBH developed a VfM Strategy to cover the
period 2015-18. The Executive Summary of the Strategy can be found in
Appendix 1 and was a request from CBC (which has been approved) as the
strategy was quite detailed. The strategy itself, annual self-assessment and
action plan can be found in Appendix 2.

2.3

In the current climate, with increased pressure on the HRA, this strategy will
be constantly reviewed to ensure that it still provides the framework to enable
CBH to adapt to growing budgetary pressures.

3.

Financial Implications

3.1

The majority of CBH’s focused actions; savings, increasing income, and
procurement will strengthen CBH’s financial position over this time period.
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4.

VfM Implications
VfM is the underlying theme of the strategy.

5.

Health & Safety Implications

5.1

None.

6.

Equality & Diversity Implications

6.1

None.

7.

Residents at the Heart

7.1

Key objectives of the strategy include improving customer satisfaction and
offering an improved range, scope and quality of services to our residents.

8.

Risk Management

8.1

The implications of the budget announcement in July 2015 has highlighted the
need to deliver more for less and CBH has to ensure that it is delivering on all
its VfM promises in this time period.

9.

Appendix

9.1

VfM Executive Strategy

9.2

VfM Strategy, annual self-assessment and action plan
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Colchester Borough Homes - Value for money 2015-18
Executive Summary
Residents at the heart of everything we do
1. Introduction
At Colchester Borough Homes Value for Money (VfM) is a core value. One of the
key priorities in our Medium Term Delivery Plan 2014-17 is to “Make the most of
resources and opportunities” to achieve:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Increased customer satisfaction
Improved range, scope and quality of services
Better value for money
An organisation fit for the future.

To help achieve this objective CBH developed a Value for Money Strategy to cover
the period from 2015 to 2018. This paper is an Executive Summary of that strategy.
In the current climate, with increased pressure on the HRA, this strategy will be
constantly reviewed to ensure that it still provides the framework to enable CBH to
adapt to growing budgetary pressures.
2. CBH’s approach to delivering VfM
CBH takes a structured approach to delivering VfM by focusing actions on 8 key
areas:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Savings;
Service improvement;
Increased income;
Procurement;
Asset management (see section 6);
Performance management;
Cultural change;
Social return on investment.

It then monitors outcomes through:
i)
j)
k)
l)
m)
n)

Working with residents to identify the services/products they value the
most;
Using benchmarking against similar organisations to identify where
resources should be focused to improve VfM (see section 7);
Measuring service quality against service standards and resident
satisfaction;
Using a suite of KPIs that have a VfM focus;
Adopting best practice in procurement;
Working with partners in order to maximise our joint resources.

The process is underpinned by conducting an annual self-assessment and regular
scrutiny by the Finance and Audit Committee, supplemented by reporting progress
against the action plan to the Board, CBC, residents and staff.
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3. Future proofing project
As a separate project, but aligned to VfM, CBH is engaged in an exercise to ensure
CBH’s structure is resilient and sustainable in order to achieve its medium and long
term objectives. The project will recommend changes to its governance and staffing
structures as well as identifying key projects designed to meet this objective.
4. 2014/15 VfM Highlights
a)

Management Fee savings of £520,000 over the period of 2011/12 to
2013/14 and a further £60,000 in 2014/15;

b)

Improvement in performance over a range of KPIs
2014/15
Performance
as at Jan 15

2013/14
Performance

2012/13
Performance

Overall satisfaction with landlord

83

78

78

Satisfaction with repairs service (%)

99

99

96

Repairs completed on time (%)

99

98

97

Antisocial behaviour cases resolved
(%)

96

95

92

Satisfaction with neighbourhood (%)

87

83

83

Complaints upheld (%)

30

64

64

1.15

1.24

1.44

KPI

Former tenant arrears (%)
c)

Joining Essex Procurement Hub to procure non-EU procurement sized
projects, for example the new cleaning contract which delivered savings
of £21,000pa (24%);

d)

Appointing a dedicated officer to seek grants funding, which has raised
£400k to date;

e)

Re-modelling a hard to let bedsit sheltered scheme to provide one and
two bed apartments, which have been let to tenants giving up larger
homes;

f)

Family intervention projects to support residents affected by welfare
reforms, recognised as a national example of best practice by Citizens
Advice, that have reduced the benefit cap case load by almost 80% and
the under occupancy caseload by 30%;
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g)

Environmental initiatives such as installing photovoltaic panels to provide
tenants with free electricity, replacing landlord lighting with LED systems
and recycling all trade waste, halving the cost of waste management.

5. VfM case studies
a)
Homeless service
After taking over management of the Homeless service midway through
2013/14, CBH reviewed how temporary accommodation was provided. It
found that there was a reliance on using bed and breakfast
accommodation which had the advantage of being readily available, but
had the disadvantage of being expensive, poor quality units that provided
the client with few if any facilities for cooking or clothes washing. This
increased client’s living costs at a time when they were under financial
pressure. Additionally some B&B establishments attracted undesirable
customers, making them unsuitable places to put families.
As a solution to this problem CBH leased accommodation from other
housing providers to ensure that there was a core stock of decent units
available for the majority of temporary accommodation needs, with B&B
only used to meet exceptional demand.
This strategy has generated a saving of £35,000 in 2014/15 for the
General Fund and, equally importantly, is now providing an improved
standard of temporary accommodation with a kitchen and washing
machine making life much better for families.
b)

Corporate Facilities and Highways Engineering
CBC undertook a Fundamental Service Review that identified that
efficiencies could be achieved by transferring the Council’s Corporate
Building Services and Facilities Management Teams to CBH.
As part of the transfer the Council was able to retain £31,000 of the
Team’s salary budget, with CBH making efficiency savings in service
delivery through synergies with its other services to meet this budget
pressure.
Further savings were achieved in procurement. Before the transfer both
CBC and CBH were each procuring similar contracts for services like
painting and decorating. Once the Council’s Team was part of CBH it
could use the contracts CBH had, saving the Council an estimated
£15,000 in consultancy fees to manage these procurement exercises.
Following the success of this transferring these services, CBC transferred
the Highways Engineering function to CBH. Once in CBH this function
came under an existing CBH manager’s remit, allowing CBC to make an
efficiency saving of £50,000 for the old manager’s post.

c)

Capital works management
The CBH Asset Management team that manage the delivery of capital
works have been the subject of continuous review and improvement
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throughout the period 2010- 2015. Through the introduction of technology
and new ways of working they have been able to manage significantly
larger capital works programmes without a proportionate increase in their
costs. This has led to their professional fee overhead percentage of the
capital works falling from 17.8% in 2011/12 to 11.32% in 2014/15. By
reducing the Asset Management team’s costs CBH is enabling the capital
budget to deliver more improvements to CBC’s housing stock.
d)

Revenue Repairs
CBH delivers a repair service primarily through its own direct labour
organisation supported by specialist sub-contractors. Through a
programme of constant improvement this service has consistently kept
annual cost increases below the BCIS, the construction industry’s main
inflation index. For example, BCIS rose 5% in 2014/15 compared to the
0.5% increase in the repairs service budget.
In addition the service has under spent budget for the last 2 years
allowing it to contribute £150,000 to CBH’s reserves and return £86,000
of management fee to CBC in 2014/15.
The service has also successfully traded with external organisations and
has returned a trading profit after direct costs (but before contribution to
overheads) of:
• 2012/13 £8k
• 2013/14 £55k
• 2014/15 £12k

6. VfM through asset management
CBC’s housing stock is one of its largest assets and as such it needs skilled
management from CBC and CBH to ensure it delivers optimum financial and social
returns. CBC and CBH have developed an asset management strategy to drive
effective management of the housing stock. Alongside the strategy, CBH supported
CBC in preparing a 30 year HRA business plan.
CBH have assessed all the stock using the Housing Quality Network Net Present
Value model to arrive at a net present value for each property, taking into account
future rental income and maintenance or refurbishment costs on a property by
property basis.
The aim is to use this information to maximise the value gained from the housing
stock, in both financial and social value terms, by informing strategic decisions on:
•
•
•
•

Which homes should be retained and invested in;
Whether homes should be converted;
If some homes should be disposed of;
Whether homes should be demolished and the land footprint either
developed or disposed of.

Other initiatives to enhance VfM in asset management include:
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•
•
•

Long-term partnering arrangements with maintenance/construction partners
to deliver the Colchester Borough Homes Standard;
Membership of a consortium purchasing scheme;
Reducing fuel poverty by introducing Solar panels and air and ground source
heat pumps wherever possible.

7. Comparison to other organisations
By comparing cost and performance to other organisations CBH can get a guide to
how it is performing and whether it is delivering VfM. CBH is a member of
Housemark and regularly takes part in their benchmarking exercise which
compares member organisations’ costs and performance over a range of housing
management functions for housing associations, local authorities and other ALMOs.
Some headline figures from the 2013/14 exercise are shown below:
Benchmarking key
Upper
Quartile

Middle
Upper

Median

Middle
Lower

Lower
Quartile

Efficiency summary
Cost KPI Quartile
Business
activity

Cost KPI

Overheads

Overhead costs as
% adjusted turnover

Major works
& cyclical
maintenance

Total CPP of Major
Works & Cyclical
Maintenance

Responsive
repairs &
void works

Total CPP of
Responsive Repairs
& Void Works

Colchester
Borough
Homes
(2013/2014)

Colchester
Borough
Homes
(2012/2013)

Quality KPI Quartile
Quality KPI

Overhead costs as % direct
revenue costs
Percentage of tenants satisfied
with the overall quality of their
home (GN & HfOP)
Percentage of dwellings that are
non-decent
Percentage of tenants satisfied
with repairs and maintenance (GN
& HfOP)
Average number of calendar days
taken to complete repairs
Average re-let time in days
(standard re-lets)
Percentage of tenants satisfied
with the service provided (GN &
HfOP)

Housing
management

Total CPP of
Housing
Management

Percentage of anti-social
behaviour cases resolved
successfully
Current tenant rent arrears as % of
rent due

Estate
services

Total CPP of Estate
Services

Percentage of tenants satisfied
with their neighbourhood as a
place to live (GN & HfOP)

Colchester
Borough
Homes
(2013/2014)

Colchester
Borough
Homes
(2012/2013)
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These tables show CBH is an effective, low-cost organisation, positioned amongst
the top performers on the majority of cost measures as well as rent arrears and
overhead costs.
For each service HouseMark uses two or three performance measures to judge
whether the service has good or poor performance. This can be an overly simplistic
way to categorise a service’s performance, as for example resident involvement,
which is a strong service in Colchester, is labelled as poor performing due mainly to
CBH holding incomplete diversity information on tenants.
The cost per property of major works and cyclical maintenance falling in the high
cost sector should be seen as positive as this reflects that there was a significant
investment in improving the stock in that year.
8. VfM action plan
As part of its VfM strategy CBH has developed an action plan to drive VfM over the
next 3 years. Progress against the plan will be reviewed by the Board through its
Committees and by a set of VfM key performance indicators.
Keynotes from the plan are:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Savings: Identify savings for 2016/17 and 2017/18 as part of the ‘future
proofing’ project;
Service improvements: Improve void performance and to develop web
based services to improve customer access and information;
Increasing income: Develop trading activity;
Procurement: Make best use of procurement frameworks and implement
E-procurement;
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e)
f)
g)

h)

Asset Management: Carry out full options appraisal to improve the return
on asset for lower performing stock;
Performance management: Implement quarterly VfM meetings with
managers;
Cultural change: Promote the new VfM strategy to staff and train them
on the importance of VfM, publicise VfM gains to residents and other
stakeholders;
Social return on investment: Clarify approach to Corporate Social
Responsibility, work with partners to maximise opportunities for added
social value e.g. sponsorship, apprenticeships, volunteering.
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Glossary

Cashable
savings

Efficiencies achieved to increase resources available or to
reduce budget requirements

HCA

Homes and Communities Agency, the regulator for social
housing

HouseMark

Nationwide specialist housing benchmarking organisation
which allows social landlords to compare cost and
performance against other landlords

HQN

Housing Quality Network, a training and consultancy
company providing support for organisations to improve
their performance.

Net present
value (NPV)

The difference between the value of cash inflows and the
value of cash outflows. NPV is used in capital budgeting to
analyse the profitability of an investment or project.

Non-cashable
savings

Improving quality or productivity for the same level of
resources.

Registered
Provider

An organisation which appears on the Statutory Register of
Providers of Social Housing. Registered social housing is
subject to regulation by the HCA.

Value for
Money
Standard

One of the regulatory standards Registered Providers are
expected to reach.
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1. Introduction & purpose
At Colchester Borough Homes Value for Money (VfM) is one of our core
values. One of the key priorities in our Medium Term Delivery Plan 2014-17 is
to Make the most of resources and opportunities, to achieve:
•
•
•
•

Increased customer satisfaction
Improved range, scope and quality of services
Better value for money
An organisation fit for the future.

We aim to maximise VfM both to support our wider strategic ambitions and to
demonstrate to stakeholders how we are getting the most we can from our
resources. This strategy sets out our approach to VfM and the areas we will
focus on to achieve it.

2. What is Value for Money?
VfM is high when there is a balance between relatively low costs, high
productivity and successful outcomes. The traditional approach to VfM
focuses on:





Getting the same for less
Getting more for the same cost/resources
Getting better quality for the same cost/resources
Getting better results in return for an investment in increased resources
that is lower than value of the improvements.

However, cost and efficiency are not the only drivers in the social housing
sector. VfM for Colchester Borough Homes means ensuring that we operate
efficiently and effectively, allowing us to maximise the services we offer to our
residents and communities. To reflect the more holistic work we do we
propose to adopt the following definition of Value for Money for the purposes
of this strategy:
The delivery of our social objectives and
business strategy in the most cost-effective way
2.1

The Value for Money Standard

As the regulator for social housing, the Homes and Community Agency (HCA)
has outlined what it expects social landlords to deliver in relation to VfM.
Meeting Value for Money Standard is not a requirement for Colchester
Borough Homes as we are not a Registered Provider. Nevertheless, we aim
to achieve the best practice for the sector. Our self-assessment against the
Value for Money Standard as at April 2015 is attached at Appendix 1.
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3. Value for Money objectives
Our approach to value for money over the next three years will concentrate on
these key objectives:
•
•
•
•

Maximising the resources available to us
Improving performance and customer satisfaction
Increasing income
Achieving the best possible social return for every pound we
spend

4. Delivering the VfM objectives
Actions to deliver our VfM objectives will be focusing in particular on these
areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Savings
Service improvement
Increased income
Procurement
Asset management
Performance management
Cultural change
Social return on investment

Appendix 2 uses these key principles to outline our VfM action plan for the
next three years. The Director of Resources will be responsible for ensuring
that appropriate budgets are set to deliver the strategy, and where necessary,
that specialist skills are employed to augment existing staff.
4.1

Savings

We have made significant savings in recent years and these are set out in
detail in the attached VfM Self-assessment. They include not only savings for
CBH, but for the Council, both in the HRA and the General Fund, and these
have been reflected in our management fee.
These savings have been made both directly in the Management Fee and
indirectly in the General Fund (GF) and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA),
in respect of budgets that are managed by CBH. There have also been noncashable savings.
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The total of these is as follows:

Management Fee
Housing Revenue
Account
General Fund

Cash
Savings
2013/14

Cash
Savings
2014/15

Non-Cash
Savings
2013/14

£
53,000
791,000

£
20,000
427,000

£
150,000
74,000

155,000

175,000

5,000

999,000

622,000

229,000

In addition to this there have been one off savings in the two years totalling
£533,000.
There have also been year-on-year improvements in performance as set out
in the VfM Self-assessment.
We are a low-cost organisation and we perform well on cost in benchmarking
comparator groups. There is little scope for major reductions in costs over the
life of this strategy without significantly affecting the quality of the services we
offer. Nonetheless, we will continue to drive out savings wherever possible.
Projected savings for 2015/16 are detailed in Appendix 4 and summarised
below.

Cash Savings

Management Fee
Housing Revenue Account
General Fund

£
44,000
217,000
140,000
401,000

In 2015/16 we will conduct a project to ‘future proof’ the organisation for the
coming years. The project will focus on our senior management structure and
our readiness to trade externally.
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4.2

Service improvement

Here we will be looking at how we deliver our services in order to improve our
economy, efficiency and effectiveness while maintaining a strong resident
focus and resident involvement in setting priorities to enhance customer
satisfaction.
We will set aside £200,000 to support improvements to performance and
customer satisfaction over the life of this strategy and we will use a business
case approach to allocating funds for this.
We aim to streamline business processes to gain efficiencies. In particular we
have identified a number of ICT initiatives to help us deliver better. We are
investing in our current housing management systems and looking at ways we
can better communicate digitally with our residents. We are also focusing on
technology which will enable us to work in a more mobile way.
Targets for improving performance are set out in our Medium Term Delivery
Plan and we also set out a number of specific KPIs related to Value for Money
in Appendix 3. We will focus on a number of areas identified in our
benchmarking analysis as needing improvement, for example estate services.
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4.3

Increased income

One of our key goals is the income from new business ventures. We have a
Trading Strategy and action plan in place to support us in building on the
income we have already made from commercial activities. We aim to set up a
subsidiary to enable us to trade more effectively. The key areas we will focus
on are:
• Capital Project Management
• Lettings Property Management
• Repairs and Maintenance
• Risk and Environment Services.
We will continue to seek out grant funding to enable us to maximise the
resources available to us and the Council.
Our ‘future proofing’ project will income by focusing on the organisation’s
readiness to trade externally and increase income.
4.4

Procurement

Improving how we buy our goods and services will help drive VfM gains. We
aim to make full use of the opportunities both to make savings through
procurement and to improve satisfaction as we invest in our homes.
We will continue to evaluate material procurement decisions using a variety of
measures including price, quality and resident satisfaction. Resident
satisfaction will be a key performance indicator for any contractor/partner we
work with. Satisfaction will form part of the contract review process for existing
partners/contractors to help gather evidence of change and the impacts
achieved.
We will aim to maximise the use of local suppliers and contractors when
purchasing goods and services to support the local economy and continue to
require major contractors to provide apprenticeships and employment
opportunities for local people.
As part of the procurement process, residents will be involved assessing the
social value of our procurement decisions as well as assessing cost and
quality through:
• Annual review of suppliers
• Re-procurement programme for all major works contracts taking into
account market forces and the new Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
• Looking for collaborative working arrangements on all major contracts
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4.5

Asset management

Our approach to asset management is much wider than a simple investment
plan and we have a clear plan to maximise the value we gain from our stock.
We intend to ensure we have a clear understanding of the relative value of
each unit and our own operating footprint to ensure that our resources are
focused on the best performing properties (from a social and financial
perspective).
We will measure the return on our assets and consider alternative options for
existing homes where the cost of development/refurbishment/maintenance
and/or management no longer represents VfM. This data will be presented to
the Council so that strategic decisions can be taken, including, for example:



Retaining homes and increasing investment in them
Assessing the most cost-effective way of delivering investment to the
retained homes
Assessing whether homes should be converted
Assessing whether homes should be disposed of
Assessing whether homes should be demolished and the land footprint
either developed or disposed of.





We will ensure that the Council’s homes meet the Colchester Borough Homes
Home Standard as agreed with residents. This higher standard will help to
ensure that our asset management programme is delivered for the right price
but provides homes of the right quality. We will also ensure that the Standard
Assessment Procedure (SAP) ratings are maximised and that new
technologies are utilised in an attempt to reduce fuel poverty.
Initiatives to enhance the VfM aspect of our asset management include:
•
•
•
•
•

Long-term partnering arrangements with maintenance/construction
partners to deliver the Colchester Borough Homes Standard
Membership of a consortium purchasing scheme.
Assessing the 'Return on Assets' of each property
Undertaking a detailed review of all our homes in management in order
to identify the homes with the lowest financial returns and proposing
solutions to enhance those returns.
Reducing fuel poverty by introducing Solar panels and air and ground
source heat pumps wherever possible.
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4.6

Performance management

VfM will be further integrated into the planning and performance management
frameworks through:
•
•
•
•
•

Strong financial management
Quarterly VfM reviews with managers, within the service improvement plan
framework, to flag up risks and opportunities to be reported to the
executive team
Robust performance management structure with VfM included in
performance reports routinely
Benchmarking with peer groups using HouseMark benchmarking data
Resident involvement in setting priorities and monitoring performance.

4.7

Cultural change

We believe that a strong culture of VfM is crucial to deliver efficiencies. It is
only through shared understanding and appreciation of VfM at all points in the
organisation that we will be able to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of
the services we offer.
We will put in place a framework which supports the delivery of these
objectives. Specifically we will undertake:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

4.8

VfM reviews and service improvement reviews
Budget reviews to identify growth and savings
Project management of key organisational deliverables and process
improvements programmes
Risk and cost/benefit analysis assessment and reporting
Making more effective use of resources (including ICT and property)
Achieving economies through partnership working where appropriate
An efficient organisational structure maintained through the active
management of staffing costs and information
Promotion of diversity and inclusion
Appropriate and effective auditing systems and processes, both
internal and external.
Social return on investment

We take corporate social responsibility seriously and in 2015/16 we will be
working to set out our approach to achieving this.
We aim to achieve the best possible return for every pound we spend,
whether a service is provided by CBH or an organisation working on our
behalf.
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We will continue to provide grant funding to community organisations and
projects. We aim to channel new income and efficiency savings into socially
beneficial projects, maximise environmental benefits through grant funding
and work with partners to maximise opportunities for added social value, e.g.
sponsorship, apprenticeships and volunteering.
The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 means social value, economic,
social and environmental wellbeing have to be considered when
commissioning contracts for services, both above and below the EU
commissioning threshold. It also includes a duty to consider consultation with
affected stakeholders in the design of services, and we will be ensuring that
this is reflected in our procurement practice.

5. Monitoring and review
Our VfM will be assessed by:
• Working with residents to identify the services/products they value the
most
• Using benchmarking to identify the reasons behind differences in our
running costs and those of other providers and as a result taking steps to
improve VfM, or to understand the reasons for any difference
• Measuring service quality against service standards and resident
satisfaction
• Using a suite of KPIs that have a VfM focus (see Appendix 3)
• Adopting best practice in procurement. Achieving efficiency improvements
year on year by streamlining processes, but maintaining an awareness of
any potential diseconomies
• Working with partners in order to maximise our joint resources
5.1

Regular self-assessment

The adoption of this strategy and the implementation of our action plan will
ensure our VfM plans satisfy both our business needs and the HCA’s Value
for Money Standard. An annual VfM self-assessment will be carried out,
involving:
•
•
•

A report to the board.
A user-friendly report to residents/stakeholders.
A briefing for staff on the key targets/outcomes of VfM plans.

The Director of Resources will provide an update on the delivery of the action
plan on an annual basis and make recommendations for any amendments
to the plan. The Director of Resources will report any significant deviations
from the Plan to the Chief Executive at the earliest opportunity.
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In addition, we will carry out stress testing on all significant commercial
business ventures. We will also assist the Council in stress testing their 30year HRA Business Plan.
5.2

Scrutiny

The development of effective scrutiny arrangements through our audit
arrangements, Audit Committee and the Board and resident scrutiny are vital
elements in delivering VfM.
Performance against this strategy will be reviewed by the Finance and Audit
Committee and the strategy will be reviewed every three years.
5.3

Key performance indicators

Our headline set of KPIs can be found at www.cbhomes.org.uk/deliveryplan.
In addition to these, a number of specific key performance indicators will show
how we are maximising our resources. These are both cost and quality
measures, with an emphasis on efficiency and customer satisfaction. A list of
the measures we will use to monitor VfM is attached at Appendix 3.
We will compare our operating costs and performance with those of similar
organisations via the HouseMark benchmarking service and investigate the
reasons for any outliers.
5.4

Earmarked balances

A key element of VfM and sound financial management is to ensure
Colchester Borough Homes has sufficient reserves to meet its emerging risks,
and especially as it embarks on new business ventures. We will earmark our
balances as part of our overall approach to risk management.
These earmarked balances fall into six categories and the level of balances
are:
Contingency for the company’s maximum liability should it
exceed its repairs budget

£200k

A general contingency to meet any unforeseen overspends in
the year that might arise from external influences outside the
company’s control

£250k

Reserve for dilapidation on leased buildings

£150k

Contingency built up from commercial trading profits that
would be available to provide working capital for new
commercial trading ventures (currently standing at £70k)

£250k

Balance to be used to support the improvement in

£200k
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performance and customer satisfaction
Any remaining balance available for specific one off items
identified by F&A Committee to pump-prime activities or
facilitate efficiencies
Total earmarked balances
Contingency
£650,000
Commercial Activities
£250,000
Performance & satisfaction £200,000

6. Consultation
We employed the services of the Chief Executive of HQN, who has advised
many Registered Providers and ALMOs on VFM, to advise and challenge the
organisation when producing this strategy.
In producing the strategy we consulted with
• CBH Board, July 2014
• The Senior Management Team and Directors of the Management Team
• A focus group through the Tenant and Leaseholder Consultative
Committee
• Colchester Borough Council in relation to the Net Present Value of the
Stock

7. References




Regulatory Framework for Social Housing
Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

8. Related Documents
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Medium Term Delivery Plan 2014-17
STAR action plan
Trading strategy
Asset Management Strategy
Procurement Policy
Liaison Protocol & Performance Framework
Colchester Borough Homes HouseMark report 2014/15
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Appendix 1 – CBH Value for Money Self-Assessment – April 2015
Appendix 2 – CBH Value for Money Action Plan
Appendix 3 – CBH VfM Key Performance Indicators
Appendix 4 – Projected savings 2015/16
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Appendix 1 to VFM Strategy

CBH Value For Money Self-Assessment - April 2015
Introduction
HCA Value for Money Standard
Required outcomes
Specific expectations
Self-assessment against the Value for Money standard
Achievements to date
Savings

2
2
2
2
3
5
6

Management fee

6

Delivering new services

6

Service improvement

7

Changing the way we work

7

Improving performance

7

Service reviews

8

Reducing costs

8

Sharing services

8

Increasing income

8

CBH income

8

Procurement

9

Asset management

9

Asset management strategy

9

Sheltered housing

9

Temporary accommodation

10

Performance management

10

Cultural change

11

Social return on investment

12

Social investment

12

Environmental initiatives

13

How we compare with other organisations
Areas for improvement
Appendix 1 – Efficiency Savings 2013/14 and 2014/15
Appendix 2 – Net Present Value Model
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Introduction
We set out below how we match up against the social housing regulator’s Value for
Money Standard. We detail our return on assets, our costs and how they compare and
our savings to date. We also set out how the efficiencies we have made are allowing us to
deliver a high quality service and added value to our residents and communities.

HCA Value for Money Standard
Meeting the Homes and Communities Agency’s Value for Money Standard is not a
requirement for Colchester Borough Homes as we are not a Registered Provider of Social
Housing. Nevertheless, we aim to achieve best practice and believe it is of benefit to test
our performance against the regulatory standard, which is set out below.

Required outcomes
Registered Providers shall articulate and deliver a comprehensive and strategic
approach to achieving VfM in meeting their organisation’s objectives. Their boards
must maintain a robust assessment of the performance of all their assets and
resources (including for example financial, social and environmental returns). This
will take into account the interests of and commitments to stakeholders, and be
available to them in a way that is transparent and accessible. This means
managing their resources economically, efficiently and effectively to provide quality
services and homes, and planning for and delivering on-going improvements in
VfM.

Specific expectations
1.1

2.2

Registered Providers shall:

Have a robust approach to making decisions on the use of resources
to deliver the provider’s objectives, including an understanding of the
trade-offs and opportunity costs of its decisions

Understand the return on its assets, and have a strategy for
optimising the future returns on assets – including rigorous appraisal
of all potential options for improving VfM including the potential
benefits in alternative delivery models - measured against the
organisation’s purpose and objectives

Have performance management and scrutiny functions which are
effective at driving and delivering improved VfM performance

Understand the costs and outcomes of delivering specific services
and which underlying factors influence these costs and how they do
so.
Registered Providers’ boards shall demonstrate to stakeholders how they
are meeting this standard. As part of that process, on an annual basis, they
will publish a robust self-assessment which sets out in a way that is
transparent and accessible to stakeholders how they are achieving VfM in
delivering their purpose and objectives.
The assessment shall:
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•
•
•

Enable stakeholders to understand the return on assets measured
against the organisation’s objectives
Set out the absolute and comparative costs of delivering specific
services
Evidence the VfM gains that have been and will be made and how these
have and will be realised over time.

Self-assessment against the Value for Money standard
Required outcomes & specific
expectations

How CBH meets the Standard

Social housing providers should
articulate
and
deliver
a
comprehensive
and
strategic
approach to achieving VfM in
meeting
their
organisation’s
objectives.

One of the key priorities in our Medium Term
Delivery Plan 2014-17 is to Make the most of
resources and opportunities, to achieve:
• Increased customer satisfaction
• Improved range, scope and quality of services
• Better value for money
• An organisation fit for the future.
We have a comprehensive Value for Money
strategy in place from 2015.

Their boards must maintain a robust
assessment of the performance of
all their assets and resources
(including for example financial,
social and environmental returns).

The Board and committees are given regular
assurance reports on performance and finances.
The Value for Money strategy provides for an
annual VfM self-assessment.

This will take into account the
interests of and commitments to
stakeholders, and be available to
them in a way that is transparent
and accessible.

The VfM strategy has been informed by
consultation with stakeholders as well as other
factors such as tenant feedback, budgets, the
Council’s asset management strategy and the
overall aims contained in the Medium Term
Delivery Plan.

This
means
managing
their The VfM strategy & action plan focuses on the
resources economically, efficiently following areas:
and effectively to provide quality
• Service improvement
services and homes, and planning
• Increased income
for
and
delivering
on-going
• Procurement
improvements in VfM.
• Asset management
• Performance management
• Cultural change
• Social return on investment
Have a robust approach to making We produce estimates on a zero – based
decisions on the use of resources to budgeting approach each year.
deliver the provider’s objectives,
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including an understanding of the We have a track record of effective decision
trade-offs and opportunity costs of making on the use of resources, e.g.
its decisions.
Fundamental service reviews to achieve
significant savings & delivering new services.
We have a robust decision-making framework in
place for commercial opportunities, including a
Business Opportunities Panel, trading protocol
and risk evaluation process.
Understand the return on its assets,
and have a strategy for optimising
the future returns on assets –
including rigorous appraisal of all
potential options for improving value
for money including the potential
benefits in alternative delivery
models – measured against the
organisation’s
purpose
and
objectives.

We have worked closely with the local authority to
develop an asset management strategy that:

Have performance management
and scrutiny functions which are
effective at driving and delivering
improved
value
for
money
performance.

We keep accurate and timely data of our
performance levels and costs.

•

Is based on good quality data about stock
condition against the Colchester Standard
• Is kept up to date
• Goes down to the “granular” level required by
the HCA as we have a net present value for
each home
• Is used to inform decisions on when to invest
in or dispose of properties
• A net present value for the overall stock has
been produced using the HQN model
(Appendix 2).
• CBH has supported the Council in producing a
30-year business plan for the stock, which
demonstrates that the Housing revenue
Account is sustainable.
• Identifies the SAP rating per dwelling to
enable us to target investment
We have a track record of informed decision
making,
e.g.
sheltered
housing
options
appraisals.

We make regular reports to the Board, the
Finance and Audit Committee and our parent
local authority on financial and operating
performance.
Tenant and Leaseholder Consultative Committee
and other resident involvement groups.
Consider projects and scrutinize reports,
providing feedback to our Board. Mystery
shopping and quality assurance assessors
inspect and report on services.

Understand the costs and outcomes We benchmark our costs and performance levels
of delivering specific services and against other housing organisations through
which underlying factors influence
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these costs and how they do so

HouseMark.
Performance indicator targets are reviewed in the
context of the budget available and take into
account the relative trade-off of cost versus
performance as well as internal factors such as
costs of materials and cost of labour.

Registered providers’ boards shall
demonstrate to stakeholders how
they are meeting this standard. As
part of that process, on an annual
basis, they will publish a robust selfassessment which sets out in a way
that is transparent and accessible to
stakeholders how they are achieving
value for money in delivering their
purpose and objectives.

This document sets out how we are meeting the
standard.
Annual VfM self-assessment to be produced as
part of the monitoring of the VfM strategy. This
will involve:
•
•
•

A report to the Board
A user-friendly report to residents/
stakeholders
A briefing for staff on the key targets/
outcomes of VfM plans.

Annual VfM assessment to enable The asset management strategy will explain how
stakeholders to understand the the Colchester Standard will be achieved for all
return on assets measured against our homes
the organisation’s objectives
Annual VfM assessment to set out We do this through participating
the absolute and comparative costs HouseMark benchmarking club
of delivering specific services
Evidence the VfM gains that have
been and will be made and how
these have and will be realised over
time.

in

the

Evidence of our VfM gains to date is set out in
Appendix 1.
We are a low cost organisation and our focus
going forward will be to improve performance at
existing costs. This is set out in the Medium
Term Delivery Plan, the VfM strategy and the
STAR action plan.

Achievements to date
We list below some of the ways we have already made significant progress in the areas
of:
• Savings
• Service improvement
• Increasing income
• Procurement
• Asset management
• Performance management
• Cultural change
• Social return on investment
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Savings
We have made significant cashable and non-cashable savings in recent years and the
savings made in 2013/14 and 2014/15 are set out in detail in the Appendix 1. They
include not only savings for CBH, but for the Council, both in the HRA and the General
Fund.
The total of these are as follows:

Management Fee
Housing Revenue Account
General Fund

Cash Savings
2013/14

Cash Savings
2014/15

Non-Cash
Savings
2013/14

£
53,000
791,000
155,000

£
20,000
427,000
175,000

£
150,000
74,000
5,000

999,000

622,000

229,000

In addition to this there have been one-off savings in the two years totalling £533,000.
Management fee
We made savings of £520,000 to the management fee in the three years up to and
including 2013/14. This has been through a structured Fundamental Service Review
approach.
During 2014/15, we achieved a £60,000 saving on our management fee, achieved
through a Housing Management review and a saving on consultancy fees in Property
Services.
Delivering new services
We have taken on additional services from our parent local authority. These include
housing options and homelessness services, the management of temporary
accommodation, the provision of a borough-wide anti-social behaviour service,
management of public buildings and the administration of disabled facilities grants. We
are also assisting the Council in delivering new affordable rented homes.
We have been able to generate significant savings in assimilating these new services: for
example, in 2014/15 we made a saving of £50k on the Corporate Facilities Management
budget, and we have made significant savings for the Council by reducing the use of bed
and breakfast and the management of temporary accommodation. The costs have been
reduced by a net saving of £35,000pa to the General Fund.

07b2. VfM att 2 self-assessment

6

95
Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities
Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money

Service improvement
Changing the way we work
We have developed an agile working approach with flexible and home working policies to
make best use of available office space.
We have invested in developing dynamic work scheduling and materials management
systems for the Direct Labour Organisation which has allowed us to move to a system of
delivering repairs without the need for stores or a works depot. This asset has been
realised in cash terms through disposal and generated a net £1 million to the Council.
We are developing hard-to-let housing stock and our empty property management to
improve void performance. The cost of Estate services are part of Service level
agreement with the Local Authority and under review to make costs comparable.
Transferring the repairs budgets to CBH and handing over overall control and
responsibility has led to efficiency savings.
Improving performance
We have achieved a number of improvements in our key performance indicators. This
means we are not only reducing cost but improving performance. Some examples of this
include:
2014/15
Performance
as at Jan 15

2013/14
Performance

2012/13
Performance

Overall satisfaction with landlord

83

78

78

Satisfaction with repairs service (%)

99

99

96

Repairs completed on time (%)

99

98

97

Antisocial behaviour cases resolved
(%)

96

95

92

Satisfaction with neighbourhood (%)

87

83

83

Complaints upheld (%)

30

64

64

1.15

1.24

1.44

KPI

Former tenant arrears (%)
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Service reviews
We have worked on a range of initiatives to change the way we work and deliver better
value for money, including:
• The way we deliver support to sheltered housing
• Introducing pre-tenancy workshops
•

Developing Business partnerships (Communications)

•

Changing the way in which Housing management services are delivered (from
specialist teams to generic housing officers)

•

Review of the Business Support Services and Human Resources Section.

Reducing costs
We have introduced a number of measures to reduce costs, such as:
•

Making savings on printing, postage and the processing of bulk mailings by reviewing
office administration

•

Reducing advertising and training costs by reviewing our approach to recruitment and
staff retention and development

Sharing services
Sharing services with the local authority – for example our Customer services are
delivered through a shared services centre at the town centre library and we have a
business partnership arrangement for communications. These shared service
arrangements have enabled us to provide a more diverse and high quality service whilst
reducing our cost outlay.
For the past 4 years we have shared a Director of Resources with another ALMO,
bringing benefit of costs saving and also sharing skills and working practices across the
two organisations.

Increasing income
CBH income
We have a Trading Strategy and action plan in place and we have established a protocol
with CBC to govern decision-making relating to trading opportunities. The Board has also
set up a Business Opportunities Panel. To date we have earned over £70k to put into a
reserve to support future trading activities.
We host the co-ordinator for the regional Choice based lettings consortium/partnership for
which we are paid a management fee.
We have appointed a dedicated officer to seek grant funding wherever possible. This has
been particularly successful and has enabled us to raise around £400k to date.
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In addition to commercial income, we have been successful in attracting grant funding in
excess of £500k to invest in energy efficiency measures in 2014/15.
Income generated from the installation of PV panels has created additional income of
£110,000p.a. to the General Fund from the Feed in Tariff.
We have helped the Council bring 360 garages back into rental in areas of high demand,
creating potential revenue of £125,000 p.a. in a full year.
We have introduced administration charges to the management of leasehold properties
Service charges have been reviewed in order to reflect the cost of eligible services to
tenants and leaseholders.

Procurement
We have joined Essex Procurement Hub and are using this to procure non - EU
procurement size project, for example the new cleaning contract – the savings on the new
contract were £21,000pa (24%).
Service level agreements with the local authority have been reviewed and updated to
deliver best value and high quality services.

Asset management
Asset management strategy
We recognise that managing our assets effectively is critical to the operation of our
business, particularly in the new ‘self-financing’ environment and ensuring effective stock
maintenance, and we have already undertaken significant active asset management
Alongside the Asset Management Strategy, CBH has supported the Council in developing
its 30-year HRA business plan, which produces a robust position for the Housing stock,
presenting significant opportunities for improving and increasing the housing provision
over the life of the business plan. Sensitivity modelling has been undertaken to reflect
changes in rental policies and the future impact of welfare reform.
The model reaches peak debt in 2019/2020 and will allow for complete repayment of
housing debt within the 30 years model or allow a further £150 million of investment to be
undertaken and still maintain the current HRA borrowing cap.
We have assessed all of our stock using the net present value model, in line with our aim
of ensuring all assets are viable and deliver a positive yield over the business planning
period of £147m. (Appendix 2)
Sheltered housing
After carrying out a full review of all of the sheltered housing schemes we manage, we set
out a long-term strategy to remodel the stock, which has involved upgrading some
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schemes and disposing of others which no longer meet the needs and aspirations of older
residents. Disposing of redundant sheltered housing schemes helped to pay for the
modernisation of the schemes that we kept. To date, our approach has meant:
•
•

•

•
•

Two sheltered schemes have been disposed of, realising an income to the Council.
Twenty two sheltered flats have been decommissioned and are now let as general
needs housing, reducing the support requirement and costs associated with hard
to let sheltered accommodation.
Four sheltered flats have been let through a nomination to the County Council to
allocate to people with learning difficulties. This has generated an income for CBC
and increased the capacity within its housing stock to enable housing in a more
diverse way.
Sixteen general-needs bedsits which were difficult to let have been converted to
eight apartments and incorporated in to an adjoining sheltered housing scheme.
One sheltered housing scheme has been re modelled from bedsit accommodation
to provide one and two bed sheltered apartments, which have been let to tenants
giving up larger homes.

Temporary accommodation
We manage 44 units of temporary accommodation on behalf of the local authority and are
committed to implementing a strategy which disposes of accommodation with shared
facilities and invests in self-contained accommodation which is more appropriate and
reduces the cost of both support and maintenance. We have reduced the use of costly
and in appropriate Bed and breakfast accommodation in favour of leasing arrangements
saving around £15k a year.

Performance management
Our performance management practices include the following:
•

Performance monitoring
Performance management is incorporated into business planning via the Medium
Term Delivery Plan. A Liaison and Performance Framework has been drawn up as a
schedule to the management agreement to incorporate robust performance
management within CBH and in partnership with CBC and residents. The framework
also incorporates local and national benchmarking as well as audits and external
assessment frameworks (e.g. accreditations).
As well as headline measured monitored as part of the Delivery Plan, a range of other
financial and performance measures are reported and discussed on a regular basis.
KPIs are built into Service Level Agreements and contracts to ensure value for money.

•

Risk management
Our strategic and operational risk registers are reviewed on a regular basis and our
risk management strategy is reviewed on a 3-year cycle.

07b2. VfM att 2 self-assessment
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•

Developing scrutiny by board and residents
We have undertaken a comprehensive programme of scrutiny training with the Board
and residents. The terms of reference of the Operations Committee have been
amended to emphasise performance and benchmarking.

Cultural change
Our approach to developing a positive VfM culture includes:
•

Clearly defining the organisation’s aims, strategies and policies
We have developed a Medium Term Delivery Plan and a number of key policies and
strategies which are available to staff and regularly publicised. This forms the basis of
team service plans and individual objectives.

•

Linking VfM with our values and behaviour which promote resident focus and
excellence in service delivery
One of the core company values is Delivering Value for Money and this is regularly
discussed and promoted with staff, for example through our staff appraisal process

•

Adopting good practice from within and outside our own organisation
We have been externally assessed areas and gained recognised accreditations in a
number of areas, including complaints

•

Using appropriate project management methodology which ensures projects
are delivered efficiently and effectively
All senior managers have been trained in the PRINCE2 methodology, and a business
case approach is taken to new projects

•

Ensuring adherence to contract procedure rules which ensures that proper
practices are followed when tendering and which helps secure VfM
We have retendered the cleaning contract using Essex Procurement Hub and the key
contracts under EU procurement regulations.

•

Ensuring effective communication and staff development so that the culture and
aims of the organisation permeate to, and are identifiable at, all levels within the
organisation
We achieved the Investors in People accreditation in 2012 and are aiming to achieve
IiP Silver in June 2015. A new organisational development plan has been produced to
support these aims.

•

Ensuring collaborative/partnership working both internally and externally so
that the maximum business benefit can be achieved
We have implemented solar panels across the stock working closely with contractors
and the Council, gaining grant funding and efficiency savings.
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Social return on investment
By delivering efficient services and maximising existing and new resources, we are able
to invest in our communities. We are particularly committed to developing and supporting
initiatives which have a tangible return in our communities.

Social investment
Key projects include:
•

Family Intervention Project. We measure the social and economic returns of this.

•

Support for residents affected by welfare reform. We have developed strong
partnerships with our local authority and others, including the DWP, housing
associations and charities, to deal with the impact of welfare reform. Our work,
recognised as a national example of best practice by Citizens Advice, has involved
effective data sharing, communications and individual support for those affected and
has had real success: we reduced our benefit cap caseload from 220 to 98, and our
under occupation caseload by a third from almost 1,100 to just over 700. Practical
measures, such as new financial incentives for moving, allow us both to mitigate the
impact on residents and avoid more costly interventions such as court action

•

Colchester Housing Intervention Project (Catch 22). This service provides intensive
support for eight to ten families at a time. It has helped 53 families over 4 years and in
the process has addressed problems including tenancy breakdown, eviction, money
problems and antisocial behaviour. It has also supported family members into
education and training. The service is run at an annual cost of £22k including staff
salary. But managing families with complex needs without such specialist intervention
is estimated to cost an average of £4,000 per family per year, including rent arrears
and anti-social behaviour. Eviction costs a further £6,000 per property and placing
families in B&B £630 a week. The intervention service therefore provides valuable
support for families with complex needs, while also addressing potentially high
ongoing costs.

•

We have worked with our local authority to develop an armed forces covenant,
designed to support the housing and wider needs of ex-service personnel. We
rehoused 26 families with an armed forces priority in 2013/14. Our work placement
programme has allowed 15 injured ex-service personnel to gain work experience and
one is now working on a temporary contract with Colchester Borough Council. Our
partnership has also seen the development of a strong partnership with the Army to
tackle anti-social behaviour around garrison land and ranges and to offer diversionary
activities for young people.

•

We have joined a cost sharing scheme, which will reduce the costs to a nearby
housing association and enable CBH to create apprenticeship opportunities for local
people.

•

Engagement with Colchester Borough Institute for training and development including
apprentice training.
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•

We support the Colchester Credit Union; Emmaus and Age UK through small grant
funds and through mentoring and releasing staff to serve on their Management Board.
A range of grant funding is also available for local voluntary agencies who can provide
specialist support for our tenants particularly those with mental health,
physical/sensory disability or drug and alcohol problems.

•

We support a training and return to work programme in partnership with a local
housing association.

•

We have seconded staff and managed a multi-agency project to deliver support to
families with complex needs in Colchester.

•

We provide work experience for local high schools and have developed an internship
programme with Colchester Institute.

Environmental initiatives
Our enhanced Colchester Standard sets out our plans to improve energy efficiency
through replacement boilers and insulation. We are looking at additional works to improve
energy efficiency and tackle fuel poverty, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

We have completed a programme of producing Energy Performance Certificates for
all individual dwellings to better inform tenants and support bids for environmental
grants.
Implementing the Council’s energy initiatives including solar energy storing and air
and ground source heat pumps.
Obtaining ISO 14001 (Environmental Management Systems) accreditation for all
property-related services
Reducing the number of properties served by solid fuel to single digits and actively
replacing oil fired heating systems with air source heat pumps.
Replacing all landlord and public lighting we manage with LED systems.
Ensuring all trade waste is recycled, which has reduced costs of waste management
by 50% thus enabling us to maintain our low-cost service provision against rising
construction costs.
We are managing a continuing programme of installation of photovoltaic panels on
some 2,000 socially rented homes by the end of 2015/16 where tenants benefit from
free generated electricity.

How we compare with other organisations
We are members of HouseMark and are therefore able to benchmark our costs,
performance and value for money against other housing organisations, which includes
housing associations and local authorities as well as ALMOs. Our HouseMark analysis
compares us with around 300 housing organisations nationally.
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As well as the efficiency summaries shown below, the HouseMark service provides a
Value for Money Quadrant, which is a graphical representation designed to clearly show
our position in relation to other organisations on a combination of selected cost and
performance measures. The performance element is heavily weighted towards STAR
survey outcomes in this analysis.
Benchmarking key
Upper
Quartile

Middle
Upper

Median

Middle
Lower

Lower
Quartile

Efficiency summary
Cost KPI Quartile
Business
activity

Cost KPI

Overheads

Overhead costs as %
adjusted turnover

Major works &
cyclical
maintenance

Total CPP of Major
Works & Cyclical
Maintenance

Colchester
Borough
Homes
(2013/2014)

Colchester
Borough
Homes
(2012/2013)

Quality KPI Quartile
Quality KPI

Overhead costs as % direct revenue
costs
Percentage of tenants satisfied with
the overall quality of their home (GN
& HfOP)
Percentage of dwellings that are nondecent
Percentage of tenants satisfied with
repairs and maintenance (GN &
HfOP)

Responsive
repairs & void
works

Total CPP of
Responsive Repairs &
Void Works

Average number of calendar days
taken to complete repairs
Average re-let time in days (standard
re-lets)
Percentage of tenants satisfied with
the service provided (GN & HfOP)

Housing
management

Total CPP of Housing
Management

Percentage of anti-social behaviour
cases resolved successfully
Current tenant rent arrears as % of
rent due

Estate
services

Total CPP of Estate
Services
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These tables show that we are an effective, low-cost organisation. Analysis of the
HouseMark data shows we are amongst the top performers on the majority of cost
measures as well as rent arrears and overhead costs.
The position of cost per property of major works and cyclical maintenance reflects the
significantly increased resources made available for investment in the stock, made
possible largely by the favourable outcome of the self-financing regime introduced in 2012
but also in part by sound business planning, effective asset management and efficiencies
gained.
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Areas for improvement
We are in the lowest quartile in both comparison groups for tenant satisfaction with overall
services provided. Our tenant satisfaction figures are improving: our latest STAR survey,
carried out in January and February 2014, showed that 83% of tenants were now satisfied
– up five percentage points since 2010.
Nonetheless we recognise that this is an area where we can improve further and we have
set out an action plan on tenant satisfaction. Key areas include:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Improved consultation with tenants and leaseholders particularly regarding setting
rents and service charges
Better use of technology and communication to keep tenants informed during the
repairs process
A new estate management strategy aims to ensure that we deliver an efficient and
effective “cleaner, greener, safer” estate management service. This service is
monitored by resident “quality assurance assessors” to ensure that contracts comply
with agreed standards.
Improved targeting of improvement programmes to areas where residents most see
the need for work
Continued engagement with residents through neighbourhood action days. Improved
visibility of our on the ground community housing officer and neighbourhood warden
teams
Increased training and support for resident volunteers to monitor neighbourhood
services and feeding results back to tenant and leaseholders
Improvements to recycling and bin storage for flats and sheltered housing; car parking
and campaigns to reduce dog fouling.
Developing resources to provide solutions at first point of contact
Obtaining customer satisfaction results in real time - this is included in better use of
technology
Increasing ways to access services

Appendix 1 – Efficiency Savings 2013/14 and 2014/15
Appendix 2 – Net Present Value Model

David Lincoln
Director of Resources
david.lincoln@cbhomes.org.uk
01206 282354
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Appendix 2 to VFM Strategy

CBH Value For Money Action Plan 2015-18
1.

Savings
Action

1.1
1

Realise 2015/16 savings identified in VfM
strategy

1.2
1

Identify savings for 2016/17 and 2017/18 as
part of the ‘future proofing’ project

2.

Lead

Complete by

Complete/in
progress/overdue

Directors
Management Team

Mar-16

In progress

Chief Executive

Jun-16

In progress

Lead

Complete by

Complete/in
progress/overdue

Service improvement
Action

Mar – 16

2.1

Enhance customer satisfaction by
implementing the STAR action plan

Director of Housing

2.2

Improve void performance through review of
process

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.

(anticipated date
of next survey)

In progress

Director of Housing,
Director of Property
Services

Dec-15

In progress

Develop web based services to improve
Customer access and information

Director of
Resources

Dec-15

In progress

Allocate £200k of balances to set aside for
specific projects to performance &
satisfaction.

Director of
Resources

Oct-15

Specific plans/ actions relating to VfM KPI list
(appendix 3)

Director of
Resources

Mar-16

Lead

Complete by

Increasing income
Action

Complete/in
progress/overdue

3.1

Continue to implement & review trading
strategy action plan

Chief Executive

TBC

3.2

Implement findings of Colbea review

Chief Executive

Mar-16

In progress

3.3

Consider organisational readiness to trade
as part of ‘future proofing’ programme

Chief Executive

Mar-16

In progress
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4.

Procurement
Action

4.1

Review procurement, ensuring practices are
aligned with Public Contracts Regulations
2015.

4.2

Making best use of Procurement frameworks
where appropriate

4.3

Implementing E-procurement to improve
efficiencies

5.

5.2

5.3
5.4
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8

6.

Complete by

Director of Property
Services
Director of Property
Services
Director of
Resources

Complete/in
progress/overdue

Complete

Continuous

Nov-15

Delegated budgets
initially, CBH by
Apr 16

Complete by

Complete/in
progress/overdue

Oct 2015

In progress

Ongoing 20% per
annum Housing
due March 2016 Corporate
Buildings100%
June 2015

All Corporate
Buildings
completed.
Housing due
March 2016

Asset management
Action

5.1

Lead

Complete whole stock viability model

Lead
Director of Property
Services
Director of Property
Services

Completing current rolling programme of
stock condition surveys

Commission a review of listed buildings and
non-traditional property structures
Conclude review of garage sites & potential
revenue
Assist the Council to draw up a development
strategy
Develop a new five-year programme of
works based on our agreed business plan
profile.
Ensure the asset management strategy
shows clearly the NPVs for all homes
Carry out full options appraisal to improve
the Return on Assets (ROA) of our lower
performing assets.

Director of Property
Services
Director of Property
Services
Director of Property
Services
Director of Property
Services

Completed
TBA

TBA
Completed in draft

Annual

Director of Property
Services
Director of Property
Services

Continuous

Lead

Complete by

TBA due to HRA
review
Completed
Completed 2015

Performance management
Action

6.1

Incorporate stress testing into review of risk
management

Director of
Resources

Mar-17

6.2

Review performance management skillset

Director of
Resources

Mar-16
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Action

Lead

Complete by

Director of
Resources

2016/17

Complete/in
progress/overdue

6.3

Improve use of ICT to support performance
management

6.4

Quarterly VfM reviews with managers

Directors
Management Team

Mar-17

6.5

VfM included in performance reports
routinely

Directors
Management Team

Apr-17

6.6

Implement a log of cashable and noncashable savings to feed into the annual VfM
self-assessment

Director of
Resources

Apr-16

Lead

Complete by

7.1

Promote the new VfM strategy to staff and
train them on the importance of VfM to the
sector and their role in maximising VfM for
Colchester Borough Homes

Directors
Management Team

Mar-16

7.2

Publicise VfM gains to our residents & other
stakeholders

Directors
Management Team

Mar-16

7.3

At staff events identify what initiatives staff
have taken to enhance VfM across the
business.

Directors
Management Team

Mar-16

7.4

Ensure Organisational Development plan
adequately reflects VfM focus

Director of
Resources

Mar-16

Lead

Complete by

Complete/in
progress/overdue

Chief Executive

Mar-16

In Progress

7.

Cultural change
Action

8.

Complete/in
progress/overdue

Social return on investment
Action

8.1

Clarify/formalise approach to Corporate
Social Responsibility

8.2

Incorporate provisions of Public Services
(Social Value) Act 2012 into procurement
review

Director of Property
Services

8.3

Channel efficiency savings into socially
beneficial projects

Directors
Management Team

Continuous

8.4

Maximise environmental benefits through
grant funding

Director of Property
Services

Continuous

8.5

Work with partners to maximise opportunities
for added social value, e.g. sponsorship,
apprenticeships, volunteering

Directors
Management Team

Continuous
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

9

SUBJECT:

Information & Confidentiality Policy Update

REPORT BY:

Board Assurance Officer
 (01206) 282518
 owen.howell@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR DECISION
1.

Decisions Required

1.1

Members are asked to approve the updated Information & Confidentiality
Policy. This Policy forms part of Colchester Borough Homes’ Code of
Governance and so all proposed changes must be approved by the Board
before they can be applied.

2.

Background

2.1

The previous version of the Information & Confidentiality Policy was approved
by the Board in April 2013 and updated in 2014. The Policy sets out the
Company’s commitment to meeting its obligations under the Data Protection
Act 1998 and the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

2.2

The Company works closely with the Council on matters of data security and
responding to requests for information made under the two relevant Acts.

3.

Update to the Policy
The following update has been made:

3.1

3.2

Forced Subject Access Requests
From 10 March 2015, an amendment to the Data Protection Act 1998 has
made it a criminal offence to require a person to make a Subject Access
Request and reveal the result. Companies can no longer force individuals to
request the disclosure of their personal information by third parties and can no
longer require the individuals to share that information with them.
CBH has never engaged in this practice, but the Policy has been amended at
2.4 to make it clear that this is illegal.

110
3.3

On 9 July 2015 the Governance & Remuneration Committee recommended
that the updated Policy was put forward for approval by the Board.

4.

Financial Implications

4.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.

HR Implications

5.1

There are no direct HR implications arising from this report.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

7.

Health & Safety Implications

7.1

There are no direct Health & Safety implications arising from this report.

8.

Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1

There are no direct Equality & Diversity implications arising from this report.

9.

Residents at the Heart

9.1

The proposal would guarantee to residents that they will never be coerced by
CBH into requesting disclosures of their personal information from third
parties.

10.

Risk Management

10.1

There is a significant financial and reputational risk to the Company of a Data
Protection breach. The Information Commissioner has the authority to levy
fines of up to £500,000. Concerning risk to the Company’s reputation, serious
breaches are given a high profile in the media. This proposal will help to
prevent such a breach.

11.

Value for Money

11.1

There are no direct VfM implications arising from this report.

12.

Appendices

12.1

Appendix 1 – Updated Information & Confidentiality Policy.

111

Information &
Confidentiality Policy

Author: Berkeley Young, Board Assurance Officer

Version:

1.23

Date:

July
September
20145

112
Building Trust • Delivering Tenant Led Services • Commitment to our Communities
Delivering Professional Services • Providing Value for Money

Glossary
CBH

Colchester Borough Homes

DMT

Directors Management Team – the executive
management team consisting of the Chief Executive and
Directors of Housing, Property Services and Resources.

FOI

Freedom of Information

ICO

Information Commissioner’s Office

NHF

National Housing Federation

SMT

Senior Management Team

The Act

In section 2, this refers to the Data Protection Act 1998;
in section 3, this refers to the Freedom of Information Act
2000.
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1. Introduction and purpose
This document ensures Colchester Borough Homes (‘the Company’) complies
with the current legislation and best practice guidance in the areas of Data
Protection and Freedom of Information
The following legislation governs how the Company maintains data privacy for
individuals and makes information available in the public interest:
•

Data Protection Act 1998

•

Freedom of Information Act 2000

The above legislation has been interpreted and explained by the Information
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) and best practice guidance can be found on the
ICO’s website.1 Staff with queries that are not covered in the policy or
associated procedures can refer their questions to the ICO.

2. Data Protection
2.1

Introduction

In order to carry out its duties, ‘the Company has to collect and use
information about the people with whom it works, members of the public,
current, past and prospective employees, customers, suppliers and others. In
addition, the Company often has to collect and use information in order to
comply with the requirements of the Local Authority.
The Company will ensure that it treats lawfully and correctly all personal
information entrusted to it.
2.2

Policy Statement

The Company fully endorses and adheres to the principles set out in the Data
Protection Act 1998 ('the Act' in section 2). The Company will therefore
ensure that all employees, board members, contractors, agents, consultants,
partners or anyone else who has access to any personal data held by or for
the Company are fully aware of and abide by their duties and responsibilities
under the Act.
The Company will ensure that all personal data is handled properly and
confidentially at all times, irrespective of whether it is held on paper or by
electronic means.

1

www.ico.gov.uk
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This includes:
•
•
•
•

The obtaining of personal data
The storage and security of personal data
The use of personal data
The disposal or destruction of personal data.

The Company will ensure that data subjects have appropriate access, upon
written request, to personal information relating to them and the right to
correct, rectify, block or erase any incorrect data.
‘Personal data’ is defined as data relating to a living individual who can be
identified from that data, or from that data and other information that is in the
possession of, or is likely to come into the possession of, the data controller.
This will include any expression of opinion about the individual and any
indication of the intentions of the data controller or any other person in respect
of the individual.
2.3

The Principles of Data Protection

The Act sets out eight principles of data protection, which the Company is
committed to upholding. Whenever collecting or handling personal and/or
sensitive information about people, the Company will ensure that:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

2.4

Personal data is collected and used fairly and lawfully
The purposes for which personal data is obtained and processed are
specified and that data is not used for any other purpose
Personal data is collected, processed and retained only when
necessary
Any data used or kept is accurate and up to date
Data is disposed of properly as soon as it is no longer needed for the
purpose specified when it was collected
All personal data is processed in accordance with the rights of the
individual concerned
Appropriate security measures are taken to protect all personal data
against damage, loss or abuse
The movement of personal data is done in a lawful way, both inside
and outside the Company and that suitable safeguards exist at all
times.
Data Subject Access Requests

Under the terms of the Act, every data subject has the right to view all of their
personal data held by the Company.
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The Company recognises that requiring an individual to make a subject
access request to a third party and reveal the result to the Company (‘forced
subject access requests’) is a criminal offence and has publicised this to staff.
2.5

Document Retention Schedule

The fifth Data Protection Principle states that personal information is not to be
kept for longer than is necessary for the purpose for which it is processed.
Accordingly, the Company will introduce a Document Retention Schedule to
ensure compliance.
2.6

Responsibilities

The Company will ensure that:
•

Personal data held electronically is protected by the use of secure
passwords, which are changed regularly

•

A member of staff is appointed who has specific responsibility for data
protection within the Company

•

Any disclosure of personal data is in compliance with the law and with
approved procedures

•

Anyone managing and handling personal information understands that
they are legally bound to follow good data protection practice

•

Anyone managing and handling personal information is appropriately
trained and supervised

•

Appropriate advice and guidance is available to anyone wanting to make
enquiries about personal information held by the Company

•

Enquiries and requests regarding personal information are handled
courteously and within the time limits set by the Act

•

All board members are made aware of this policy and of their duties and
responsibilities under the Act

•

Where it is necessary to share data with outside organisations, this is done
under a written agreement setting out what is to be shared and how it is to
be kept secure (see Information Sharing Protocol at Appendix 5).
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Managers and team leaders will ensure that:
•

Paper files and other records or documents containing personal and/or
sensitive data are kept and disposed of securely and in line with document
retention guidelines

•

All staff are aware of their responsibilities under the Data Protection Act
and undertake the data protection training e-learning module as part of the
induction process

•

Staff working remotely from home or elsewhere are aware of the need to
keep any company-owned equipment they use secure and prevent
systems and data for which the Company is responsible being seen or
used by any unauthorised person

All staff will ensure that they:
•

Complete the Data Protection training provided

•

Understand their responsibilities under the Data Protection Act 1998 and
the practical implications for their role

•

Are familiar with the Data Subject Access Request procedure in order to
advise and assist members of the public who wish to make a request.

•

Immediately forward to the Information Officer any Data Subject Access
request received.

•

Immediately report to the Information Officer or a member of DMT any
breach of data security of which they are aware.

Contractors, consultants, partners or other servants or agents of the
Company must:
•

Confirm in writing that they will abide by the requirements of the Act with
regard to information obtained from the Company

•

When requested, allow the Company to audit the protection of data held
on its behalf

•

Ensure that they and all persons appointed by them who have access to
personal data held or processed for or on behalf of the Company are
aware of this policy and are fully trained in their duties and responsibilities
under the Act.

•

Indemnify the Company without limitation against any prosecutions,
claims, proceedings, actions or payments of compensation or damages
arising from the loss or misuse of data. Any breach of any provision of the
Act will be deemed as being a breach of any contract between the
Company and that individual, company, partner or firm.
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The Information Officer
The Company has appointed an Information Officer (currently the Board
Assurance Officer), who will have overall responsibility for:
•

The provision of data protection training for staff within the Company

•

Ensuring all Subject Access Requests are responded to within forty days

•

Developing best practice guidelines

•

Reporting any breaches to the Information Commissioner

•

Informing the Chair of the Board of any breaches reported to the
Information Commissioner.

•

Conducting an annual review of this policy and the practices and
procedures pertaining to it to ensure continuing compliance with all
relevant statutory provisions.

2.7

The Information Commissioner

The Company is registered with the Information Commissioner as a data
controller. The Act requires every data controller who is processing personal
data to notify and renew their notification on an annual basis. Failure to do so
is a criminal offence. Any changes to the type of data held or the purposes for
which it is held must be notified to the Information Commissioner within
twenty-eight days.
The Information Officer will review the Data Protection Register with members
of the Senior Management Team annually prior to notification to the
Information Commissioner.
2.8

Breaches of the Act

Any breach of the Data Protection Act will be treated with the utmost
seriousness and may result in formal disciplinary action against the member
of staff responsible.
It is imperative that any member of staff who is aware of a loss of data security
reports it immediately to their line manager and the designated Information
Officer in order that action can be taken to retrieve the information
and minimise the damage. Prompt self-reporting will be taken into account as
a mitigating factor in any investigation.
The ICO must be notified of any breaches of the Act and will then decide
whether to conduct a separate investigation. The ICO has the authority to levy
fines of up to £500,000 for serious breaches of the Act that result in significant
damage and/or distress.
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3. Freedom of Information
3.1

Introduction

The Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 2000 (‘the Act’ in section 3) provides
public access to information held by public authorities. It does this in two
ways:
•

Public authorities are obliged to publish certain information about their
activities; and

•

Members of the public are entitled to request information from public
authorities.

The Act covers any recorded information that is held by a public authority.
Recorded information includes printed documents, computer files, letters,
emails, photographs and sound or video recordings. There is no requirement
to create new information or to find the answer to a question from a member
of staff who may happen to know it.
The Act does not give people access to their own personal data
(information about themselves). If a member of the public wants to see
information that a public authority holds about them, they should make a
subject access request under the Data Protection Act 1998.
3.2

Policy Statement

The Company fully endorses and adheres to the principles set out in the Act.
The Company will publicise the fact that people can make FOI requests and
will provide contact details for making a request, including a named contact
and phone number for any enquiries about the Act.
The Company will respond to requests for information within twenty working
days, informing the applicant whether any information falling within the scope
of their request is held and providing that information if it is held, unless
exempt under the Act.
The Company will maintain a publication scheme, approved by the ICO, and
proactively publish on its website information covered by the scheme.
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3.3

The Principles of Freedom of Information

The main principle behind FOI legislation is that people have a right to know
about the activities of public authorities, unless there is a good reason for
them not to. This is sometimes described as a presumption or assumption in
favour of disclosure. It means that information should be kept private only
when there is a good reason and it is permitted by the Act, and any refusal to
disclose must be justified.
3.4

Freedom of Information Requests

Anyone has the right to request information from a public authority. The
Company has two separate duties when responding to these requests:
•

To tell the applicant whether any information is held that falls within the
scope of their request; and

•

To provide that information.

3.5

Publication Scheme

In order to meet the requirements of the Act, the Company will follow the
ICO’s Model Publication Scheme. The purpose of this scheme is to make the
maximum amount of information readily available at minimum inconvenience
and cost to the public.
3.6

Responsibilities

Managers and Team Leaders will ensure that:
•

New staff complete the Freedom of Information training provided

•

Members of their teams are aware of the Freedom of Information Policy
and the procedure for dealing with a request

All members of staff will ensure that they:
•

Complete the FOI training provided

•

Are familiar with the FOI Policy and FOI Request Procedure in order to
advise and assist members of the public who wish to make a request.

•

Immediately forward any FOI request received to the Information Officer.
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The Information Officer
The Company has appointed an Information Officer (currently the Board
Assurance Officer), who will have overall responsibility for:
•

Ensuring staff have access to appropriate training, making them aware of
the principles of the Act and their responsibilities

•

Maintaining an ICO-approved publication scheme, ensuring that all the
information covered by the scheme is published on the website in a timely
manner

•

Ensuring the public are made aware of their right to access information
from the Company

•

Ensuring the Company meets its duties under the FOI Act in relation to
confirming or denying whether information is held and providing requested
information within twenty days.

•

Conducting an annual review of this policy and the practices and
procedures pertaining to it to ensure continuing compliance with all
relevant statutory provisions.

3.7

Breaches of the Policy

Anybody who has deliberately contravened the Act or this policy may be dealt
with under the Company’s Disciplinary Procedure.
Members of staff should not be blamed in any way for rightly releasing
information under the act, even if this causes embarrassment to the
Company, a member of staff, a Board member, a borough councillor or a third
party. However, if there is the potential for embarrassment, staff should seek
further advice from the Information Officer before releasing.

4. Consultation
The following groups were consulted in the preparation of this policy:
•

Senior Management Team (March 2013)

•

Finance & Audit Sub Committee (March 2013)

•

Tenant & Leaseholder Consultative Committee (April 2013)

•

Colchester Borough Homes’ Board (April 2013).
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5. References
•
•
•
•
•

Data Protection Act 1998
Freedom of Information Act 2000
NHF Guide to Document Retention for Housing Associations 2013
Information Commissioner’s Office website: www.ico.gov.uk
Information Commissioner’s Office Model Publication Scheme

6. Related Documents
This policy should be read in conjunction with the following documents:
•

Data Subject Access Request Procedure

•

Document Retention Schedule

•

Freedom of Information Request Procedure

•

CBH Publication Scheme.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

10

SUBJECT:

CBH Foundation

REPORT BY:

Gerardine Murphy, Service Development Manager
 (01206) 282826
 gerardine.murphy@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR DISCUSSION
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

Board members are invited to discuss the CBH Foundation project.

2.

Background & content

2.1

As part of our commitment to corporate social responsibility, we are launching
the CBH Foundation to bring all the skills-related opportunities we offer to
residents under one umbrella. The CBH Foundation initiative forms part of
CBH’s wider Future Proofing project and it is hoped that it will become the
centrepiece of our non-core, community-focused activities. This report
outlines the project and its potential benefits, and further details are contained
in Appendix 1.

3.

Outline of the proposal

3.1.

We currently provide a wide range of opportunities for residents to improve
their skills, such as landlord scrutiny training, pre-tenancy workshops, ICT
training for older people, apprenticeships and internships. Currently all such
opportunities are planned, sourced and managed by individual service areas
and are not coordinated centrally. The proposal is to bring these all together
and “brand” them as CBH Foundation, and then develop the programme
further.
The main advantages of this more coordinated approach will be to:
• help us to create and develop an accessible “package” to promote to
residents who wish to develop their skills
• provide front-line staff with an easy way to promote opportunities and
enable customers to access the programme
• help us to plan, track and expand the opportunities we offer and monitor
take-up and outcomes
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•
•
•
•
•

help us ensure that the range of opportunities we provide meets our
strategic priorities and those of the Council
help make the most of available opportunities to maximise value for money
and social return on investment
create a platform on which to establish and develop relationships with local
organisations
help us raise CBH’s profile and build our reputation
build a foundation on which to attract future funding.

4.

What the CBH Foundation will offer

4.1.

The Foundation will offer residents work experience and on-the-job training,
as well as a variety of other opportunities including face-to-face workshops,
courses and online learning. It will offer opportunities in the following areas:
• Employability (apprenticeships, work experience, volunteering & workrelated skills)
• Digital skills
• Life skills
• Involvement/ community skills
• Health & wellbeing
Further details and the programme for 2015/16 are shown in the project
outline at Appendix 1.

4.2.

Opportunities will be delivered directly by CBH or in partnership with other
organisations. Partnership work will include:
• setting up apprenticeships either on a standalone basis or in
conjunction with partner organisations, working with Colchester Institute
to cover the qualification element
• regular programmes of work experience placements and internships
with Colchester Institute and University of Essex
• working with suppliers to sponsor and/or deliver training and other
opportunities
• work with Qube Learning to offer traineeships and vocational training
• work with other local landlords such as Family Mosaic, Estuary and
Colne to ensure that as many residents as possible can take advantage
of available opportunities
• working with training providers such as the Adult Learning Service
• working alongside CBC on providing access to digital learning
• working with other local organisations such as Essex Fire Service, the
Garrison, Colchester Community Voluntary Services etc on developing
new initiatives.

5.

Progress

5.1

A project team has been created from across the organisation. The team has
put together a list of existing training opportunities to be branded as CBH
Foundation, as well as identifying new CBH-based opportunities such as work
placements and apprenticeships. From this we have been able to establish a
costed programme of training for 2015/16 (see Appendix 1).
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5.2

Work is also underway on:
•
•
•
•
•
•

reviewing available training & development opportunities in the local area
to expand the offer
developing relationships with partners and potential partners
establishment of referral pathways and other methods of encouraging
participation from residents
branding & communications, including a web portal and dedicated section
on the intranet
exploring options for the ongoing coordination of the initiative
preparing to launch the CBH Foundation to staff, residents & other
stakeholders.

6.

Risk Management

6.1.

This is seen as a low risk opportunity particularly as, in the initial stages at
least, the majority of the activities are already within existing programmes and
covered by existing budgets. The project can be easily scaled up or down
according to the resources available and the response from residents.

6.2.

Insurance arrangements are already in place to cover volunteers,
apprenticeships, work placements etc.

6.3.

The main risk is failure to deliver on targets due to lack of takeup, although
these are internal targets and therefore target setting is within our control.
Risks will be mitigated by having a dedicated resource coordinating the
project.

7.

HR Implications

7.1.

Any apprentices, interns, trainees, volunteers etc. will be subject to our normal
policies and will require appropriate inductions (including information and
confidentiality), as well as the resources and equipment necessary for their
roles (e.g. ICT accounts).

7.2.

A coordinator will be recruited to develop create, plan and publicise
opportunities, develop relationships and monitor outcomes.

8.

Legal Implications

8.1.

Any apprenticeships, interns and volunteers will be subject to current
employment law. Particular care needs to be taken in the case of under 18s
as working regulations differ for younger people. We have experience of work
placements for younger people so this will not represent new territory for us.

9.

Financial Implications

9.1.

Although the project is outside the scope of our core business, it is not
anticipated that there will be a significant initial outlay. Estimated costs for
2015/16 are outlined in Appendix 1. The majority of these can be met within
existing budgets. However, an additional post will need to be funded to
coordinate the Foundation’s activities and some financial outlay will be needed
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to cover the cost of the launch and marketing.
10.

Value for Money

10.1. Social return on investment is a key focus of our new Value for Money
strategy and this project in particular will be an important element in its
delivery, in particular supporting our plans to:
•
•
•

clarify/formalise approach to corporate social responsibility
channel efficiency savings into socially beneficial projects
work with partners to maximise opportunities for added social value,
e.g. sponsorship, apprenticeships, volunteering.

10.2. The project also fits well with our ambitions to trade. Having a clear approach
to social value with measurable outputs would be of great assistance in
supporting future bids for work where social value is a criterion. It is also
hoped that the CBH Foundation will help us deliver the stated aims of our
Trading Strategy:
• to use surplus income to deliver benefits to tenants, leaseholders and
the wider community
• to use income from commercial activity to support the Council in
achieving its priorities
10.3. As well as benefiting local residents, it is hoped that the project will have a
number of direct and indirect benefits for CBH:
• Apprenticeships, internships and volunteering opportunities will also
provide a direct benefit to the business
• Benefits to CBH’s profile and reputation in the community
• Improved customer satisfaction ratings
• Possible opportunities for cost savings on current provision once the
existing offer is managed centrally, via more effective sourcing of
opportunities, access to funding and free courses.
• Encouraging residents to enhance their skills may also have indirect
benefits for CBH as a business, for example:
o Employability skills – ability to pay rent
o Life skills (e.g. money management) – ability to manage
tenancy, ability to self-serve.
10.4. The project has significant potential for development in the future, for example
by attracting sponsorship from contractors or other local businesses and/or
external grant funding. In the longer term we may also wish to explore
whether the Foundation could be rolled out into a self-sustaining charitable
enterprise. Not only would charitable status offer potential tax advantages for
the distribution of CBH trading surpluses but it may also be an opportunity to
fulfil the following Medium Term Delivery Plan priorities:
•
•

Work with the local voluntary sector to create or sponsor a community
development charity promoting social and economic wellbeing
Explore new models e.g. charitable subsidiary, trading subsidiary.
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11.

Health & Safety Implications

11.1. Any residents receiving on-the-job training such as work placements will be
subject to our Health and Safety, Lone Working and Safeguarding policies and
will require appropriate Health and Safety inductions.
11.2. Under the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, an
employer has a responsibility to ensure that young people employed by them
are not exposed to risk due to lack of experience, being unaware of existing or
potential risks and/or lack of maturity. However, we have experience of work
experience placements with under 18s.
12.

Equality & Diversity Implications

12.1. A range of Equality and Diversity-related training opportunities will be
available to residents as part of the programme. In addition those
participating in on-the-job programmes (trainees, apprentices, interns etc.) will
receive require appropriate Equality and Diversity inductions and/or training.
12.2. Some opportunities will be aimed at or restricted to tenants and leaseholders
(for example certain tenant involvement training courses, some sheltered
housing-based training etc.). Where appropriate, CBH customers will be given
priority for work experience and apprenticeships. We will also be able to make
many of the opportunities available to all local residents.
12.3. The majority of funding for apprenticeships and traineeships is available for
16-24 year olds, however limited funding is sometimes available for those
aged 24 plus, subject to selection criteria and availability.
12.4. Part of the role of the CBH Foundation coordinator will be to monitor
participation levels and outcomes of the project, and every effort will be made
to ensure they are aligned with our Equality Objectives.
13.

Residents at the Heart

13.1. We see the CBH Foundation as having potential to be our flagship residentfocused initiative. Our Medium Term Delivery Plan lists a number of priorities
which this project has the potential to contribute to significantly, including:
• developing education, employment and training opportunities for Council
tenants and other residents
• promoting and facilitating financial inclusion
• minimising the impact of welfare reform on customers
• promoting digital inclusion
• increased community involvement
• developing partnerships with residents, the voluntary sector, community
organisations and wider local services
• promoting healthy living in partnership with health services
• supporting fuel poverty initiatives (energy saving advice etc.)
• working in partnership to improve access to wider local services
• improved health, social, environmental and economic wellbeing
• reduced homelessness through early intervention and education
• providing holistic solutions for residents with complex needs
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•
•
•

helping vulnerable people to manage their homes
more support for vulnerable groups
better value for money

13.2. In addition to our company aims, the initiative will support the following
priorities from the Council’s strategic plan:
•
•
•
•
•

Develop a strong sense of community across the Borough by enabling
people and groups to take more ownership and responsibility for their
quality of life
Create the right environment for people to develop and flourish in all
aspects of life both business and pleasure
Support people to develop the skills needed by employers in the future to
take advantage of higher paid jobs being created
Be recognised as a centre of learning with excellent schools, colleges,
University and educational opportunities for young people to make the best
of their potential
Be clear about the major opportunities to work in partnership with public,
private and voluntary sectors to achieve more for Colchester than we could
on our own

It will also support CBC’s new Community Enabling Strategy, the aim of which
is to increase community resilience across the Borough by encouraging more
self-help and self-reliance to achieve the ambitions of local groups, protect
services and reduce cost.
13.3. The Tenant and Leaseholder Consultative Committee expressed their full
support for the project at their June meeting. Further resident consultation was
undertaken at the Jobs Fair held on 22 September in the Town Hall as well as
at other events.
14.

Decision Required?

14.1. No
15.

Appendix

15.1. The following document is appended to this report:
•

Appendix 1 – CBH Foundation outline
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CBH Foundation Outline
As part of our commitment to corporate social responsibility, we are launching the CBH
Foundation to bring all the training and work related opportunities we offer to local
residents under one umbrella. The Foundation will offer opportunities in the following
areas:
• Employability (apprenticeships, work experience, volunteering & work-related
skills)
• Digital skills
• Life skills
• Involvement/ community skills
• Health & wellbeing
These opportunities will be delivered directly by CBH or in partnership with other
organisations.

What the Foundation will offer
The Foundation will offer work experience/on the job training, as well as a variety of other
opportunities including face to face workshops, courses and online learning. Examples of
the opportunities on offer include the following:
Employability
• Apprenticeships & Traineeships
• Placements & internships
• Work experience
• Volunteering
• Job search skills, e.g. preparing for interviews
• Workplace skills, e.g. report writing, managing a project
• Vocational courses, e.g. retail, customer service, health & safety
Digital skills
• Basic IT skills
• IT skills for older residents
• Using the internet
• Social media
Life skills
• Managing a home
• Making the most of your money
• Energy saving

10a. Cbh Foundation Outline - Board 28 September 2015 - September 2015
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•
•
•

Crime prevention
Safety, team work and citizenship
Courses for parents

Involvement/ community skills
• Antisocial behaviour awareness
• Equality and diversity
• Scrutinising landlord services
• Fundraising
Health & wellbeing
• Mindfulness
• Drug & alcohol awareness
• Healthy eating
• Wellbeing
• Seated exercise for older people
• Diabetes awareness

What we hope to achieve
The project will help us work towards a number of our community aims, including:
• Developing education, employment and training opportunities for Council tenants
and other residents
• Improved health, social, environmental and economic wellbeing
• Closer working with community organisations and suppliers to deliver better
opportunities for residents
• Increased community involvement
• Minimising the impact of welfare reform on customers.
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Our programme for 2015/16
2014/15
Employability
Apprenticeships
Student internships
Work experience
Work experience for ex-military personnel
Traineeships
Work-related skills (e.g. effective meetings)
Preparing for interviews
Retail
Customer service
Job readiness
Health & safety
Digital skills
Digital skills
IT skills for older residents
Social media
Starting out on the internet
Internet safety
The power of the internet
Getting started with social media
Life skills
Literacy & numeracy
Pre-tenancy workshops
Assertiveness and confidence
Firebreak (safety, team work & citizenship for young
people)
Prison Me No Way! (crime & safety awareness)
Courses for parents of under 5s
Money management
Basic home maintenance
Pest awareness
Saving energy to reduce bills
Involvement/community
Tenant involvement courses
Fundraising
Equality & diversity
Crucial Crew (antisocial behaviour workshop for
children)

1

2015/16
to date
(August)

1

10

2015/16
target
21
1

8
52
10 3
103
103
103

8

16
52
52
52
52
103

67
4

22

15

15
250

500
3
52
52
52

13
5
4

28
8

40

2000

2000

2000

1

Community Caretaker apprentices. Possibility of further Property Services apprenticeships - to be confirmed.
Tenant training package via existing supplier. £250 joining fee plus £100pa for admin (unlimited places on 18
courses): housingea.co.uk/tenant_training
3
Via Qube/Colne collaboration – to be confirmed late 2015
2
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2014/15
Building a community2
Cultural awareness2
Respect2
Hate crime2
Anti-social behaviour2
Health & wellbeing
Mindfulness
Diabetes awareness
Seated exercise for older residents
Wellbeing workshops
Boccia
Issues surrounding drugs2
Issues surrounding alcohol2
Feeding a family on a budget2
What is telehealth? 2

2015/16
to date
(August)

2015/16
target
5
5
5
5
5
8

30

8
40

16
45

8

20
5
5
5
5

Costs
The cost of the 2014/15 programme was around £10.2K (estimated), delivered from
existing budgets.
To deliver the targets for 2015/16 will cost around £16.8K in direct costs plus the cost of 2
apprentices (which can be covered by existing salary budgets), excluding staff time.
Much of this expenditure has already been committed from existing budgets.
Marketing costs are expected to be in the region of £1K to cover design and print. There
will be additional expenditure if a launch event is held.
An additional coordinator post will be created. Salary scale and hours to be confirmed.
There may be scope for attracting investment from partners and/or grant funding in the
future.

Working in partnership
The CBH Foundation will seek opportunities to work in partnership with our suppliers, as
well as councillors, training organisations, local landlords, the voluntary sector and other
organisations to make sure our residents have the best possible access to the
opportunities available.
Partners can become involved by:
•

Letting us know about work experience, apprenticeship or volunteering
opportunities which we can publicise to residents
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•
•
•
•
•

Working with us to maximise work experience opportunities (e.g. CBH apprentices
gaining experience working for suppliers or vice versa)
Sponsoring CBH apprenticeships
Offering training courses (e.g. running DIY courses, with a discount offered on
materials for those attending)
Providing funding for courses
Making a financial contribution to the CBH Foundation to help cover running costs
such as staffing and marketing

Benefits to partners would include:
• Making the most of CBH’s direct access to some of the local residents who need it
most, a cost-effective route to fulfilling their own community aims
• Positive publicity for the partner organisation via CBH communications, using “in
partnership with” branding
• Demonstrable social value, which is increasingly a requirement for public sector
procurement

Gerardine Murphy
Service Development Manager
gerardine.murphy@cbhomes.org.uk
01206 282826
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

11

SUBJECT:

Annual Human Resources Report

REPORT BY:

Angelique Ryan, Head of HR and Governance
 (01206) 282374
 angelique.ryan@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Introduction and Background

1.1

This report provides the Board with an overview of Human Resources activity
for the 12-month period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. Key activities during
the period were:

1.2

•

Achieving IIP Silver and the Times 100 ‘Ones to Watch’ Award

•

Launched the Organisational Development Strategy and associated
leadership programme

•

Revised the staff appraisal forms and carried out staff training sessions

•

Increased focus on the management of sickness absence and
subsequent decrease in absence levels. The management of a number of
complex long-term ill health capability cases

•

Resolution of a number of employee relations cases

•

The introduction of a number of new HR Policies and the updating of a
number of existing policies

•

A high level of recruitment.

CBH has a Human Resources Strategy in place that follows the four key
threads of empowerment, equality, staff development and improving
performance. The Strategy sets out how CBH intends to develop its
workforce to meet the challenges of the current operating environment,
provide flexibility to meet future challenges and business needs and to
continue the cultural change to achieve excellence. The action plan, which
forms part of the HR Strategy, details the HR work-plan until 2016 and is
monitored by the Governance and Remuneration Committee.
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2.

Workforce Profile
CBH directly employed 210 members of staff at 31 March 2015, with 187.9
full-time equivalent staff. This has increased from 190 staff at 31 March 2014.

3.

Workforce turnover
The staff turnover within CBH (by headcount) was 18% for the financial year
to 31 March 2015 (down from 21% the previous financial year). Turnover of
around 10% is generally considered a desirable level. This reflects the need
for stability and continuity within services whilst acknowledging that
departments may benefit from new staff contributing new ideas/ways of
thinking as well as supporting succession planning and development.
Details of reasons for leaving are shown below;
Number of
leavers

Percentage of
leavers

Personal reasons,
including other
employment

22

56%

End of contract

8

21%

Retirement

4

10%

Dismissal

4

10%

Redundancy

1

3%

Totals

39

100

Reason for leaving

4.

HR Performance Management
Absence levels

4.1

The 2014/15 end of year figure for absence due to ill health was 7.7 days on
average per employee. This translates to 1,370 working days lost through illhealth related absence. This figure has continued to reduce from 9.47 and 8
days per employee at year end 2013 and 2014. This result exceeds the target
set of eight days by year end 2016.

4.2

CBH endeavours to follow best practice approaches to managing absence,
using the ‘Bradford’ trigger system and following detailed Short-term and
Long-term Ill Health Capability Policies. These policies were revised in 2015
and have led to a robust and more consistent approach to the management
of ill health cases. Managers receive reports detailing those staff within their
service areas that have triggered the Bradford Factor and are supported by
HR to manage these cases. In the year 14/15, 32 employees were formally
monitored through the Ill Health Capability Procedure. No employees were
dismissed under this policy.
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Employee relations cases
4.3

The HR team supports managers through a number of complex employee
relations cases, including disciplinary cases, bullying and harassment cases,
grievance cases and performance capability cases. The team prepare
settlement agreements and negotiate in regards to mutually agreed exits. The
team also help to prepare bundles, witness statements and liaises with
solicitors for employment tribunal claims.

4.4

Where possible, the HR team always tries to resolve issues informally
through meeting with staff and managers and mediation if necessary.
However, often formal action is unavoidable. During 14/15, 4 employees were
dismissed.

4.5

The HR team are based at Rowan House but also fixed days from the
Gosbeck’s Road and Riverside offices. The team had a high level of
casework during 14/15, and details can be seen below;
Business
Services

Housing
Services

Property
Services

Totals

Formal Disciplinary
cases/ hearings

1

3

3

7

Disciplinary
investigations- Did
not progress to
hearing

0

1

3

4

Formal Bullying and 0
Harassment
Investigations,
hearings and appeal

1

0

1

Probationary cases
to formal hearing

0

0

1

1

Performance
Capability
monitoring

0

1

0

1

Ill health cases
being monitored
under the Ill Health
Capability
procedure

3

13

16

32
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5.

Managing Organisational Change

5.1

2014/15 has been a relatively stable year in terms of organisational change,
especially when compared to the previous financial year when there were 52
TUPE transfers into and out of CBH.

5.2

This year the team have supported a number of services making small-scale
structural changes and changes to ways of working.

6.

Recruitment and Job Evaluation

6.1

During the year, the HR team has administered 78 recruitment campaigns for
temporary and permanent roles. 60 people were successfully recruited into
positions over the year.

6.2

18 posts had to be advertised a number of times before a successful
recruitment outcome was achieved. These hard to fill posts included Housing
Options Advisor, Electrician, Visiting Officer, Assistant Housing Officer,
Tenancy Monitoring Officer, Head of Human Resources (Job share), Tenancy
Support Officer, Resident Involvement Officer and Asbestos Surveyor.

6.3

Recruitment requests are processed and fully comply with legal regulations in
regard to transparent and fair recruitment and identity checks, etc.

6.4

The HR team is accredited to administer and give feedback on personality
and ability psychometric tests. These tests are now widely used as part of the
recruitment process. 26 personality profiles have been completed and
analysed for prospective staff and board members. 5 verbal and numerical
reasoning ability tests have also been carried out and analysed as part of the
recruitment processes for two roles.

6.5

Two members of the HR team are qualified to carry out full Hay Job
Evaluations and in 2014/15, 37 job evaluations were carried out.

6.6

Further details of recruitment campaigns and job evaluations by service area
can be seen below;

Job Evaluations
Recruitment
Campaigns

Business
Services

Housing
Services

Property
Services

Totals

7
37

13
31

17
10

37
78
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7.

HR policy and Projects

7.1

During 2014/15, the HR team led on the writing, review and consultation of a
number of HR policies and projects. Work carried out includes;
•

Achieved Investors in People Silver Award,

•

Launched the Organisational Development Strategy and associated
leadership programme,

•

Achieved Times 100 ‘One to Watch Award’ (Staff Survey)

•

Organised the Staff Conference

•

Launched the new E-Learning system

•

Revised the Staff Induction Programme

•

Revised the Staff Appraisal forms and carried out staff training sessions

•

Introduced a Shared Parental Leave Policy

•

Introduced a Long Service Award Policy

•

Introduced a Maintaining appropriate boundaries

•

Introduced a Social media policy

•

Updated the Retirement policy

•

Updated the Working from Home Policy

•

Updated the Long-term Ill Health Capability Procedure

•

Updated the Short-term Ill Health Capability Procedure

•

Updated the Staff Code of Conduct

•

Updated the Right to Request Flexible Working

•

Delivered training for line managers, including recruitment and the
effective management of sickness absence

8.

Training and Development

8.1

Colchester Borough Homes continues to invest in a robust learning and
development programme. CBH employ a part time Training Co-ordinator who
ensures that our staff are trained to meet all mandatory requirements and are
continuously developed to ensure that they deliver the best service possible.
In the 2014/15:
•

142 training courses were arranged

•

A total spend of £94,200 was spent across CBH on courses, conferences
and seminars.
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9.

Current and Future Work plan

9.1

The HR team is currently working on a number of projects and policies
including:
•

Extending the Salary Sacrifice offer made to staff to include new cars,
cycles, laptops and phones

•

Introducing a Market Supplements Policy to aid recruitment and retention

•

Revising a number of key HR policies including Voluntary Redundancy
Policy, Probation Policy, Terms and Conditions, Lone Workers Policy

•

TUPE transfer of a member of staff

•

Small scale department restructures

10.

Financial Implications

10.1

No specific implications.

11.

HR Implications

11.1

HR implications are addressed within this report.

12.

Legal Implications

12.1

All relevant legislation has been considered as part of this report.

13.

Health & Safety Implications

13.1

None.

14.

Equality & Diversity Implications

14.1

None.

15.

Residents at the Heart

15.1

None.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

Tuesday 28 September 2015

TIME:

5:30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

12.

SUBJECT:

Strategic Health and Safety Policy

REPORT BY:

Mark Wright, Director of Property Services
 (01206) 282760
 mark.wright@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Decision Required

1.1

None – the amendments to this policy were accepted by the Governance and
Remuneration Committee, under delegated powers. The policy is not part of
CBH’s Code of Governance and therefore changes to it only require the
approval of the G & R Committee, not of the full Board.

2.

Introduction

2.1

All organisations employing five or more people must have a written Health
and Safety Policy statement. The Policy should cover all aspects of the
organisation and be relevant to all employees.

2.2

A Health and Safety Policy demonstrates how seriously an organisation takes
its health and safety responsibilities. A good policy will show how the
organisation protects those who could be affected by its activities.

2.3

The policy should be of an appropriate length and relevance to the activities
and size of the organisation.

2.4

A policy is a written statement, usually comprising three elements:
•

a statement section (often a single page) detailing how safety will be
managed and that demonstrates the organisation's commitment to
health and safety

•

an organisation section that details where responsibilities are allocated
and how employees fit into the overall safety management system
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•

an arrangements section that contains details of how specific activities
and functions are managed.

2.5

There is no requirement under Law for a Company to have Strategic Health
and Safety Policy however best practice shows that those Companies that
can demonstrate a positive commitment to Health and Safety, led from the
top, have a better Health and Safety culture.

2.6

The Board, through the adoption of a Strategic Health and Safety Policy,
setting the framework, and supporting the Company’s Health and Safety
Policy clearly demonstrates the Company’s commitment to Health and Safety.

2.7

The requirement to update a Company Health and Safety Policy within a
specific period is non-specific in Law. However in accordance with best
practice Colchester Borough Homes (CBH) has an ongoing review of all of its
processes and practices. This then culminates in a revised Strategic Policy
Statement being presented annually to the Board after acceptance by the
Chief Executive. The revisions reflected organisational changes being
implemented and forecast for the upcoming 12 months.

2.8

The updated Strategic Health and Safety Policy being presented for approval
at Attachment 1 has been reviewed by the Health and Safety Working Group.
This group contains representation from all service areas within CBH.

2.9

In addition, the Strategic Health and Safety Policy 2014/2015 and the
proposed revision for 2015/16 have been reviewed and found “fit for purpose”
as part of the Company’s successful attainment of OHAS 18001 standard.

3.

Financial Implications

3.1

None

4.

HR Implications

4.1

The draft Strategic Health and Safety Policy presented has been reviewed by
an appropriate body of staff representatives (Health and Safety Working
Group) who are instrumental in both informing and disseminating the
Company’s Strategic Health and Safety Policy.

5.

Legal Implications

5.1

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 - The Act sets out the
requirement for a health and Safety Policy and that a company must prepare
its own (relevant) statement and bring it to the attention of all employees. The
policy should be reviewed and revised as often as necessary.

6.

Health & Safety Implications

6.1

The whole of this report (together with its attachment) sets out the Company’s
overarching Strategic approach to Health and Safety and should be referred
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to in detail.
7.

Equality & Diversity Implications

7.1

None

8.

Residents at the Heart

8.1

None

9.

Risk Management

9.1

The appended Strategic Health and Safety Policy forms part of the
Companies approach to managing Health and Safety Risks. The approach as
set out in the Policy is compliant with the identified mitigations and actions in
the Company’s Strategic Risk Register.

10.

Value For Money

10.1

None

11.

Appendix/ces

11.1

The following document is appended to this report:
•

Appendix 1 – Draft Strategic health and Safety Policy 2015/16
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1. Introduction & purpose
Colchester Borough Homes recognises its responsibility to ensure the
health, safety and welfare of all its employees at work so-far as is
reasonably practicable. This policy statement makes a commitment
from Colchester Borough Homes to endeavour to maintain a continual
and measurable improvement to its Health and Safety performance to
ensure its compliance with all applicable health and safety legislation.
2. Policy Statement
Colchester Borough Homes as a corporate body and employer,
recognises and accepts its responsibility to provide a safe and healthy
working environment for its employees and non-employees who may be
affected by the Company's work activities and will take the necessary
steps to fulfil its statutory duties under the Health and Safety at Work Act
(1974).
A positive culture will be encouraged, actively supported by senior
management, to involve employees in the decision-making processes
either on an individual basis or through their health and safety
representatives.
The approach to Health and Safety will be based on the identification
and control of risks, ensuring that the appropriate levels of resources will
be allocated to keep risks to a minimum.
To enable adequate planning, monitoring and review of the Health and
Safety Policy, the Company will provide competent technical advice on
Health and Safety matters to assist Managers and Supervisors with their
responsibility.
To fulfil its statutory duties, the following will form Colchester Borough
Homes’ Health and Safety aims and objectives:
• To provide and make readily-available the necessary information,
instruction, supervision and training to employees and others,
including temporary staff that may be required by legislation,
approved codes of practice, British Standards and any local
agreements.
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• To ensure all visitors, contractors and suppliers of goods and services
comply with relevant Health and Safety requirements.
• To ensure that Health and Safety is equal to all other functions and
will attach equal importance to achieving Health and Safety targets.
• To devote the necessary resources in the form of finance, equipment,
personnel and time to ensure and develop a safe and healthy culture.
The assistance of expert help will be sought where the necessary
skills are not available within the company.
• To co-operate fully in the election and appointment of Safety
Representatives by recognised Trade Unions and provide them,
where necessary, with sufficient facilities and training to carry out
their tasks, including the setting up of a Health and Safety Committee.
To ensure that appropriate systems are developed and maintained for
the effective communication of health and safety matters throughout
the organisation, including the training of Board Members in their
Health and Safety responsibilities.
• To ensure that Health and Safety is fully integrated into the
management and decision-making processes within the organisation
and that Health and Safety management is an integral part of the
management function. It will also monitor their Health and Safety
performance along with their other duties.
• To ensure all services have a Health and Safety policy which clearly
specifies the organisational arrangements for Health and Safety in
compliance with the Company Policy.
• Colchester Borough Homes will set up a system to ensure that
accidents, ‘near-misses’ and work-related ill-health are fully
investigated and appropriate action taken to reduce the likelihood of
their recurrence.
• Colchester Borough Homes will ensure risk assessments of all
workplaces and work activities are systematically undertaken and
their findings recorded, to identify and effectively act upon Health and
Safety risks to employees and non-employees, therefore ensuring
that procedures are established and safe equipment and plant are
provided.
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3. Responsibilities
The Chief Executive is responsible to the Board for all Health and Safety
matters of the company
The Director of Property Services will be responsible for approving
strategic policies and procedures in liaison with Colchester Borough
Homes’ Health & Safety Manager and the employee and trade union
representatives.
Strategic activities will include:
• Advising management upon all Health and Safety matters, including
safety legislation, writing of core procedures, policies and guidance
notes.
• Conducting Health and Safety audits to ensure compliance
throughout the Company’s undertaking using statutory and corporate
Health and Safety standards.
• The provision and delivery of Health and Safety training.
• Advising managers, team leaders and Health and Safety Officers and
Co-ordinators upon matters concerning the Health and Safety of the
employees under their control.
• The supervision and control of all designated First Aid facilities.
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Service activities will include:
Service Managers, helped and assisted by the Health & Safety
Manager, will be responsible for the implementation of the Strategic
Health and Safety Policy and for the production and implementation of
codes of safe working practices for the service for which they are
responsible. These codes should include the arrangements for the
provision of:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

Safe systems of work
Safe places of work
Environmental control
Hazard reporting
Risk assessment
First Aid
Emergency procedures

The Service Managers will bring the codes of safe working practices to
the notice of all employees under their control and they will review and
amend the codes as appropriate.
Team leaders/supervisors will be responsible to the Service Managers
for the implementation of policies, procedures and codes of practice
within the work areas under their control.
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Strategic Arrangements
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS OF RESOURCES AND PROPERTY SERVICES

HEALTH & SAFETY MANAGER

STRATEGIC HEALTH AND SAFETY FUNCTIONS

IMPLEMENT
AND MONITOR
STRATEGIC
HEALTH AND
SAFETY POLICY

PRODUCE AND
MONITOR
HEALTH AND
SAFETY
PROCEDURES

IMPLEMENT AND
MONITOR FIRST
AID PROVISION

HEALTH &
SAFETY
OBJECTIVES
AND TARGETS

PRODUCE AND
MONITOR
EMERGENCY
PROCEDURES

MONITOR &
CONTROL OF
CONTRACTORS

PRODUCE AND
MONITOR
HEALTH AND
SAFETY
POLICIES

PRODUCE AND
MONITOR
HEALTH &
SAFETY
TRAINING
PROGRAMME

UNDERTAKE
HEALTH AND
SAFETY AUDITING
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Operational Arrangements

SERVICE MANAGERS

IMPLEMENT
STRATEGIC
POLICY

LIAISE WITH
HEALTH &
SAFETY
MANAGER

MANAGE SERVICE
HEALTH AND
SAFETY

TEAM LEADERS / SUPERVISORS

MANAGE
WORKPLACE
HEALTH AND
SAFETY

IMPLEMENT
STRATEGIC
POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

MANAGE RISK
ASSESSMENTS
PROGRAMME

MANAGE
ACCIDENT
REPORTING AND
INVESTIGATION

PRODUCE
CODES OF SAFE
WORKING
PRACTICES

LIAISE WITH
HEALTH & SAFETY
MANAGER

HEALTH & SAFETY MANAGER

FORMAL
REPORTING TO
EXECUTIVE AND
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

ADVISE SERVICE
MANAGERS ON
HEALTH AND
SAFETY
MATTERS

ASSIST AND
ADVISE TEAM
LEADERS/
SUPERVISORS

ASSIST WITH
IMPLEMENTATION
OF STRATEGIC
POLICY
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6. The Health & Safety framework within the company
Colchester Borough Homes is an Arms Length Management Company
(ALMO) set up by Colchester Borough Council to manage the Council’s
housing. It is wholly-owned by the Council.
Colchester Borough Homes can be divided into three principal areas,
each with their own Health and Safety risks, namely:
1. Property Services
2. Housing Management + Sheltered Housing Services
3. Business Services
The Company has its own Health & Safety Policy (this document), its
own Health & Safety Manager responsible for advising on Health and
Safety matters but has formally adopted Colchester Borough Council’s
Health & Safety procedures (as from time to time adapted to CBH
arrangements) recognising them as best practice.
The company will participate in Health & Safety training and forums for
Health & Safety representatives, first -aiders, incident controllers and fire
marshals as appropriate.
The Company will seek to achieve (and retain) an internationally
recognised standard for Health & Safety management systems and
practice (Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems OHSAS
18001).
The CBH headquarters at Rowan House is leased from Colchester
Borough Council. As landlords, the Council has procedures to manage
emergencies and fire and bomb threats and would therefore act as
incident controllers in such a case.
The strategic organisation and responsibilities section has been written
to encompass these arrangements.
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STRATEGIC ORGANISATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Primary duty holders for Health and Safety
across the company

Chief Executive

Responsible to the Board for the Health and
Safety Strategy

Director of Property Services

Strategic

CBH Board

Responsible to CBH Chief Executive for
provision of Health and Safety advice,
management and control of the Health and
Safety function

Health & Safety Manager

Monitor the effectiveness of the strategic and
Operational Health and Safety Strategy,
Policies and Provisions

Services HS&E Committee

Specialist Advice

Support

H&S Liaison Committee
Supported by Property

Responsible to the Chief Executive for the
production, implementation and control of the
Health and Safety Strategy

Offer specialist advice to CBH Health &
Safety Liaison Committee, undertake specific
Health & Safety duties as agreed
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7. Operational Organisation and Responsibilities
Senior Managers

Responsible to the Director of Property
Services for the management of Health and
Safety within the Service

Health & Safety
Manager

Operational

Manager/Supervisor

Responsible to the Senior Managers for the
management of Health and Safety in the
workplace, the production of Codes of Safe
Working Practices, Risk Assessments and
Accident Investigations
Responsible for providing a comprehensive,
professional Health and Safety Advisory
Service to Group Service Managers, Managers
and Employees, assisting in the implementation
of Service and Strategic Health and Safety
Policies and Procedures
For taking care of their own Health and Safety
and the Health and Safety of others who may
be affected by what they do, or fail to do

Health and Safety
Representatives

To make representations to management on
behalf of their members on all matters
concerning their health and safety

First Aiders

Fire Marshals

Support

Employees

To monitor the provision of the First Aid
services, and to provide first aid to employees
whilst at work and other persons on Council and
Company property
To manage emergencies such as fire and bomb
threats. To control building evacuation and re
entry into buildings and to liaise with the Fire
and Police Authorities
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8. Objectives
Colchester Borough Homes Strategic Health and Safety Policy
commits the Company to carrying out its undertakings in such a
way as to ensure that it is not harmful to the Health and Safety of
its employees, contractors, and others persons not in the employ
of the company.
The company recognises that Health and Safety is an integral part
of the management function and, as such, needs to be managed
using the same managerial skills and techniques that are used in
the management of other council services. To this end, Strategic
Health and Safety Goals have been set for the management of
Health and Safety.
8.1

1.
2.
3.
4.

The purposes of Health and Safety Goals
The purpose of the Health and Safety Goals are to:
Establish Health and Safety Management Standards
Establish the Health and Safety Competencies of its
workforce
To control the risks to all of the company and Council's
assets
Ensure the control of contractors

To carry out its undertaking in such a way as to ensure the Health
and Safety of all Colchester Borough Homes employees whilst at
work and that of others who might be affected by the Company’s
undertaking.
This includes the training of staff to undertake their own
responsibilities to identify and report Health and Safety risks and to
protect others from harm on behalf of CBH.
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9. Consultation
The document is guided by the Company’s Health, Safety and
Environmental Liaison Group and the document was approved on
the 7th August 2015.
It is their guidance that formats the policy statement and the
supporting documentation, covering roles and responsibilities and
implementation of this policy.
10.

References

The principal references come from the requirements outlined in
Health and Safety Legislation, specifically:
• The Health & Safety at Work etc. Act (1974)
• The Safety Representatives and Safety Committees
Regulations (1977)
• The Health and Safety Information for Employees Regulations
(1989)
• The Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations
(1999)
• The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order (2005)

11.

Related Documents

This document is expanded through three supporting documents:
• SAF 002 CBH Health & Safety organisational responsibilities
• SAF 003 CBH - H&S Procedures
• OHSAS 18001 guidance, practice, report and recommendations
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM: 13
SUBJECT:

Colchester’s Homelessness Strategy Progress report
2015

REPORT BY:

Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer, Colchester
Borough Council
 (01206) 282275
 karen.paton@colchester.gov.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Recommendation

1.1

To inform the Board of the progress made on the Delivery Plan of Colchester’s
Homelessness Strategy.

2.

Background

2.1

Colchester’s Homelessness Strategy 2014-19 was adopted in March 2015.
The 5 year Strategy and Delivery Plan set out the way in which Colchester
Borough Council and its partner organisations will work together to prevent
homelessness in the Borough.

2.2

Key Priorities were identified for the Homelessness Strategy:
1. Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies
2. Mitigating the negative impacts of welfare reform
3. Improving the Health and Wellbeing of homeless people
4. Changing the perception and culture of social housing through
education – managing expectations
5. Rough Sleepers

3.

Progress on the Homelessness Strategy

3.1

In order to monitor the Homelessness Strategy and Delivery plan it was
agreed that a report on the progress of the actions would be produced on an
annual basis and circulated to the relevant stakeholders.
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3.2

A meeting was held in April 2015 with the Project Group to reflect on the past
year and some of the achievements that have been made in homelessness
prevention across the Borough. It was also an opportunity for organisations to
share experiences, identify gaps in service provision and improve partnership
working.

3.3

The Delivery Plan was sent out to all the organisations that developed the
strategy in order to capture all the progress that had been made towards the
actions, since the strategy was written.

3.4

The Homelessness Strategy Progress Report 2015 contains highlights of the
actions that have been achieved or have moved forward in the first year of the
strategy.

3.5

The Delivery Plan has also been updated and includes two new actions.
These are as follows:
Set up an ‘Alternative Giving Campaign’ to discourage members of the
public from giving money to beggars. To educate the public so that their
donations get spent on charitable work to help those in need to reduce
street begging in Colchester.
Set up a system to monitor and analyse the demand for temporary
accommodation, repeat homelessness applications and the reasons for
homelessness including where tenancies have broken down.

3.6

The 2nd action was identified and included to meet one of the challenges set
out in the DCLG Gold Standard award for Homelessness Services, and will be
implemented in partnership by teams in CBC and CBH.

3.7

Key information from the Evidence Base of the Strategy has been updated to
include recent data and identified trends.

3.8

The Portfolio Holder for Housing agreed the Homelessness Strategy Progress
report in July 2015 and the report and the accompanying documents have
been put on the CBC website. The documents will also be available on the
CBH website.

4

Financial Implications

4.1

Any resources required to implement the actions in the Homelessness
Strategy will be delivered from existing budgets. The Council will work to
encourage its partners to commit their resources to meeting the priorities set
out in the Strategy. As many of the organisations are members of the
Homelessness Strategy Project Group they have already helped to shape the
Strategy and shown their commitment to its delivery.

4.2

Colchester Borough Council receives a yearly grant from the Department of
Communities and Local Government to work with partner organisations to
prevent homelessness in the Borough. This will help towards the
implementation of some of the actions identified in the strategy.

163

5

HR Implications

5.1

There are no HR implications

6

Legal Implications

6.1

Colchester Borough Council has a statutory responsibility to produce and
publish a Homelessness Strategy based on a homelessness review every five
years.

7

Health & Safety Implications

7.1

There are no health and safety implications

8

Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1

An Equality Impact Assessment for the Homelessness Strategy was
completed when the strategy was adopted in 2014 and is on the Council’s
website.

9

Residents at the Heart

9.1

The Homelessness Strategy is a strategic document which primarily sets out
how organisations will work together to bring about change and improvements
in the way they prevent and respond to homelessness. This will benefit all of
Colchester’s residents who may at some point in their lives experience
homelessness.

10

Risk Management

10.1

N/A

Appendices
1. Colchester’s Homelessness Strategy progress report 2015
2. Delivery Plan update 2015
3. Evidence Base update
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Colchester’s Homelessness Strategy 2014-19
Progress Report 2015
Colchester’s Homelessness Strategy 2014-19 was adopted in March 2015. The 5
year Strategy and Delivery Plan set out the way in which Colchester Borough
Council and its partner organisations will work together to prevent homelessness in
the borough.
Key Priorities were identified for the Homelessness Strategy:
1. Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies
2. Mitigating the negative impacts of welfare reform
3. Improving the Health and Wellbeing of homeless people
4. Changing the perception and culture of social housing through education –
managing expectations
5. Rough Sleepers
The Homelessness Strategy Progress Report 2015 contains some highlights of the
actions in the Strategy that have been achieved or have moved forward in the first
year of the strategy.
A Delivery Plan set out the actions to deliver the priorities and this has also been
updated along with the Evidence base.

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies
Action: Provide support and advice to tenants on managing debt and welfare
benefits including organisations working with single homeless.
Progress:
 The Financial Inclusion Officer continues to support tenants to manage
budgets. In 2014/15 there were 19 tenants evicted for rent arrears by
Colchester Borough Homes (CBH) which is a slight reduction from the
previous year when 20 tenants were evicted.
 The Night Shelter has appointed a Tenancy Sustainment worker and is now
holding pre tenancy workshops. So far all the tenants that have attended the
workshops are successfully managing their tenancies.
Action: Increase the availability and provision of debt advice in the Borough
and promote existing services including the Citizens Advice Bureau.
Progress:
 A Housing Benefit Officer is working within the front facing office with housing
staff at CBH; this allows for crisis resolution at the front end of the service.

Author: Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer
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 The Citizens Advice Bureau has been grant funded to provide an enhanced
money management advice service which Housing Options staff can refer
their clients into directly.
Action: Develop early intervention programmes for young people under 25
including pre eviction panels/pre tenancy workshops.
Progress:
 Pre tenancy workshops have been set up and are mandatory for young
people that want to move into permanent accommodation -. 15 young people
attend per workshop. In 2014/15 there were 5 Young people evicted for rent
arrears by CBH. The Tenancy Support Team provides additional support to
new young tenants for the first 6 months of their tenancy.
 Liaison meetings with the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) are being
held quarterly to help engage young people that are hard to reach.
Action: Work with Prisons, Armed Forces and Social Services on planned
move-on routes.
Progress:
 The Department of Communities and Local Government ‘help for single
homeless’ funding has been successfully secured by Colchester BC, Tendring
DC and Ipswich BC. Part of the funding will be used to provide early
intervention for prison leavers. Anglia Care Trust has been awarded the
funding to provide the service for 18 months.

Priority 2: Mitigating the negative impacts of welfare reform
Action: Provide advice and support to tenants/residents potentially affected by
the welfare reforms:
Progress:
 Universal Credit began in Colchester on 16th March 2014 for single people
making new ‘simple ‘claims only. Supported Housing is exempt. CBC has
entered into a delivery partnership agreement with the DWP to deliver four
key elements of support for claimants including: support with housing costs;
triage with debt and budgeting advice; using PCs; and informing landlords of
the changes. Within this agreement Colchester will deliver personal budgeting
support (PBS) and digital inclusion support through a dedicated customer
support team.
Action: Promote the availability of Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP).

Author: Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer
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Progress:
 Between 2013/14 – 2014/15 funding for DHP was increased significantly
(69% from 2012/13 to 2013/14) in the context of the Welfare Reform agenda
in line with increased demand. This was funding from Central Government
which CBC added to There has been a 43% reduction in the budget for
2015/16 from 2014/15. The reduction is because of a reduction from Central
Government
 The Financial Inclusion Officer has supported tenants to access DHP awards.
In 2014/15 this included; 15 tenants with children to secure DHP to clear
arrears and avoid eviction and for 29 tenants living in an adapted property to
cover under occupation charges.
 On 1st April 2015 the number of families affected by the benefit cap was 54
which has reduced from 228 families in 2012.This is a reduction of 73%.
Action: Work with the Job Centre Plus to help assist tenants to access
employment.
Progress:
 CBC is working in partnership with JCP which includes an officer being
seconded from the JCP to provide job search advice to housing clients.
Action: Review existing policies to encourage tenants to move and make
better use of housing stock.
Progress:
 CBC has changed its Transfer Incentive Scheme and now offers tenants £500
for help with moving costs and £500 per bedroom given up, to a maximum of
£2,000. A CBH enabling team support tenants to make decisions and take
care of practicalities, to help them move including help with switching utility
suppliers, arranging removals or finding new schools. This has helped in
reducing under occupation by 40%.
Action: Identify and support tenants with managing budgets – Financial
Inclusion officer.
Progress:
 The Financial Inclusion Officer continues to support tenants to manage
budgets. In 2014/15 in addition to supporting tenants to access DHP, this
included; 40 tenants signposted to the Citizens Advice Bureau for debt advice
and 7 tenants assisted to open bank accounts.

Author: Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer
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New Action for this section:
Set up a system to monitor and analyse the demand for Temporary
Accommodation, repeat homelessness applications and the reasons for
homelessness including where tenancies have broken down.

Priority 3: Improving the Health and Wellbeing of homeless people
Action: Essex County Council (ECC) and Colchester Project Group to work in
partnership to collate information from the Health Needs audit. To identify
services to meet the health needs of homeless people.
Progress:
 The Health Needs Audit has been completed and published and forms part of
ECC’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

 Beacon House have been awarded a contract from the Clinical
Commissioning Group for 3 years, to provide health provision for street
homeless clients and outreach including a mental health drop-in service.
Action: Progress work with ECC and North and Mid Essex on the actions from
the ECC Mental Health Accommodation Strategy including the hospital
discharge process.
Progress:
 A Mental Health Accommodation Pathway was set up in September 2014
which included a Mental Health Joint Referral Panel, introduced to improve
access to accommodation and support for this group.

Priority 4: Changing the perception and culture of social housing through
education – managing expectations
Action: Improve communication of services provided by Colchester Borough
Council to statutory and voluntary sector organisations through Information
days.
Progress:
 Two successful homelessness information events were held during 2014 and
the next one is planned for October 2015.

Author: Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer
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Action: Identify gaps in information and publish and promote leaflets etc. on
the Council’s homelessness and housing service for partner organisations
and young people, and distribute widely at key Service Locations.
Progress:
 Pocket Guide to Homelessness and Young Persons Guide updated and
published.
 COYOHO – a website providing housing and homelessness advice for young
people was set up and publicised in 2014.
Action: Continue to work in partnership with Schools in the Borough to
educate young people and their parents of the risks of leaving home in an
unplanned way.
Progress:
 A feasibility study for a Peer Educator programme for schools has been
carried out and three schools in the borough are interested in being part of the
pilot. The project is being developed.

Rough Sleepers
Action: Establish a multi-agency group of support services for single
homeless and rough sleepers
Progress:
 A multi-agency group, Colchester Homelessness Agencies Service Users
Panel (CHASUP) was set up in 2013 to help entrenched rough sleepers. This
action based task group has helped to co-ordinate an approach across local
statutory and voluntary agencies for individual rough sleepers which includes
reconnecting rough sleepers with substance abuse services, family members
or back to their own home area as well as helping them to obtain
accommodation. During the 6 month pilot period 26 people have been
referred to the panel. During this period, 10 cases were closed; 8 rough
sleepers had been helped to find accommodation and 2 had moved on to
different areas.
Action: Identify move-on opportunities for rough sleepers to help with
transition from living on the street
Progress:
 The April Centre was funded by the Greater Haven Gateway to provide an
Outreach response to rough sleepers across the sub region. The April Centre
were able to provide a fast response to rough sleepers identified by members
of the public as well as partner agencies and help them to access
accommodation and support.
Author: Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer
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 Action being progressed through Help for single homeless bid - Breaking the
cycle of rough sleeping though Intensive Brokerage and increasing the range
of accommodation with support.
New action identified for this section:
Set up an ‘Alternative Giving Campaign’ to discourage members of the public
from giving money to beggars. To educate the public so that their donations
get spent on charitable work to help those in need to reduce street begging in
Colchester.

Author: Karen Paton, Housing Strategy Officer
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Prevent
Homelessness by
helping people
sustain their
tenancies, through
the increased
provision of debt
and welfare rights
advice

How this priority will
be achieved
Increase the
provision of tenancy
support including
floating support to
tenants in social
rented sector
Increased take up of
One support service
– increase in tenants
sustaining their
tenancy
– reduction in
number of evictions
for rent arrears and
ASB

1.1 Encourage the
take up of tenancy
floating support
through One support
to vulnerable tenants
moving into
accommodation
1.2 Tenancy support
Officers to identify
and support clients in
accommodation
1.3 Provide support
and advice to
tenants on
managing debt and
welfare benefits
including
organisations
working with single
homeless
Increase in number
of people using the

Increase take up of
welfare benefits

Reduction in the
number of evictions
for rent arrears

Smart target

Key Actions

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies

2014-15 update

Homelessness Strategy Delivery Plan 2014 – 2019

Throughout the
lifetime of the
strategy

Throughout the
lifetime of the
strategy

By When

Colchester Borough
Homes – Financial
Inclusion
Officer/CAB/Credit
Union/April
Centre/Beacon
House/Night Shelter

Colchester Borough
Homes – Tenancy
Support Officers

Customer Service
Centre/Colchester
Borough
Homes/Registered
Providers

By Whom

19 CBH
tenants were
evicted in
2014/15 for
rent arrears.
CBH Financial
Inclusion
Officer
continues to

Update 2015
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How this priority will
be achieved

Smart target

1.4 Increase the
Credit Union
availability and
provision of debt
advice in the
Borough and
promote existing
services including
the Citizens Advice
Bureau (CAB).
1.5 Continue to raise
awareness of the
Credit Union to
avoid clients using
expensive doorstep
credit providers

Key Actions

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies
By When

By Whom

2

A Housing
Benefit Officer
is working
within the front
facing office
with housing
staff at CBH;
this allows for
crisis resolution
at the front end

support tenants
to manage
budgets.
The Night
Shelter has
appointed a
Tenancy
Sustainment
worker and is
holding pre
tenancy
workshops –
100% success
rate.
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Key Actions

1.6 Provide advice
and support services
to home owners
threatened with
repossession at an

How this priority will
be achieved

Reduce the number
of owner occupiers
losing their
properties through
mortgage arrears

Reduction in
homeless
applications due to
repossession

Smart target

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies

Throughout the
lifetime of the
strategy

By When

Colchester Borough
Homes - Housing
Options Team

By Whom

The CAB has
been grant
funded to
provide an
enhanced
money
management
advice service
which housing
options
services staff
can refer their
clients into
directly.

of the service.
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Provide services
that will support
young tenants to
maintain their
tenancy and prevent
unnecessary
evictions through
ASB and Arrears

How this priority will
be achieved

1.8 Develop early
intervention
programmes for
young people under
25 including pre
eviction panels/pre
tenancy workshops
1.9 Joint working
with Supported
Housing Schemes
for under 25’s on
Notice to Quit
Panels to prevent
evictions

early stage so that
homelessness can
be prevented in a
sustainable way
1.7 Promote the
Governments
Mortgage Rescue
Scheme

Key Actions

Reduction in Young
People being evicted
from their tenancy
including Temporary
Accommodation and
Supported Housing

Smart target

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies

October 2014

By When

Colchester Borough
Homes – Housing
Options
Team/Supported
Housing Network,
CBH TSO’s

By Whom

4

Mortgage
rescue scheme
has now
ceased and no
longer exists.
Pre tenancy
workshops now
mandatory. 15
young people
attend per
workshop. 5
Young people
evicted for rent
arrears by CBH
in 2014/15.
Tenancy
Support Team
now supporting
new young
tenants for 6
months.
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Key Actions

1.10 Set up
monitoring of
release programmes
from Prisons and
Armed Forces
1.11 Work with
Prisons, Armed
Forces and Social
Services on planned
move-on routes The April Centre is
conducting visits to
prisons to help those
ready to be released

1.12 continue to
support the multi-

How this priority will
be achieved

Improve release
programmes for
people leaving Care
and Institutions’
such as Prison and
Armed Forces

Increase prevention
of homelessness

Throughout the
lifetime of the

October 2015

Release
programmes in place

A reduction In
homelessness

Monitoring set up
by April 2015

By When

Data collected to
inform policy

Smart target

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies

Community Initiatives
Team/Housing

Colchester Borough
Homes/The April
Centre

By Whom

5

DWP quarterly
Liaison
meetings set
up - helping to
engage young
people that are
hard to reach.
‘Help for single
homeless’
funding
secured by
CBC, Tendring
DC and Ipswich
BC to provide
early
intervention for
prison leavers.
Anglia Care
Trust to provide
Early
Intervention
Service for 18
months.
Domestic
Abuse protocol
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Key Actions

agency partnership
work with local
domestic abuse
agencies through
the Domestic
Violence Forum
1.13 Monitor the take
up of the Sanctuary
Scheme
Set up a system to
Identify what data is
monitor and analyse already being
the demand for TA,
collected and where
repeat
there are gaps.
homelessness
applications and the
reasons for
homelessness
including where
tenancies have
broken down

How this priority will
be achieved
caused by domestic
violence
strategy

Set up system to
capture data on a
quarterly basis
from April 2016

Set up a template to
collate and monitor
the demand and
supply for temporary
accommodation.

By When

caused by domestic
violence

Smart target

Priority 1: Preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies

CBH- Housing
Options Team/CBCHousing Strategy
Officer

Options Team

By Whom

6

being set up by
ECC.
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How this priority will
be achieved
Provide advice and
support to
tenants/residents
potentially affected
by the welfare
reforms

2.1 Promote the
availability of
Discretionary
Housing Payments
(DHP)
2.2 Work with the Job
Centre Plus to help
assist tenants to
access employment
2.3 Promote mutual
exchange to
encourage tenants to
move including via
Mutual Exchange
fairs
2.4 Review existing
policies to encourage
tenants to move and
make better use of
housing stock
2.5 Identify and
support tenants with
managing budgets –
Financial Inclusion
officer

Key Actions

By
When
Reduction in tenants April
/residents affected
2017
by welfare reforms

Smart target

Priority 2: Mitigating the negative impacts of welfare reform

Colchester Borough
Council/Colchester
Borough Homes/Job
Centre Plus

By Whom

7

DHP used predominately to
assist families in the PRS.
There has been a 43%
reduction in the budget for
2015/16 from the previous
year. On 1st April 2015 the
number of families affected
by the benefit cap was 54
which is a reduction from
228 families in 2012. CBC is
working in partnership with
JCP which includes an
Officer being seconded from
the JCP to provide job
search advice to clients.
CBH has changed its
Transfer Incentive Scheme
and now offers tenants £500
for help with moving costs
and £500 per bedroom given
up, to a maximum of £2,000.
A CBH enabling team
support tenants to make
decisions and take care of
practicalities, to help them
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How this priority will
be achieved

Key Actions

Smart target

Priority 2: Mitigating the negative impacts of welfare reform
By
When

By Whom

8

move.
Since April 2013 the number
of residents affected by the
spare room subsidy has
been reduced by 36%; this
has been achieved by
proactive support, early
intervention and partnership
working. Universal Credit
was rolled out 16th March
2015 for single people
making new ‘simple’ claims
only. Supported Housing is
exempt. Colchester council
has entered into a delivery
partnership agreement with
DWP to deliver four key
elements of support for
claimants inc: support with
housing costs; triage with
debt and budgeting advice;
using PCs; and informing
landlords of the changes.
Within this agreement
Colchester will deliver
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How this priority will
be achieved

Key Actions

Smart target

Priority 2: Mitigating the negative impacts of welfare reform
By
When

By Whom

9

personal budgeting support
(PBS) and digital inclusion
support through a dedicated
customer support team.
Financial Inclusion Officer
continues to support tenants
to manage budgets including
helping 15 tenants with
children to secure DHP to
clear arrears and avoid
eviction and secure DHP
awards for 29 tenants living
in an adapted property to
cover under occupation
charges. The Financial
Inclusion Strategy is being
updated.
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How this priority will
be achieved
Work in partnership
with the Public
Health Team at
Essex County
Council (ECC) on
the Homelessness
Health Needs Audit
to gather local
information on the
health needs of
homeless people.
Collate the
information from the
Health Needs Audit
to identify services
to meet the health
needs of homeless
people in
Colchester. The
results will inform
ECC’s Joint
Strategic Needs
assessment

3.2 ECC and
Colchester Project
Group to work in
partnership to collate
information from the
audit
Services to meet
the health needs of
homeless people
identified

Information Collated

Representatives for
Project Group
agreed

April 2014

Meetings set up and October 2013
work plan agreed

3.1 Work with ECC
and other Local
Authorities in North
Essex to progress
the Health Needs
Audit – Project Group
set up for Colchester
to complete audit CBC, One Support
and Beacon House

By When

Smart target

Key Actions

Priority 3: Improving the Health and Wellbeing of homeless people

ECC/CBC/One
Support/Beacon
House

ECC/CBC/One
Support/Beacon
House

By Whom

10

Beacon House
have been
awarded a
contract from
the CCG for 3
years to provide
health provision
for street
homeless
clients and
outreach
including a
mental health
drop-in service

Health Needs
Audit
completed and
report
published.
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How this priority will
be achieved
Promote the
integration between
health and housing
to meet the actions
identified in the
Public Health
Outcomes
Framework
Improving the wider
determinants of
Health for homeless
acceptances and
households in
temporary
accommodation
Progress work with
ECC and North and
Mid Essex on the
actions from the
ECC Mental Health
Accommodation
Strategy including
the hospital
discharge process
Identified outcomes
in the framework
met

Actions from
strategy
implemented

3.3 Work in
partnership with ECC
Public Health Team
to progress the
actions in the
framework

3.4 Colchester
represented at
meetings with North
and mid Essex
Locality Group.
3.5 Priorities
identified
Project groups set up
to progress actions.
Hospital discharge
process in place

Smart target

Key Actions

November 2015

April 2016

By When

Priority 3: Improving the Health and Wellbeing of homeless people

ECC/CBC/CBH

ECC/CBC/CCG

By Whom

11

Mental Health
Accommodation
Pathway set up
in September
2014 which
included a MH
JRP introduced
to improve
access to
accommodation

CBC attending
meetings set up
to improve
partnership
working
between
Housing Health
and Social
Care.
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Key Actions

Smart target

By When

By Whom

Priority 4: Changing the perception and culture of social housing through education – managing
expectations
How this priority will Key Actions
Smart target
By When
By Whom
be achieved
Provide wider
4.1 Improve
Statutory and
Throughout the
Community
communication of
communication of
Voluntary
lifetime of the
Initiatives/Housing
Colchester Borough services provided by organisations and
strategy
Options –Young
Council’s Housing
the Council to
Service Users more
Persons Housing
and Homelessness
statutory and
aware of services
Forum
services
voluntary sector
provided by
organisations
Colchester Borough
through Information
Council
days
4.2 Identify gaps in
information and
publish and promote
leaflets on the
Council’s

How this priority will
be achieved

Priority 3: Improving the Health and Wellbeing of homeless people

12

COYOHO – a
website

Pocket Guide to
Homelessness
and Young
Persons Guide
updated and
published.

2 successful
homelessness
events held in
2014.

Update 2015
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this group.
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Priority 4: Changing the perception and culture of social housing through education – managing
expectations
How this priority will Key Actions
Smart target
By When
By Whom
be achieved
homelessness and
housing service for
partner
organisations and
young people, and
distribute widely at
key Service
Locations.
Develop early
4.3 Work with the
An increase in
Throughout the
Community
intervention and
Homeless Response homelessness
lifetime of the
Initiatives/Housing
prevention options
Team to raise
prevention for young strategy
Options – Young
for Young People at awareness of family people
Persons Housing
risk of becoming
breakdown and
Forum
A decrease in
homeless in the
provide basic
homeless
Borough through the strategies and
applications for
Young Persons
signposting to
young people
Housing Forum
support families to
resolve conflict
4.4 Continue to work
in partnership with
Schools in the
Borough to educate
young people and
their parents of the
risks of leaving

13

Feasibility study
for a Peer
Educator
programme for
schools has
been carried
out. Project

providing
housing and
homelessness
advice for
young people
set up and
publicised in
2014.
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Increase and
support housing
options for single
people and
vulnerable groups
including Move-on
options from
supported Housing

4.5 Identify, support
and promote
alternative housing
options including
Solo Housing
Scheme, YMCA
Supported Lodgings
Scheme and
Genesis Leasing
Scheme

Increase in
alternative housing
options and planned
move on routes

Throughout the
lifetime of the
strategy

Young Persons
Housing
Forum/Supported
Housing Network

Priority 4: Changing the perception and culture of social housing through education – managing
expectations
How this priority will Key Actions
Smart target
By When
By Whom
be achieved
home in an
unplanned way.

14

COYOHO – a
website
providing
housing and
homelessness
advice for
young people
set up in 2014
Improvement in
culture for
young people in
Supported
Housing with
less reliance on
social housing
as a move on
option.

being
developed.
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Set up a protocol
between voluntary
sector organisations
to enable data on
rough sleepers to be
shared
Identify the support
needs of different

5: Rough Sleepers
How this priority will
be achieved
Establish a multiagency group of
support services for
single homeless and
rough sleepers
Smart target

Support needs
identified

5.3 Work to be
progressed through

November 2015

Protocol established November 2014

April 2014

By When

5.2 Set up protocol
through the
CHASUP meeting

5.1 Re establish the Multi Agency Group
Co-ordinated
established
Welfare Meeting
with organisations
that support single
homeless and rough
sleepers – will help
to identify
duplication in
services

Key Actions

April Centre/Beacon
House/Night

CHASUP

Beacon House/April
Centre/Night
Shelter/CBC

By Whom

15

Support needs
being identified

CHASUP set
up for
organisations to
work
collaboratively
with entrenched
rough sleepers
to help them
access
accommodation
and support.
Meetings held
monthly.
Currently have
22 active cases
and a watching
brief.
Joint working
agreement set
up through
CHASUP
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5: Rough Sleepers
How this priority will
be achieved
types of rough
sleepers including
entrenched rough
sleepers, young
people that are ‘new’
to the streets and
people suffering from
mental health to help
engage with different
groups
Explore the
possibility of
extending the
opening times of
agencies to reduce
the amount of time
that rough sleepers
spend on the street
Identify move-on
opportunities for
rough sleepers to
help with transition
from living on the
street
Move-on options
November 2015
identified
Increase in number Monitored quarterly
of Landlords signing
up to the scheme
Decrease in number
of rough sleepers

5.5 To be
progressed through
the Street Outreach
Service
5.6 Monitor and
promote the Solo
Lodgings Scheme
set up in July 2013

April Centre/Solo
Housing

Beacon House/April
Centre/Night Shelter

November 2014

Opening times
extended – more
places for rough
sleepers to go
during the day

By Whom

5.4 To be
progressed through
the Co-ordinated
Welfare meeting

By When
Shelter/CBC

Smart target

the Street Outreach
Service set up for 2
years from
November 2013
with funding from
the DCLG and
provided by the April
Centre

Key Actions

16

The April
Centre was
funded by the
Greater Haven

Solo housing
scheme no
longer exists.

through
Outreach and
CHASUP.
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5: Rough Sleepers
How this priority will
be achieved

with funding from
the DCLG

Key Actions

Smart target

By When

By Whom

Action being
progressed
through Help
for single

17

Gateway to
provide an
Outreach
response to
rough sleepers
across the sub
region. The
April Centre
were able to
provide a fast
response to
rough sleepers
identified by
members of the
public as well
as partner
agencies and
help them to
access
accommodation
and support.
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To educate the public
so that their
donations get spent
on charitable work to
help those in need to
reduce street
begging in

Set up an ‘Alternative
Giving Campaign’ to
discourage members
of the public from
giving money to
beggars.

5: Rough Sleepers
How this priority will
be achieved

A reduction in the
number of street
beggars.

Increase in funds for
local charities for
those who really
need it.

To encourage
residents to give
donations to
charities for
homeless clients
instead of street
beggars.

Smart target

To produce leaflets
and media publicity
to raise awareness
of perpetuating
street begging.

Key Actions

Estimated start date
August 2015.

By When

Essex Police, CBC,
CBH, Beacon House
and the Safer
Colchester
Partnership.

By Whom

18

Initial funding
identified for
leaflets/media
publicity
through Police
Crime
Commissioner
for Essex.

homeless bid Breaking the
cycle of rough
sleeping
though
Intensive
Brokerage and
Increasing the
range of
accommodation
with support.

Update 2015
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5: Rough Sleepers
How this priority will
be achieved
Colchester.
Smart target
Increase in street
beggars accessing
services.

Key Actions

Signpost street
beggars that need
support to
organisations that
provide the service
required.

By When

By Whom

Update 2015
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Homelessness Strategy Evidence Base update 2015
This is an update of the key data which provides the Evidence base for Colchester’s
Homelessness Strategy 2014 -19 and continues to feed into the Delivery Plan.

Background
The table and graph below show the number of dwellings in Colchester as at 1st April
2014 by tenure. This is an increase from 31st March 2012 when there were 75,945
dwellings in the borough. However there has been a decrease in the number of
dwellings owned by the Local Authority from 6257 in 2012 to 6130 in 2014.
Table 1: Dwellings in Colchester by tenure
Local
Authority
(incl.
owned
Private
by other
Registered
LAs)
Provider
6,130
4,590
Source: DCLG live tables

Other
public
sector
970

Private
sector
65,250

Total
76,940

Figure 1

6,130

4,590
970

Local Authority (incl.
owned by other LAs)
Private Registered
Provider
Other public sector

65,250

Private sector (P)1

Source: DCLG live tables

Housing Development
Between April 2013 and March 2014 a total of 725 new homes were built in
Colchester. In the same year 103 new affordable homes were completed.
The graph below shows the total number of new affordable homes completed in
each year since 2012. Although there was a reduction in 2013-14, during the
following year a total of 259 affordable homes were completed.
1
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Figure 2

Affordable Housing completions
300
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100
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Source: Registered Provider returns

The increase in the delivery of affordable housing in the last year is due to the
completion of several key sites under the Homes and Communities Agency
Affordable Homes Programme 2011-15.
House prices in Colchester
The table below compares the changes in both the overall average house price and
the average lower quartile house price from the previous year. The lower quartile
house price is the bottom of the market - usually smaller homes and flats.
Table 2: House prices
Date
Average price of home
Lower quartile price

December 2013

December 2014

£217,339
£150,000

£230,356
£152,000

Source: Hometrack

Homelessness in Colchester
Detailed information on people that have made a homelessness application to
Colchester Borough Council is recorded on the P1E returns that are sent to the
Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) quarterly.
The P1E provides data on households who have presented themselves as homeless
to the Local Authority, and those who have been accepted as unintentionally
homeless and in priority need.
Although information from the P1E provides an indicator of homelessness in
Colchester it does not represent the whole picture.

2
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The graph below shows the total number of Homelessness applications and
acceptances for the last 3 years.
Figure 3: Applications and Acceptances

350
300

342

342

251

250

263

253
197

200

Homelessness
applications

150

Homelessness
Acceptances

100
50
0

2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

Source: DCLG P1E

During the 2013/14 financial year, there was a 23% decrease in the number of
homelessness applications to the council. This follows the national trend as 111,960
applications were made to local authorities during 2013/14 which is a decrease of
1%t from 113,520 in 2012/13.
In 2014/15 the number of applications In Colchester increased by 23% to 342 (the
same total as 2012/13). Between 1 January and 31 March 2015, local housing
authorities in England received 27,640 applications; this is 2 per cent higher than in
the corresponding quarter in 2014.
The number of acceptances has also decreased by 22% in 2013/14 from the
previous year. This is also in line with the national trend as during the 2013/14
financial year, 52,270 households were accepted by local authorities as being owed
the main homelessness duty. This is a decrease of 3 per cent from 53,770 in
2012/13.
The 28% increase in acceptances in the last financial year 2014/15, almost mirrors
the number of acceptances in 2012/13. In England there were 54,430 acceptances
in financial year 2014-15, up 4 per cent from 52,290 in 2013-14.

3
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The following table provides information on homelessness acceptances broken down
by age category. The highest numbers of acceptances are consistently in the 16-24
and 25-44 age groups.

Table 3: Acceptances by age category
Age
Groups

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

16-24
25-44
45-59

118
102
24

70
103
18

74
147
29

60-64

2

2

2

65-74

4

4

0

75 and
over

1

0

1

197

253

TOTAL
251
Source: DCLG P1E

The table below shows accepted homeless households by priority need category.
The presence of dependent children in the household was the primary reason for
priority need over the last 3 years and in 2014/15 this represented 56% of all
acceptances.
Over the last 3 years there has been a significant reduction in the number of 16/17
year olds being accepted as homeless. Early intervention and prevention options
have been developed for young people at risk of becoming homeless in the Borough.

4
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Table 4: Acceptances by Priority need category

Priority need category

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

Emergency(fire, flood, storms, disaster, etc.)
Families with dependent Children
Pregnant Woman with no other dependent children
16 or 17 year old
Formerly "in care" and aged 18 to 20 years old
Old age
Physical disability

1
125
44
27
4
4
17

2
99
30
16
6
4
10

0
142
36
8
5
3
14

23
0
0
0
1
0
1
0

28
0
1
0
0
0
0
0

32
1
1
1
7
0
0
0

4
4
251

1
1
197

3
2
253

Mental illness or disability
Drug dependency
Alcohol dependency
Former asylum seeker
Other
Been in care
Served in HM Forces
Been in custody/on remand
Fled their home because of violence/threat of
violence
of which Domestic violence
TOTAL
Source: DCLG P1E

The graph below indicates the 3 main reasons for households being accepted as
homeless. Since 2012/13 there has been a 62% increase in households being
accepted due to loss of private rented or tied accommodation, whilst there has been
a 71% decrease due to family/friend eviction. Households accepted as homeless
due to relationship breakdown has remained consistent over the last 3 years.
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Figure 4: Main reasons for Homelessness
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Source: DCLG P1E

(‘Other’ category includes harassment/violence, rent arrears, left institution/care,
sleeping rough or in a hostel and emergency).
Households in temporary accommodation
The graph below shows the total number of households in temporary
accommodation as at 31st March in the last 3 years. From 31st March 2013 to 31st
March 2015 there has been a decrease of 13%.
Figure 5: Households in Temporary accommodation (TA)
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Source: DCLG P1E

In England the number of households in temporary accommodation arranged by
local authorities on 31 March 2015 was 64,710. This was 11 per cent higher than a
year earlier.
6
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The following graph shows the number of households in temporary accommodation
by type of accommodation. From 31st March 2013 to 31st March 2015 the number of
households housed in bed and breakfast accommodation decreased by 60% and
there is an increase of 171% in the number of households accommodated in social
housing (Council/RSL stock) from 34 to 92 households.
Figure 5: Households in temporary accommodation by type of accommodation.

0

50

31-Mar-15 12

100

92

150

12

200

31 0

Bed and Breakfast
Accommodation
Social Housing (Council/RSL
Stock)
Private Sector
Accommodation

31-Mar-14

24

31-Mar-13

30

61

34

18

37

30

41

28

HALs leased properties

Hostel
accommodation/Womens
refuge

25

Other

Source: DCLG P1E
NB. Other types of accommodation include Supported Lodgings placements, mobile homes, such as
caravans, 'demountables', 'portacabins' and ' transportables' These types of accommodation are no
longer used as temporary accommodation.

Homelessness Prevention
The table below shows the total number of cases where homelessness was
prevented by the Housing Options Team and partner organisations in Colchester, for
the last 3 years.
Table 5: Homelessness Prevention cases

Total cases

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

411

616

498

Source: DCLG P1E
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In 2013/14 the increase in the number of homelessness prevention cases from the
previous year was 49%.This followed the national trend as the total number of cases
of homelessness prevention or relief increased by 12% when compared to 2012/13.
The following graph indicates that the increase in prevention in 2013/14 relates to
more cases being assisted to obtain alternative accommodation in the private rented
sector, supported housing schemes and social housing via the Council’s Housing
Register.
Figure 7: Homelessness Prevention cases by Prevention type
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Source: DCLG P1E

In 2013/14 there was a 47% increase in the number of cases assisted to remain in
their existing home, this has remained consistent during 2014/15.
Social Housing Allocations and Nominations
The graph below shows the total number of lettings to Council and Registered
Provider properties in the last 3 years. (This figure includes lettings to transfer
applicants but does not include applicants that have moved via mutual exchange).

8
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Figure 8: Lettings to Council and Registered Provider Properties
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The number of lettings has risen each year since 2012 with an 11% increase from
2013/14 to 2014/15. The percentage of lettings to homeless households has
remained consistent over the 3 year period.

Possession actions in the private and public sector
Landlord possession actions
As shown in the graph below, since 2012 there has been a steady decrease in the
number of Landlord possession claims and claims leading to orders in the social and
private sectors in Colchester.
The number of possession claims issued in 2013 decreased by 12% from 2012 and
a further 11% from 2013 to 2014. Nationally there has also been a decrease in the
number of claims from 2013 to 2014 by 3%.
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Figure 9: Landlord Possession claims
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There has also been a significant reduction in the number of possessions over the
period with a decrease of 55% from 2012 to 2014. During 2014, 15% of claims led to
possession.
Mortgage Possession actions
The graph below shows that there has been a significant decrease in the number of
mortgage possession claims and claims leading to orders since 2012. From 2012 to
2013 there was a 14% reduction in the number of possession claims and a 23%
reduction from 2013 to 2014. This reflects the national trend where there has been a
25% decrease in mortgage possession claims from 2013 to 2014.
Mortgage possessions have also decreased over the period by 67%. In 2014 the
percentage of claims that led to possessions was 16%.
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Figure 10: Mortgage Possession claims
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The decrease in the number of mortgage possession actions could be attributed to
lower interest rates, lenders taking a more proactive approach in managing
customers in financial difficulties and other interventions from the government, such
as the Mortgage Rescue Scheme. In Colchester this has now ceased.
Another factor that may have contributed to the downward trend in the number of
mortgage possession claims and orders include the introduction of the Mortgage
Pre-Action Protocol and also coincides with a decrease in the number of owneroccupiers.
Social Housing Evictions
The table below shows the number of evictions due to rent arrears and anti social
behaviour made by Colchester Borough Homes over the last 3 years. Since 2012/13
there has been a slight reduction in the number of evictions for rent arrears which is
in line with the Landlord possessions in Colchester.Evictions for anti-social behaviour
have significantly reduced in the last year.
Tenancy Sustainment Officers continue to help tenants sustain their tenancies and
reduce the number of those losing their properties through eviction.
Table 6: Evictions – CBC properties

For Rent Arrears
For ASB
For Both
For Other Reason
Source: CBH information

2012-13°
23
5
3
5

2013/14
20
11
3
0

2014/15
19
1
5
3

11
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Welfare Reform
From 2012, Colchester Borough Council (CBC) developed a strategic response to
welfare reform. A welfare reform group was formed bringing together all relevant
service areas. By engaging with each service area from an early stage CBC were
able to identify the impacts of the reform agenda across services and create joined
up solutions. .
It was recognised that the Council would have to apply the changes, and that
services would need to work together even more effectively to mitigate the impact on
residents. CBC recognised the need to support residents in a different way to
minimise the impact of the changes and ensure a proactive approach was taken. A
specialist team was formed to work with those affected by welfare Reform.

The removal of the spare room subsidy in the social rented sector (RSRS)
Since April 2013 there have been new rules in Housing Benefit for working-age
people living in social housing. This is referred to as the removal of the spare room
subsidy.
From 1st April 2013 Housing Benefit will be based on the number of people in the
household and the size of the accommodation. This applies to all working-age
tenants renting from a local authority, housing association or other registered social
landlord. The rules were announced in the Welfare Reform Act 2012.
This means those tenants whose accommodation is larger than they need may lose
part of their Housing Benefit. Those with 1 spare bedroom will lose 14% of their
eligible rent and those with 2 or more spare bedrooms will lose 25%.
Due to proactive support, early intervention and partnership working the number of
residents affected have reduced significantly since the implementation of RSRS as
shown in the table below.
Table 7: Removal of the Spare Room Subsidy – Colchester
Date
1st April 2013
1st April 2014
1st April 2015

Number of Residents
affected (14% or 25%)
1043
713
664

The Benefit Cap
The Benefit Cap, another key feature of the Welfare Reform Act 2012, was
introduced in Colchester from 15th July 2013.
The Benefit Cap limits the total amount of benefit working age residents can receive
as follows:
12
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•
•
•

£500 per week for couples with or without children
£500 per week for lone parents
£350 per week for single customers

Income above the cap levels will be deducted from Housing Benefit initially. Then in
the longer term will form part of Universal Credit. Some households will be excluded
from the Benefit Cap.
From mid-2012 Colchester Borough Council were aware of the residents that were
likely to be affected by the benefit cap as a result of DWP data scans and the
Council’s system reports.
Although the numbers potentially affected by this reform were much lower than the
RSRS case load it was recognised that it presented clear challenges relating to the
general profile of those affected; namely large lone parent families with on average 4
or more dependent children. The reform was also accompanied by the working tax
credit exclusion which provided a focus on work support and training to be offered as
a primary solution.
From 2012, Colchester Borough Council, Colchester Borough Homes and
Colchester Job Centre Plus worked in partnership to provide early intervention to
each resident potentially affected. The support and assistance continued post
implementation and has led to mitigation of the impacts of this reform as shown in
the table below.
Table 8: The Benefit Cap – Colchester
Number of Households
affected
Date
Pre reform data 2012
Implementation 15th July
2013
1st April 2015

~200
98
54

Local Council Tax Support
The Welfare Reform Act 2012 ended Council Tax Benefit. Provisions for the
localisation of Council Tax Support were included in the Local Government Finance
Act 2012.
Since 1st April 2013 Local Authorities have been responsible for administering
their own Council Tax Reduction Schemes. As such Colchester Borough Council
implemented a Local Council Tax Support scheme from 1st April 2013.
In Colchester, Local Council Tax Support currently helps 10,590 residents reduce
their Council Tax bill.
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All working age recipients of Local Council Tax Support have to pay a minimum
contribution of 20% towards their Council Tax bill. National regulations still require
local schemes to ‘protect’ those residents of state pension credit age from any
reduction to their level of support as a result of the localisation of the scheme.
Alongside the introduction of Local Council Tax Support the Customer Support Team
work proactively providing a range of services including flexible payment plans, debt
and back to work advice. The work of this team helps to protect the interests of our
more vulnerable residents.
Universal Credit (UC)
UC is a new single payment for people who are looking for work or on a low income.
It will replace income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment
and Support Allowance, Income Support, Child Tax Credits, Working Tax Credits
and Housing Benefit.
Since April 2013, UC has been tested in path finder sites, mainly in the North West
of England and gradually rolled out to other areas using ‘test and learn’ principles.
From 2015 a national roll out of UC has commenced with a four tranche approach.
Colchester Borough Council (CBC) was included in tranche one with an UC
implementation date of 16th March 2015. Other Essex Local Authorities included in
tranche one are: Basildon, Brentwood, Southend, Tendring and Thurrock.
Initial Claims to UC in Colchester
UC is being introduced gradually using a phased approach. It is only accessible to
certain residents, these being new claims from single people, who would otherwise
have been eligible for Jobseeker’s Allowance (JSA) including those with existing
Housing Benefit claims.
Claims to UC will be administered and awarded by the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP). Access to UC is digital by default. Residents will then attend an
interview at their local Job Centre Plus with their claim for UC assessed within DWP
support centres. Residents with housing costs, will, in most circumstances, claim
such costs as part of UC rather than claim Housing Benefit.
The DWP estimates 2000 claims to UC will be taken in Colchester for the period
March 2015 –March 2016. The DWP considers 20% of such claims will have a
Housing Cost element.
Currently, it is indicated by the DWP that a further expansion of UC, to a wider
customer base, is to be expected with final migration of all legacy benefits to be
completed by 2019.
The introduction of UC will fundamentally change how residents access benefits in
the future including:

14

205

•
•
•

Most claims linked to ‘claimant commitment’ with the JCP where residents
agree to actions
Payments will be made monthly in arrears
Payments will be made directly to the resident

To accommodate tranche one implementation, and to ensure local foundations of
support are established for expansion, the DWP have put in place Delivery
Partnership Agreements. These agreements are between DWP and Local
Authorities to make available support to those who need extra help with Universal
Credit.
The DWP intended this support to be delivered by Local Authorities and to cover the
following areas:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Support for residents claiming UC to get online and stay online
Provision of personal budgeting support for those with complex needs
Provision of a LA point of contact for the UC service centre in respect of
Housing Cost issues
Receiving and processing Local Council Tax Support notifications
Signposting landlords to DWP contact points
Provision of management information
Expectation to contribute to ‘test and learn’ framework

Discretionary Housing Payments – (DHP)
Each year Local Authorities receive a government contribution, and an overall
expenditure limit, to support those receiving Housing Benefit who need extra help
with their housing costs. The funding level is determined by the DWP. Between
2013/14 – 2014/15 funding for DHP was increased significantly in the context of the
Welfare Reform agenda.
Table 9: DHP Funding
Year
2012/13
2013/14
2014/15
2015/16

Government DHP funding to
Colchester Borough Council
£264,881
£448,524
£423,918
£239,924

The Council’s preparation for Welfare Reform was multifaceted and a key stream of
work was the development of a new Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP)
framework. The provision of DHP was completely refocused in all areas in line with
new pressures and goals, greatly increased funding and increased demand; all with
a view of making the customer journey more holistic whilst efficient.
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DHP decision making is an additional task within the Customer Support Team and
by ring fencing the assessment process within this specialist team more support can
be given to each applicant. Therefore greater consistency of decision making can be
achieved both for those affected by reform and those seeking help who are not.
The team foster and develop a network of contacts nationally and locally, fitting the
support needs of the resident to the agency or partner that can help to deliver longer
term solutions.
It is noted that DHP funding levels for 2015/16 have returned to pre reform levels
and the challenges this brings have led to further adaptations to this mechanism of
support.

Single Homeless and Rough Sleepers
There are a significant number of single homeless people in Colchester that the
Council does not owe a duty to house because they are not in priority need as set
out by Homelessness legislation.
A number of voluntary sector organisations in Colchester provide valuable advice,
support and accommodation for the growing number of single homeless people.
The following graph shows the number of clients that have used the voluntary sector
services over the last 3 years.
The clients using Beacon House for help and support has increased by 7% from
2012 to 2014. Between 2012/13 to 2013/14 the Youth Enquiry Service saw an
increase of 26% in the number of under 25’s that they helped to prevent
homelessness for, with a slight decrease in 2014. The number of clients that have
stayed at Colchester Night Shelter has remained consistent over the 3 year period.
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Figure 8: Clients that have used the voluntary sector services
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Rough Sleepers
Local Authorities are required to provide a figure for the number of people rough
sleeping in the area to the DCLG on an Annual basis; this can either be by way of a
count or by providing an estimate from information gathered from local organisations.
Over the last few years Colchester has provided an estimated figure to the DCLG.
The organisations that provide the most accurate information about who is sleeping
rough include; the Night Shelter, the April Centre, Beacon House and many other
organisations that delivers services to or supports those people rough sleeping.
Since 2010 the estimated figure for rough sleeping in Colchester has significantly
risen from 10 people in 2010 to 35 in 2013.
Due to the significant rise in rough sleepers in Colchester, a count took place on
Thursday 20th November 2014 conducted by a mix of Volunteers from CBH, CBC
and partner agencies that work in housing.
Only two rough sleepers were found on the night of the count
A number of factors have led to a decline in the number of rough sleepers in
Colchester, these include:
•

CHASUP (Colchester Homelessness Agencies Service Users Panel). The
multi-agency group was set up in 2013 to help entrenched rough sleepers.
This action based task group has helped to co-ordinate an approach across
local statutory and voluntary agencies for individual rough sleepers which
17
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includes reconnecting rough sleepers with substance abuse services, family
members or back to their own home area as well as helping them to obtain
accommodation. During the 6 month pilot period 26 people have been
referred to the panel. During this period, 10 cases were closed; 8 rough
sleepers had been helped to find accommodation and 2 had moved on to
different areas.
•

The April Centre was funded by the Greater Haven Gateway to provide an
Outreach response to rough sleepers across the sub region (except Ipswich).
As well as being core members of CHASUP they were able to provide a fast
response to any rough sleepers identified by members of the public as well as
partner agencies
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD
DATE:

15 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

14

SUBJECT:

Gateway to Homechoice Report

REPORT BY:

Claire Beckett, Gateway to Homechoice Coordinator
 (01206) 508094
 claire.beckett@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Decision Required / Recommendation

1.1

No decision is required – this is for information only

2.

Purpose of Report

2.1

This report is to present the main findings from the Gateway to Homechoice Annual
Report for 2014/15.

3.

Background & Content

3.1

Gateway to Homechoice is a housing register and choice-based lettings system
which covers the following eight local authority areas and has been in operation since
May 2009:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

3.2

Babergh District Council
Braintree District Council
Colchester Borough Council
Ipswich Borough Council
Maldon District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council
Suffolk Coastal District Council
Waveney District Council
These eight authorities use this scheme to advertise their vacancies in social rented
housing and use the same Allocation Policy which sets out:
1. how people should register for social rented housing
2. how registered applicants can choose where they live
3. how properties are allocated to specific households

3.3

In addition to the local authorities, there are 31 registered providers (RPs) which have
housing stock within the eight local authority areas and also participate in the
Gateway to Homechoice system.
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4.

Findings from the Gateway to Homechoice Annual Report

4.1

For the past two years, an annual report on the Gateway scheme has been written
and published on the Gateway to Homechoice website to which summarises the main
outcomes of the scheme throughout the year.

4.2

The report covers a number of key topics including the following:
•
•
•
•

Total number of lets made across the scheme
Types of applicants
Waiting times for properties
The size of properties which were let

5.

Risk Management

5.1

None

6.

HR Implications

6.1

None

7.

Legal Implications

7.1

None

8.

Financial Implications

8.1

None

9.

Value for Money

9.1

None.

10.

Health & Safety Implications

10.1

None

11.

Equality & Diversity Implications

11.1

Equality and Diversity issues for the Gateway to Homechoice scheme are monitored
by the Equality and Diversity Group.

12.

Residents at the Heart

12.1

None

13.

Decision Required?

13.1

No – item for information

14.

Appendices

14.1

The following documents are appended to this report:

•
•

Appendix 1 – Gateway to Homechoice Annual Report Presentation
Appendix 2 – Gateway to Homechoice Annual Report
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Waveney

Mid Suffolk
Suffolk Coastal
Babergh
Ipswich
Braintree

Colchester

Maldon

Annual Report 2015
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Gateway to Homechoice Annual Report 2014/15
This report is intended to summarise the main outcomes for the past year of the Gateway to
Homechoice system of choice-based lettings.

How the scheme operates
The 8 local authorities in the Gateway to Homechoice scheme advertise vacancies in rented
social housing using the same system that operates as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The local authorities (LAs) use a single IT system and web-site for registering applicants
and advertising and allocating properties.
Each week the vacant social housing in the area of operation of the 8 LAs is advertised
on the Gateway to Homechoice website.
Applicants who are registered can indicate up to 2 properties they are interested in
either online or by phone.
All of the vacancies advertised through the scheme are owned by councils or housing
associations.
All of the LAs operate the same allocation policy.
The allocations policy sets out:
o how people register;
o how registered applicants can choose where they live; and
o how the property is allocated to a specific household.

Qualification and Local Connection
People register with the LA where they live (or would like to live if they come from outside the area
covered by the scheme). Applicants with no local connection to any of the LAs are ‘demoted’ by one
Band compared to someone with the same housing issue from within the area. An applicant will be
considered to have a local connection to the sub-region if:
•
•
•
•

their only or principle home is in one of the participating districts; or
they were placed in specialised housing outside the sub-region, but previously lived here; or
they are in permanent paid work in the sub-region; or
they have an adult son, daughter, brother, sister, mother or father who lives here and has
done so for at least 5 years.

Shortlisting
The principle of the system is that properties are normally let to the household that wants the
property, and has been waiting the longest in the highest Band.
Available properties are advertised on the Gateway to Homechoice website for a week, starting on
Thursday morning and closing on the following Wednesday at midnight. As people place their bids for
housing, the system automatically compiles a shortlist of applicants. The order of the applicants is
from Band A down to Band E. If 2 or more applicants have the same band, then the system will
normally place the applicant with the longest date first.

The Gateway to Homechoice website address is www.gatewaytohomechoice.org
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1. Number of properties let in each Local Authority through Gateway to Homechoice between 2009/10 &

2014/15
The number of properties that become available to let each year is affected by a number of factors but the main ones
are:
•
•

the number of rented social homes in the area and
the number of new social homes let in that year.

The variations between the LAs reflects mainly the size of their social rented sector. For example, Colchester and Ipswich
have the largest number of social homes, while Maldon has the smallest number. The changes from one year to the next
within a local authority area usually reflect the variation in the number of new homes provided.
Waveney District Council joined the scheme during the financial year 2010/11 so there is limited data for that year and
none for the previous year.

Number of Properties Let in each Local Authority through Gatway to Homechoice
between 2009/10 - 2014/15
Waveney District
Council
0

614
662
633
573

84

Number of Lets 2014/15
Number of Lets 2013/14
Number of Lets 2012/13

Suffolk Coastal
District Council

388
351

467
471
474

557

Number of Lets 2011/12
Number of Lets 2010/11
Number of Lets 2009/10

317

Mid Suffolk
District Council

310

Maldon District
Council

396
418
358
373

113 183
202
177
153
152

Ipswich Borough
Council

865
877

741

958

725

Colchester
Borough Council

640

725

803
809

694

Braintree District
Council

607
564
610

Babergh District
Council
244

330
372
373
386
356

699

752

1067

1031
999
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2. Total number of properties let in each Local Authority in 2014/15 split by the type of tenancy
Social housing for rent can be let at social or affordable rent levels. Social rent is set using a formula that takes
into account local earnings and house prices, while affordable rent is set at 80% of market rent. In general,
affordable rents are higher than social rents and gap between them is bigger for bigger properties.
Affordable rents are usually charged for all new social housing. Some housing associations and councils also
‘convert’ properties from social rent to affordable rent when properties become vacant. This raises money to
invest in new affordable housing.
Social Rent

Waveney District Council

562

Suffolk Coastal District Council

276

88

40

41

25

Ipswich Borough Council

783

Colchester Borough Council

Waveney District Council
Suffolk Coastal District Council
Mid Suffolk District Council
Maldon District Council
Ipswich Borough Council
Colchester Borough Council
Braintree District Council
Babergh District Council

82

604

Braintree District Council

Babergh District Council

52

517

Mid Suffolk District Council

Maldon District Council

Affordable Rent

565

281

Social Rent
92%
93%
87%
78%
91%
75%
81%
85%

49

Affordable Rent
8%
7%
13%
22%
9%
25%
19%
15%

199

129
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3. Total number of properties let in 2014/15 split by the bedroom size of the property

2 Bed, 1,708
3 Bed, 944
1 Bed, 1,440
4 Bed, 103

6 Bed, 2
Bedsit, 94

5 Bed , 2

4. Proportion of property lettings in 2014/15 made through Gateway to Homechoice split by age of the main
applicant

36-45
18.1%

46-55
12.6%
56-65
10.4%

26-35
25.5%

66-75
8.5%
16-25
18.9%

Over 75
6.0%
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About ‘Bands’
When someone applies for housing, the urgency of their application is assessed in line with the Allocations Policy, which
can be viewed and downloaded from the scheme’s web-site. Applications are placed in ‘Bands’ from A to F, depending on
the level of need. The main categories of need for each band are summarised below. (Please look at the website if you
want a complete guide to the banding scheme).

Band

Main categories of need

A

Critical medical/welfare award
Downsizing from 3 bedroom or larger social housing property
Nominations from supported housing providers with agreed move-on arrangements
Serious medical/welfare award
Downsizing from 2 bed social housing property
Accepted homeless cases and some cases where homelessness can be prevented
Overcrowding in social or private rented housing
Moderate medical/welfare award
Notice to quit
Homeless households not in ‘priority need’
People sharing facilities with other households or lacking facilities
Applicants whose needs have been assessed as having a higher need but whose
application has been given reduced preference. Examples include people with no local
connection and households with a poor tenancy history (e.g. arrears, current or previous
eviction action)
People with no immediate need to move
Applicants registering for schemes where qualification is based on an assessment of care
needs (such as ‘Extra Care’ or ‘Very sheltered’ housing schemes).

B

C

D

E
F

5. Total number of properties let in 2014/15 split by the band awarded to the applicant

Band B, 1,882

Band C, 1,015

Band D, 81

Band E, 553
Band A, 717

Band F, 45
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Types of Applicant
We split applicants into 3 categories:

Homeless applicants
Households that a local authority has accepted a legal duty
to house. Most will be in temporary accommodation.

6. Applicants housed in 2014/15 through
Gateway to Homechoice split by applicant
type
Homeless
Applicants
15%

Transfer Applicants
Council or housing association tenants seeking a move to
another property.
Direct Applicants
All other applicants. The largest groups are people renting
privately and people living with their family.

Direct
Applicants
54%

Transfer
Applicants
31%

We want to house a reasonable balance between these
groups. The scheme is designed to recognise how urgently
people need to move, while meeting our legal duties and
promoting a reasonable flow of properties.

Accessibility and adaptations
Some people with disabilities need a home to have certain features for it to be suitable for them. Most commonly, people
have limited mobility and need a property with level access (such as a bungalow or ground floor flat). It is also relatively
common for people to need a level-access shower. A few people need a property adapted specifically for a wheelchair
user.
We are committed to making sure that adapted homes are offered to people who need the adaptations in the property.
We therefore operate a system where people identify their accessibility needs to us and if a suitable property becomes
vacant, people needing the adaptations are given priority first.

7. Properties let through Gateway to Homechoice in 2013/14 to people with a stated accessibility need

Housed with no stated
Accessibility Needs,
3267

Housed with stated
Accessibility Needs,
1026

Housed in an
Adapted
Property, 785

Housed in a Non
Adapted Property, 241
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Waiting times
The table below shows the average waiting time (in months) for housing, broken down by the band of the
applicant. It is measured by recording how long people have been waiting when they are housed.
Some people, such as those waiting for a smaller home, may choose to wait until a property becomes available
in a specific area. Others, such as people in temporary accommodation, are more likely to take the first
available vacancy. This is reflected in some of the figures, as people waiting for downsizing moves from larger
family homes are in Band A, while homeless households are in Band B. The waiting times in some districts are
therefore shorter in Band B than Band A.
8. Average waiting times in months of those housed through Gateway to Homechoice in 2014/15 split by
Band
Overall

Band A

Band B

Band C

9.9
7.0

Waveney

9.6
11.2
8.8
9.8

Suffolk Coastal

6.8
11.0
7.8
7.4
6.9

Mid Suffolk

9.2
9.7

Maldon

7.7
12.4
10.4

Ipswich

4.5
10.2
17.8
13.1

Colchester

6.4
11.7
23.5
9.8

Braintree

6.9
6.5
19.6
8.4

Babergh

7.0
7.9
10.9
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Household Movement
Households register with the District where they live (or where they want to live if they are from outside the area of the
scheme). Once registered, they can ‘bid’ for housing in any of the 8 Local Authority areas.
There are some exceptions to this policy. In particular:

•
•

If a Council accepts a homeless duty to an applicant, the applicant will normally be restricted to bidding for
housing in the area of that Council.
New affordable housing is normally offered on first let to people with a connection to the local authority where it
is built. On some rural exception sites, where there are planning agreements, the local connection also applies
each time they are relet.

Imbalances between inward and outward movement can be controlled by advertising properties as available only for
local residents for a period of time. This can be applied to specific property types, for example to 2 bed houses, so that a
Council can restrict bidding until a better balance is reached.
The following tables show the extent of movement between the local authorities. Some of the people who move
between districts may have a connection (for example through work or family) to the area they move to.

9. The movement of households housed through Gateway to Homechoice in 2014/15
Inward Moves minus Outward Moves

Moves within the LA through GTHC

42

Waveney

557
42

Suffolk Coastal

474
11

Mid Suffolk

269
-18

Maldon

110
-44

Ipswich

791
-43

Colchester

751
7

Braintree

628
3

Babergh

279
-100

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800
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10. Details of the inward and outward movements between Districts of those housed through
Gateway to Homechoice in 2014/15
Moves into the District from other LA's in GTHC

Moves out of the District to other LA's in GTHC

-15

Waveney

57

-41

Suffolk Coastal

83

-37

Mid Suffolk

48

-21 3

Maldon

-118

Ipswich

74

-95

Colchester

52

-59

Braintree

66

-48

Babergh

-150

-100

-50

51

0

50

100
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11. Ethnic groups housed through Gateway to Homechoice in 2013/14 compared with overall
ethnicity in the Gateway to Homechoice area.

100.0%
90.0%
80.0%

91.7%
% of those Housed through GTHC

86.1%

GTHC Area Ethnicity Proportions

70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%

1.1%2.0%

2.7%0.9%

1.8% 1.6% 1.9%0.0%

0.6% 0.4%

Asian or
Asian
British

Black or
Black
British

Mixed

Other
Ethnic
Group

5.1%
2.8%

0.8%0.5%

0.0%0.1%

0.0%
Not Stated

Other
White

White
British

White Irish White or
Irish
Traveller

As above but with the ‘White British’ ethnic group excluded.

6.0%
% of those Housed through GTHC

5.1%

5.0%
GTHC Area Ethnicity Proportions

4.0%
2.8%

2.7%

3.0%
2.0%

1.8%
1.6%

2.0%

1.9%

1.1%
0.9%

1.0%

0.8%
0.5%

0.6%
0.4%

0.0%0.1%

0.0%

0.0%
Asian or
Asian
British

Black or
Black
British

Mixed

Not Stated

Other
Ethnic
Group

Other
White

White Irish

White or
Irish
Traveller
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12. Gateway to Homechoice Armed Forces data.
We give additional priority to people who have served in the armed forces.
When we consider an application from someone who has a history of service, we use the same criteria as when we band
all other applicants. When households bid for a property, the household with a service history automatically comes above
all the people in the same Band.
This means they are more likely to be housed than someone who has the same circumstances but has no history of
service.

Note: Data in this section
refers to the local authority
(LA) where the applicant
registered. Because
applicants can move
between LAs, totals here are
likely to differ slightly from
the number of property
lettings in each LA in the
tables at the beginning of
this report.

Local Authority where
Applicant was registered

Local Authority where applicant was
registered

Households
housed with
Armed Forces
priority in 2014/15

Total households
housed through GTHC
in 2014/15

Babergh District Council

11

316

Braintree District Council

22

665

Colchester Borough Council

34

812

Ipswich Borough Council

22

887

Maldon District Council

1

130

Mid Suffolk District Council

11

295

Suffolk Coastal District Council

19

496

Waveney District Council

11

561

Grand Total

131

4162

Overall % Housed

3.1%

100.0%

Active Applicants with Armed Forces
Priority as at 10.04.15

Total Active Applicants as at 10.04.15

Babergh District Council

29

1089

Braintree District Council

55

2336

Colchester Borough Council

150

4039

Ipswich Borough Council

66

3018

Maldon District Council

9

1035

Mid Suffolk District Council

25

908

Suffolk Coastal District Council

74

2950

Waveney District Council

45

2337

Grand Total

453

17712

Overall % of Active Applicants

2.6%

100.0%

Priority Type

Overall Average Waiting Time in Months to be housed through
GTHC in 2014/15

Households housed with Armed Forces Priority

7.4

Households housed with no Armed Forces Priority

11.6
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13. Gateway to Homechoice Active Applicants data by band (as of 27.05.2015)
The number of applicants changes all the time as new people register and households move into accommodation or do
not renew their application. New applicant numbers are therefore a ‘snapshot’ at a particular point in time. All of the data
for the report so far has related to the households that have been housed through the scheme and mainly looks back at
the year from April 2014 to March 2015. The data below relates to people waiting to be housed. The report from which
this was generated was taken on 27th May 2015.
The chart shows the number in each Band, in each Local Authority.
A
Waveney District Council 101 231

480

B

148

45
116 243 40

451

D

E

F
11

1356

Suffolk Coastal District Council 74140 338 140

Mid Suffolk District Council

C

5

2009

6

11

Maldon District Council 55

51
177

Ipswich Borough Council 127

397

Colchester Borough Council 142

773

516

Braintree District Council 106 236

627

500

217

1054

Babergh District Council 68 183 276 36

0

4

735

243

134

530

37

1532

8

2156

27

1324

1

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500
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14. Gateway to Homechoice Active Applicants Data (as of 27.05.2015) compared to the total number of properties let
in each Local Authority area in 2014/15.
The data below compares the number of registered applicants in May 2015 with the number of lettings made during the
previous year
Active Applicants

Properties Let in LA

2327

Waveney District Council

614

2706

Suffolk Coastal District Council

557

901

Mid Suffolk District Council

317

1033

Maldon District Council
113

3083

Ipswich Borough Council

865

4119

Colchester Borough Council

803

2454

Braintree District Council

694

1094

Babergh District Council

330

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500
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15. Monitoring Residency
The 2013 Code of Guidance ‘Providing social housing for local people’ indicated the Government’s preference for local
authorities to apply a residency requirement as part of the qualification criteria for allocations of social housing. It is
suggested that 2 years would be a reasonable period to consider. This is not straightforward for us as:
• It does not dovetail with the timescale for our legal duties to homeless households;
• Our scheme works across the boundaries of 8 local authorities and most people can move freely between local
authorities if they are successful in bidding for a property; and
• Our current housing application process asks applicants about their address history but the IT system cannot
report on it or use it as the basis for shortlisting applicants. We expect this to change when we next update the
system.
We undertook a research project between August and October 2014. Six organisations completed monitoring reports for
all the applicants that were housed in this 3 month period. The full report is published separately. The findings were:
• 665 applicants were housed in the reporting period by the participating organisations
• 26 of these households were living outside the area of operation of Gateway to Homechoice at the time they
were housed.
• Of those, 10 moved into sheltered housing, 7 had close family in the district where they were housed and 3 were
fleeing violence and had to move away from their home district.
• The Project Board recommended on the basis of the report that we require future IT updates to enable the
facility for monitoring and reporting on the length of time someone has lived locally but that there is no evidence
that inward migration has a significant impact on the scheme.
16. Customer Survey
We undertook a customer survey in early 2015. The results will be published on the Gateway to Homechoice web-site.
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Gateway to Homechoice Coordinator

Claire Beckett

Annual Report – 2014-2015
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Project Board
Gateway
Coordinator

Host Organisation
(CBH)

Gateway Scheme

Ops Group

E & D Group

RP Group
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Active

Verify

Apply

• Once all relevant information has been verified the
applicant is made 'Active' and is able to bid for
properties

• The relevant local authority receives the application and
verifies the information in it

• People apply for housing by completing an online
application form at gatewaytohomechoice.org.uk

Application Process
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Main categories of need

Critical medical/welfare award
Downsizing from 3 bedroom or larger social housing property
Nominations from supported housing providers with agreed move-on arrangements

Serious medical/welfare award
Downsizing from 2 bed social housing property
Accepted homeless cases and some cases where homelessness can be prevented
Overcrowding in social or private rented housing

Moderate medical/welfare award
Notice to quit
Homeless households not in ‘priority need’
People sharing facilities with other households or lacking facilities

Applicants whose needs have been assessed as having a higher need but whose application
has been given reduced preference. Examples include people with no local connection and
households with a poor tenancy history (e.g. arrears, current or previous eviction action)

People with no immediate need to move

Applicants registering for schemes where qualification is based on an assessment of care needs
(such as ‘Extra Care’ or ‘Very sheltered’ housing schemes).

Band

A

B

C

D

E

F

Bands

230

141

132

13

40

62

84

Colchester

Ipswich

Maldon

Mid Suffolk

Suffolk
Coastal

Waveney

636

104

Braintree

Total

60

Babergh

Band A

1827

234

113

115

48

393

504

232

188

Band B

3840

407

240

260

140

781

1095

626

291

Band C
36

936

135

59

40

43

224

268

131

Band D

9043

1268

1058

448

646

1515

2314

1288

506

Band E

Active Applicants
Band F

72

17

8

6

3

15

12

11

0

Total

16354

2145

1540

909

893

3060

4334

2392

1081
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Direct Applicants
•
All other applicants. The largest groups are
people renting privately and people living with
their family.

Transfer Applicants
•
Council or housing association tenants seeking a
move to another property.

Homeless applicants
•
Households that a local authority has accepted a
legal duty to house. Most will be in temporary
accommodation while bidding for properties on
the Gateway

We split applicants into 3 categories:

Direct
Applicants
54%

Homeless
Applicants
15%

Types of applicants

Transfer
Applicants
31%
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Babergh District Council

Braintree District Council

Colchester Borough Council

Ipswich Borough Council

Maldon District Council

Mid Suffolk District Council

Suffolk Coastal District Council

Waveney District Council

0

330

113

317

865

1033

901

694

500

1094

803

557

614

1000

3083

1500

2706

2454

2327

Active Applicants

2000

4119

2500

Properties Let in LA

3000

3500

Properties let in 2014/15

4000

4500
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4.5

Babergh

Braintree

Colchester

7.0

6.9
6.5

6.4
9.8

10.9

13.1

12.4

11.7

11.0

11.2

Band B

10.4
10.2

9.7

9.8

9.9
9.6

9.2

8.8

8.4
7.9

7.7

Maldon

Ipswich

7.8
7.4
6.9

6.8

7.0

Band A

Mid Suffolk

Suffolk Coastal

Waveney

Overall

Band C

17.8

19.6

Waiting times for properties

23.5
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7.8
8.4
8.8
9.7
9.8
9.9
10.4
13.1

Babergh District Council

Suffolk Coastal District Council

Maldon District Council

Braintree District Council

Waveney District Council

Ipswich Borough Council

Colchester Borough Council

Overall Waiting
times in months

Mid Suffolk District Council

Local Authority

23.5

Colchester Borough Council

17.8

12.4

11.2

11

10.9

9.2

19.6

Band C Waiting
time in months

Braintree District Council

Ipswich Borough Council

Maldon District Council

Waveney District Council

Suffolk Coastal District Council

Babergh District Council

Mid Suffolk District Council

Local Authority

Waiting times 2
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2014/15 Total
94
1440
1708
944
103
2
2
4293

Property Size

Bedsit

1 bed

2 bed

3 bed

4 bed

5 bed

6 bed

Total

803

0

0

32

162

318

259

32

Colchester

Size of Properties Let
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Housed with no
Accessibility
Needs
76%
Housed with
stated accessibilty
needs
24%

Housed in
an Adapted
Property
18%

Accessibility Needs

Housed in a Non
Adapted Property
6%

237

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

2.7%

0.9%

Asian or Asian Black or Black
British
British

1.1% 2.0%
Mixed

1.8%

1.6%

GTHC Area Ethnicity Proportions

% of those Housed through GTHC

0.0%

Not Stated

1.9%

Other Ethnic
Group

0.6% 0.4%

2.8%
Other White

5.1%

White British

86.1%

91.7%

White Irish

0.8% 0.5%

White or Irish
Traveller

0.0% 0.1%

Ethnic background of applicants
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Overall Average Waiting Time in Months to
be housed through GTHC in 2014/15

7.4

11.6

Priority Type

Households housed with Armed
Forces Priority

Households housed with no
Armed Forces Priority

Armed Forces Additional Priority
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Any questions?
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

15

SUBJECT:

Annual Report from Finance & Audit Committee

REPORT BY:

Nigel Chapman, Chair of Finance & Audit Committee

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Introduction & Purpose

1.1

Board members are invited to note the report, which outlines the main areas
of the Finance & Audit Committee’s (the ‘Committee’) activity during 2014/15.

1.2

The Finance and Audit Committee approved this report for presentation at its
meeting on 30th July 2015.

2.

Background

2.1

This report outlines the activities of the Committee during 2014/15 and is
presented to the Board as part of the governance assurance process.

2.2

The purpose of the Committee, as set out in the Terms of Reference, is to:
(a)

Provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management
framework and the associated control environment.

(b)

Provide independent scrutiny of the Company’s financial and nonfinancial performance to the extent that it affects the Company’s
exposure to risk and weakens the control environment.

(c)

Oversee the financial reporting process.

2.3

The minutes of each Committee Meeting have been reported to the Board,
and the Chair of the Committee is invited to make the Board aware of any
concerns at these meetings.

2.4

During the year, the Committee has received a Finance Assurance Report at
each meeting, setting out financial and risk management performance.
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3.

Finance & Audit Committee Activity – 2014-15
Risk Management

3.1

The Committee has taken a robust approach to managing risk and this was
agreed to become a standing item on all Committee agendas following
approval of the revised Risk Management Strategy in March 2015.

3.2

In July 2014, the Committee agreed to review the approach to managing
strategic risks with the aim of reducing the number of risks that appeared on
the strategic risk register. The Committee were involved in identifying and
scoring the risks. All risks of strategic importance are reported to each
Committee, with progress on mitigating actions challenged by Committee
Members.

Financial Performance and Reporting
3.3

Each quarter, the Committee received a detailed update on the current
financial position of the company, focusing on the CBH management fee
budgets, CBC delegated budgets, outstanding debts and leasehold arrears. A
separate report was presented on Property Services finances.

3.4

At its meeting of 31 July 2014, the Committee scrutinised the Audited
Financial Statements before they were brought to Board for approval. At this
meeting, Members met with the external auditor without any officers present
to discuss any concerns. No concerns were raised by the auditor or Members.

3.5

At its meeting on 16 December 2014, the Committee scrutinised the proposed
budgets for 2015/16 and approved the Management Fee budget.
Non-Financial Performance

3.6

The Committee reviewed and approved the annual internal and external audit
plans.

3.7

The Committee received regular reports from the internal auditor on progress
against audits and compliance with follow-up actions. The Head of Internal
Audit Annual Report, received in May 2014, provided an overall opinion of
substantial assurance. Members were given assurance that staff had cooperated with the auditors and that the auditor’s activities had not been
impaired.

3.8

On 27 May 2014, the Committee scrutinised and approved the Annual
Governance Statement.

3.9

On 10 March 2015, the Committee recommended the Value for Money
Strategy to Board for approval.

3.10

At its meeting on 27 May 2014, the Committee received reports from the
Chairs of the Operations Committee and the Governance & Remuneration
Committee, providing assurance that these Committees had fulfilled the duties
delegated to them by the Board during the previous financial year.
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4.

Financial Implications

4.1

The Committee monitors the financial performance of the company, as
described in the main body of the report.

5.

HR Implications

5.1

None.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

The Committee assures the Board that it has complied with its legal
responsibilities in respect of the audited financial statements.

7.

Health & Safety Implications

7.1

None.

8.

Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1

None.

9.

Residents at the Heart

9.1

None.

10.

Risk Management

10.1

The committee has complied with its duty to regularly review the risk
management process controls.

11.

Appendix

11.1

Work Plan 2015/16.

244

Appendix 1
F & A Committee – Work Plan 2015-16
Date

Item

Officer

Tue 6 Oct

Terms of Reference Annual Review

Board Assurance Officer

CBH Financial Update

Finance Managers

Grounds Maintenance Update

Community Operations
Manager (CBC)

Internal Audit Progress & Follow Up

Internal Auditor

Anti-Fraud & Corruption Procedure

Director of Resources

Risk Management Strategy Action Plan

Director of Resources

Future Proofing Highlight Report

Chief Executive

Standing Item: Strategic Risk Register Review

Director of Resources

Standing Item: Governance Actions

Board Assurance Officer

Changes to Legislation on Public Procurement

Director of Property Serv.

Tue 15 Dec

Tue 8 Mar

Election of Committee Vice Chair
CBH Budget 2016/17

Finance Managers

CBH Financial Update

Finance Managers

Internal Audit Progress & Follow Up

Internal Auditor

ICT Priorities Report

IT Officer

Annual Governance Statement – update on significant
governance issues

Director of Resources

Standing Item: Strategic Risk Register Review

Director of Resources

Standing Item: Governance Actions

Board Assurance Officer

Confidential – Appointment of Internal Auditors

Director of Resources

CBH Financial Update

Finance Managers

Internal Audit Progress & Follow Up

Internal Auditor

Internal Audit Plan 2015/16

Director of Resources &

245
Date

Item

Officer
Internal Auditor

External Audit Plan 2014/15

External Auditor

Review of CBH Insurance Cover

Insurance Broker?

Risk Register Annual Review – ensuring compliance
with Risk Management Strategy

Director of Resources

Risk Management Strategy Action Plan

Director of Resources

Standing Item: Strategic Risk Register Review

Director of Resources

Standing Item: Governance Actions

Board Assurance Officer
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

16

SUBJECT:

Equality and Diversity Annual Update

REPORT BY:

Claire Holland, Equality and Diversity Officer
 (01206) 282682
 Claire.holland@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Recommendation

1.1

This report provides an annual update on Colchester Borough Homes and
equality and diversity; highlighting priorities for 2015/16.

2.

Background

2.1

In 2010, the Government introduced the Equality Act 2010 which contained
the Public Sector Equality Duties (PSED).

2.2

The ‘general duty’ as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, states
that those subject to the Equality Duty must have due regard to the need to:
•
•
•

2.3

It also introduced two ‘specific duties’. These are:
•
•

2.4

Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, and victimisation;
Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and
Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

By 31 January 2012, and then at least annually, to publish equality
information in order to demonstrate that we are meeting our equality duties
in full; and
By 5 April 2012 to consult on, set and publish at least one equality
objective, and then afterwards at least every four years.

This report details progress to date on CBH Equality Objectives and
recommends priorities for 2015/16.
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3.

Progress achieved

3.1

CBH continues to meet its legal obligation to publish equality information on
tenants and staff by protected characteristics where available. We also
analyse the information to ensure we are meeting the general aims of the
Equality Duty as set out in paragraph 2.2 above.

3.2

To demonstrate its commitment to equality, CBH commissioned Blue Star
Human Resources Ltd to undertake an independent Equal Pay Review
(EPR). The EPR was based on the Equality & Human Rights Commission
(EHRC) five-step model, which comprises a number of tests designed to
indicate bias in pay application.
A small number of recommendations have been made as a result of the EPR
and these include:
• putting in place a clear policy and guidance for managers on employee
starting salaries
• encouraging more staff to share their diversity information with CBH
• reviewing the use and need of career grades and ‘plus’ point grades
• looking at the use of the call out rotas

3.3

CBH now analyses complaints by protected characteristics annually, where
data is available. Of the 40 complaints received during the period
1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015, equality data was available for 34 of the
complainants. The analysis concluded that there were no concerns regarding
protected characteristics.

3.4

However, it is worth noting that once CBH moves from using Covalent to
capture complaints data to Capita and starts to capture the information on
informal complaints and member enquiries too; where information is held on
tenants, it will allow better analysis of the complaints data and make it easier
to identify trends.

3.5

CBH was looking for an innovative way to train involved tenants and
leaseholders in equality and diversity. In May 2015 a pilot was run with CBH
involved tenants and CBH staff at the Colchester Institute, using a mixture of
learning methods, including animation and film making. The pilot was
successful and a series of training has been commissioned for involved
tenants and leaseholders to take place from September to November 2015.
The learning methods can be used to provide training in a range of subjects
and it is possible that this may be adopted for staff training in the future.

3.6

CBH continues to facilitate a staff Equality and Diversity Work Group
(EDWG). The aim of the EDWG is to provide an active forum for the
discussion of, and involvement in, equality and diversity issues that affect
CBH’s workforce, our tenants and leaseholders, as well as the wider Borough
population.
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4.

Priorities 2015/16

4.1

To continue meeting legal obligations under the Equality Act 2010, (the
general duty) and the Public Sector Equality Duty. For 2015/16 CBH need to
publish equality data on its staff and customers by 31 January 2016.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Equality Objectives
Equality Objectives have to be set every four years as set out in paragraph
2.3 above. CBH needs to review its current objectives, consult on and draft
new Equality Objectives by April 2016.
Equality Strategy
CBH has an Equality Strategy that is due for review in 2016. The Strategy
includes an action plan that sets out CBH’s Equality Objectives and actions
needed to meet the objectives. As the Equality Objectives are due to be set
again by April 2016, a new Equality Strategy will be drafted and consulted on
at the same time.
Equality Impact Assessments
CBH continues to work towards fully embedding equality and diversity into the
culture of the organisation. Equality Impact Assessments or Equality Analysis
as it is also known, are integral not only to ensuring equality and diversity is
embedded, but that equality and diversity implications are properly considered
for all policies, strategies and services.
As an organisation, CBH need to be better at evidencing how we are meeting
our general duty under the Equality Act 2010, what checks are made and by
whom. To help this, the Equality and Diversity Officer is reviewing the current
EqIA process to ensure it is robust but also user friendly. Staff and Board
members need to be reminded that it is their duty to ensure that CBH is
considering equality and diversity in all it does.
Equality Data
CBH is continuing to improve the equality data held on tenants and staff. The
system used for capturing the data now includes all protected characteristics
and the Equality and Diversity Officer is looking at how we can increase
disclosure of this information, as well as ensuring the data is accurate and up
to date.
Social Housing Equality Framework
The Social Housing Equality Framework (SHEF) has been developed by the
Local Government Association (LGA) with the aim of helping housing
organisations integrate their commitments to promote equality and diversity
into their everyday work, in developing policy, delivering services and in
relation to their own employees.
Being assessed against the SHEF would involve completing a selfassessment that would take approximately three months to complete and
would involve staff from across the organisation at all levels to provide case
studies, written submissions and coaching of staff, to prepare for the actual
assessment. CBH would then submit the self -assessment to the LGA who
would assess the organisations suitability for peer review. At this stage CBH
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would not have to commit any money.
4.9

The peer review would include a three-day onsite assessment, with interviews
of staff from across the organisation, Board Members, customers and
partners. The review itself would cost £7,400 plus VAT and expenses.

4.10 CBH and LGA have provisionally discussed being assessed against the
SHEF in April/May 2016, with precise dates to be agreed.
Equality Training
4.11 Last organisation-wide mandatory equality and diversity training was carried
out in 2013. Previously DMT had agreed that organisation-wide training
should take place every three years. It is therefore recommended to look at
carrying out training for all staff in 2016. This would tie in with our new
Equality Strategy and Action Plan, setting new equality objectives, as well as
complying with sections of the Social Housing Equality Framework.
4.12 For information, DMT and SMT received training January – March 2014
around the business case for equality and diversity; and the Board received
equality training in February 2015.
5.

Risk Management

5.1

If the priorities highlighted for 2015/16 are not acted upon it could have an
adverse effect on the reputation of CBH.

5.2

As an organisation CBH needs to show what it is doing to meet its duties
under the general duty and the Public Sector Equality Duties as set out
above. The Equality Strategy and Action Plan along with our Equality Impact
Assessments (EqIAs) and information published on our website go some way
to showing how CBH are meeting its duties.

5.3

If CBH does not show how it is meeting its legal obligations under the Equality
Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duties then it leaves itself open to
challenge, and subject to review by the Equality and Human Rights
Commission.

6.

HR Implications

6.1

There are some actions within the current Equality Strategy that apply to the
Human Resources team, particularly objectives 5 and 6 relating to staff. HR
continues to complete EqIAs on all new and existing HR policies and
strategies.

7.

Legal Implications

7.1

CBH need to ensure that they are complying with the Equality Act 2010 and
the Public Sector Equality Duties. As an employer and provider of public
services, Colchester Borough Homes may face legal challenges from
individuals who have been discriminated against because of discriminatory
practices, however unintended. Legal cases brought on grounds of
discrimination do not have upper limits like those brought through employment
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tribunals so it imperative that CBH meets its responsibilities to ensure it does
not discriminate in order to avoid the potential for significant financial claims.
8.

Financial Implications

8.1

If CBH go ahead with being reviewed against the Social Housing Equality
Framework the financial cost will be an initial fee of £7,400, plus VAT and
expenses, with the award lasting three years. CBH would then need to be
reaccredited at cost of £4,000 plus VAT and expenses.

8.2

Legal cases brought on grounds of discrimination do not have upper limits like
those brought through employment tribunals so it imperative that CBH meets
its responsibilities to ensure it does not discriminate in order to avoid the
potential for significant financial claims.

9.

Value for Money

9.1

In choosing the provider for the Equality Training for the whole organisation, a
number of providers will be asked to provide quotes, so we can ensure we
obtain value for money.

10.

Health & Safety Implications

10.1 None.
11.

Equality & Diversity Implications

11.1 The entirety of this report is about equality and diversity.
12.

Residents at the Heart

12.1 The Equality and Diversity Officer will continue to work with the Resident
Involvement and Enabling Team Leader to identify areas where equality and
diversity can help CBH to place residents at the heart of what we do, and to
ensure all people deemed to have a protected characteristic are considered
by CBH.
12.2 The tenant and leaseholder Equality Focus Group continues to meet
quarterly. The purpose of the Equality Focus Group is for all tenants and
leaseholders, no matter their background or personal circumstances, to have
a safe place that they can come to with issues relating to Equality and
Diversity, as well as acting as a critical friend in checking that EqIAs have
considered all the relevant impacts a new or existing policy or strategy may
have, and as a consultation group.

13.

Decision Required

13.1 No.

252

14.

Appendix

14.1 The following document/s is/are appended to this report:
•

Appendix 1 – Equality and Diversity Strategy Action Plan.

Equality Objective 3 - To encourage greater resident involvement that is representative of the communities we serve.

Equality Objective 4 - To build on and develop relationships with key community and voluntary sector partners representing
people across the protected characteristics to encourage greater representation and understanding of the protected
characteristics.

Equality Objective 5 - For CBH to have a workplace culture where there is a zero tolerance approach towards bullying,
harassment and discrimination, where all employees are treated fairly and with respect and enjoy working for us.

Equality Objective 6 - To work towards a CBH workforce that reflects the profile of its tenants and leaseholders and to recruit
and retain staff who have the knowledge, skills and commitment to meet the diverse needs of our tenants and leaseholders.

•

•

•

•

1

Equality Objective 2 - To develop our policies, strategies and services in consultation with our tenants and leaseholders to
ensure they are open, accessible, easy to understand and meet the diverse needs of our communities.

•

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Equality Objective 1 - To embed equality and diversity throughout the organisation to ensure that all staff and Board
Members develop a greater understanding of equality and diversity, and the communities we serve.

•

Our Equality Objectives are:

Equality Strategy Action Plan – 8 September 2015 Update

Colchester Borough Homes
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Equality Information on our tenants and
leaseholders and staff to be published
annually - this is a legal requirement under
the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector
Equality Duties.

1.

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Actions Required

No
Equality and
Diversity Officer and
HR team to work
together to gather
information and
prepare information
for publication on
CBH website

Responsible Officer

Date action
required by
31 January 2013,
then annually as
per Public Sector
Equality Duties
(PSED).

2

Due to be published again by 31 January
2016.

Analysis of the latest report includes
2011/12, 2012/13 and 2013/14 data.

Updated equality information was published
by 31 January 2015 in accordance with our
legal obligations.

Progress / Comments

What we already do and will continue to do
• Equality and Diversity Work Group meet bi-monthly and the information and knowledge gained at meetings is cascaded
down through DMT, SMT and team meetings to staff
• All new staff receive equality and diversity induction with the Equality and Diversity officer
• Equality and Diversity section on all reports that go to the Board
• Continue to develop relationships with key community groups, voluntary groups and local charities to build up knowledge,
understanding and links with wider communities in Colchester.

Desired Outcomes
• Increased staff and Board Member knowledge of who our tenants and leaseholders are
• Increased staff and Board Member knowledge of the needs of our diverse tenants and leaseholders

Equality Objective 1
To embed equality and diversity throughout the organisation to ensure that all staff and board members develop a greater
understanding of equality and diversity, and the communities we serve.
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Board and staff to receive regular Equality
and Diversity updates.

Introduce an Equality and Diversity training
programme, using a variety of training
methods - compulsory for all staff and
Board Members to attend. The training will

4.

5.

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Equality Impact Assessments (EqIA’s) to
be completed and published for all CBH
policies and procedures.

3.

Equality and
Diversity Officer, with
support and buy in
from DMT, SMT and
the Board.
Equality and
Diversity Officer,
Training Coordinator,
DMT and SMT

All managers to take
responsibility for
drafting and
completing key
EqIAs relevant to
their service areas,
policies and services.
Equality and
Diversity Officer to
assist in drafting
EqIA’s when
required.

Regular updates to the HR Sub and Board CEO and Equality
on Equality and Diversity issues and
and Diversity Officer
progress achieved in achieving our Equality
Objectives.

2.

Responsible Officer

Actions Required

No

Forthcoming
training to be
delivered - Spring
2014.

Ongoing

As and when
required – EqIA
timetable agreed
by DMT.

Date action
required by
Each HR Sub
meeting and
Board meeting as
required.

•

21 January 2014 (senior

3

Board receive updates at least annually.
Training was carried out for selected key
staff on:

Staff receive updates via the CBH Equality
and Diversity Work Group via service area
reps and are discussed at team meetings.

We continue to publish completed EqIA’s
on our website.

Equality and Diversity Officer provides
updates annually to Board and to
Governance and Remuneration Committee.

Progress / Comments
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To self assess against the Local
Government Association’s Social Housing
Equality Framework (SHEF).

Peer Assessment

Representatives of local community and
voluntary groups to be invited to help us
meet the three aims of the ‘general duty’.

Promote the Equality and Diversity Work
Group to staff, including the work they do
and current projects

be tailored to individual and group needs.
The training will promote understanding
and support staff to deliver an excellent
service to all

Actions Required

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

7.

6.

No

Date action
required by

Equality and
Diversity Officer, with
input and support
from DMT, SMT and
officers in collecting
evidence.

From September
2015

Equality and
Ongoing
Diversity Officer,
Communications
Officer,
Equality and
Diversity Work Group

Responsible Officer

Board February 2015
Organisation-wide equality and
diversity training planned for 2016.

•
•

4

LGA Peer Assessment due April/May 2016.

Mock assessment to be organised for late
2015.

Equality and Diversity Officer currently
meeting with staff to complete an initial selfassessment against the SHEF.

Equality and Diversity Officer to continue to
chair meetings quarterly.

28 March 2014 (middle management
level)

•

management level)

Progress / Comments
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Identify existing best practice within CBH
through Case Studies which:
• demonstrate how we are meeting
our equality objectives, and
• help to provide evidence for the
“business case” for embedding
equality and diversity

8

Equality and
Diversity Officer

Responsible Officer

Date action
required by
Ongoing

Evidence will be collected during the SHEF
self-assessment process.

Progress / Comments

Open, accessible and easy to understand policies, strategies and services that advance equality of opportunity and eliminate
discrimination
No significant difference in satisfaction across all protected characteristics
To increase customer satisfaction with the services CBH provide across all protected characteristics
To receive less complaints about the services we provide from all

5

We have a resident involvement team who help to run and facilitate a number of focus and consultative groups that residents
can get involved in.
Carry out Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) to ensure we have open, accessible and easy to understand policies,
strategies and services that advance equality of opportunity and eliminate discrimination
Publish our completed EqIAs on our website

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

•

•

•

What we already do and will continue to do:

•
•
•

•

Outcomes

Equality Objective 2
To develop our policies, strategies and services in consultation with our tenants and leaseholders to ensure they are open,
accessible, easy to understand and meet the diverse needs of our communities.

Actions Required

No
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Include equality and diversity monitoring in all
consultations to facilitate equality monitoring, and to
ensure there is no major difference of satisfaction
rates of customers across the protected
characteristics.

Equality Monitoring/ Tenant Census - to increase
data held on tenants and leaseholders and to be
included in sign-up process. For information to be
used to help services meet customers’ needs.
Workgroup to input into this process.

Customer complaints to be monitored by protected
characteristic. Analysis to be carried out to ensure
customers are being treated fairly and according to
our policies and procedures, as well as taking

9

10

11

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Actions required

No

Service Improvement
Officer, and Equality and
Diversity Officer

Equality and Diversity
Officer with support from
the Business
Administration team.

Work has started on refreshing
data around tenants who have
told us they have a disability to
ensure the information we have
is accurate and up to date.

Tenancy Audits are being
carried out as part of a three
year programme and ask
questions around equality and
diversity.

Equality and Diversity Officer
has worked with the Service
Improvement Officer to look at
complaints by protected
characteristics. Report went to
Operations Committee in May
2015. A report on this will be
produced annually.

Progress/ Comments

6

Completed in May This has been completed and
2015.
will be looked at annually.

Ongoing

Date action
required by
Each officer/service area Ongoing.
who consults is
responsible for ensuring
the equality monitoring
information is captured

Responsible Officer
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account of specific needs and making reasonable
adjustments where applicable.

Actions required

Responsible Officer

Date action
required by

7

We have a resident involvement team who help to run and facilitate a number of focus and consultative groups that residents
can get involved in.
Recruitment drive for resident involvement currently underway to attract more residents to get involved in the work of CBH
Continue to develop relationships with key community groups, voluntary groups and local charities to build up knowledge,
understanding and links with wider communities in Colchester.
Resident Involvement Team run and take part in various community events, making links with residents, wider communities
and groups within Colchester

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

•

•
•

•

Progress/ Comments

Increased involvement of people with protected characteristics to ensure their views and needs are taken into account
Increased uptake of services by people with protected characteristics
Increased satisfaction from tenants and leaseholders with protected characteristics

What we already do and will continue to do

•
•
•

Outcomes

Equality Objective 3
To encourage greater resident involvement that is representative of the communities we serve.

Our customers

No
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Carry out equality monitoring of our involved
tenants and leaseholders to see where the gaps are
in participation with a view to taking positive action
to encourage those from identified
underrepresented groups to participate in resident
involvement

For all involved tenants to receive training on
equality and diversity, including appropriate
behaviour and language when participating in
meetings and representing CBH at public and
external meetings.

Annual joint meeting of all involved tenants to be
held to share ideas, knowledge and encourage
people to interact and talk to different people.

12

13

14

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Actions Required

No

Equality and Diversity
officer, Resident
Involvement Team

Equality and Diversity
officer, Resident
Involvement Team and
Training Coordinator

Resident Involvement
Team and officers
involved in chairing
resident involvement
groups

Responsible Officer

2015

April 2014 and
ongoing

Date action
required by
Ongoing
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8

Currently being discussed with
the Resident Involvement
Team as part of the review.

As part of the Tenant Training
and Development Programme
2015 a new course has been
designed with the Colchester
Institute called Respect
Difference – Understanding
Equality and Diversity using
video and animation. Being
rolled out to all involved tenants
from September 2015.

A series of workshops was
delivered by an external trainer
Rowena Kerr in March-April
2014.

Equality and Diversity Officer
currently working with the
Resident Involvement Team as
part of the Resident
Involvement Review.

Progress/ Comments
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Increased staff knowledge of issues affecting those with protected characteristics
Improved services for our communities and customers, particularly vulnerable groups
Increased awareness among wider communities of CBH and the services we provide
Increased participation in consultation
Increased take up of services from those with protected characteristics
Improvement in customer satisfaction
Improvement in engagement with those with protected characteristics

9

Attendance of key local community and voluntary groups, and local charities at Equality and Diversity Work Group meetings
to share their knowledge with our staff
We currently provide grant funding to four organisations that provide support for our tenants
Participate in partner and agency events that are open to the public
Attend meetings of local community and voluntary groups and agencies when invited and appropriate
Multi agency working including sharing information and best practice where appropriate to do so

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

•
•
•
•

•

What we already do and will continue to do

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Outcomes

Equality Objective 4
To build on and develop relationships with key community and voluntary sector partners representing people across the protected
characteristics to encourage greater representation and understanding of the protected characteristics.
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Map staff knowledge and links with external
organisations and groups to promote understanding

15

Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Invite staff to attend Equality and Diversity
Workgroup to share knowledge and best practice.

Actions Required

No.
Equality and Diversity
Officer and Training
Coordinator

Responsible Officer

Date action
required by
Ongoing
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Ongoing

10

Limited information only
currently available.

Progress/ Comments
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Assess priority of Equal Pay Audit for CBH on basis
of a review of past performance.
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Last updated September 2015 – Claire Holland

Actions Required

No.

HR Manager and
Equality and Diversity
Officer

Responsible Officer

Date action
required by
Easter 2014

11

Equal Pay Audit carried out in
2015.

Progress / Comments

What we already do and will continue to do:
• Develop, review and Equality Impact Assess all CBH Human Resources (HR) policies to ensure they are not discriminatory
and provide equality of opportunity for all staff
• All new staff to receive Equality and Diversity induction from the Equality and Diversity Officer
• Staff forum meet bi-monthly to discuss issues and work on projects relating to staff
• Promote policies such as flexible working to encourage staff to achieve a good work life balance
• Equality and Diversity Work Group meet bi-monthly and offer staff the chance to raise any equality and diversity issues
through the representatives that sit on the group

Outcomes
• A happier and more productive workforce
• A reduction in staff reporting incidents of bullying and harassment and grievances
• A reduction in the number of bullying and harassment, grievance and disciplinary cases brought against members of staff, as
well as a reduction in dismissals

Equality Objective 5
For CBH to have a workplace culture where there is a zero tolerance approach towards bullying, harassment and discrimination,
where all employees are treated fairly and with respect and enjoy working for us.
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Communicate key messages on bullying and
harassment with reference to relevant policies
(Code of Conduct, Whistle-blowing, Bullying and
Harassment and Grievance Policies).

17
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Actions Required

No.

Date action
required by
HR Team, Equality and 2015
Diversity Officer,
Training Coordinator

Responsible Officer
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Section also available on the
intranet.

We have a Whistle-blowing
hotline and dedicated email
address so staff can raise
concerns.

Responsible Officers will meet
with Communications team to
progress further
communication.

All staff are informed at
induction of CBH Bullying and
Harassment Policy.

Progress / Comments
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Monitor data on staff by protected characteristic.

18
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Actions Required

No.

HR Team and Equality
and Diversity Officer

Responsible Officer

Date action
required by
Ongoing

What we already do and will continue to do:
• Staff Forum meets bi-monthly to discuss issues and work on projects relating to staff
• Workplace Friends Scheme to support staff
• Confidential stress helpline with staff
• Continue to retain the Positive about Disabled People Award from the Jobcentre Plus.

13

Equality data on grievances,
disciplinaries, dismissals and
length of service published
annually as part of annual
report.

Equality and Diversity Officer to
work with HR team to monitor
information.

Progress/ Comments

Outcomes
• Staff equality monitoring profile to reflect that of our tenants and leaseholders where possible and appropriate
• Increased knowledge of staff of the diverse needs of our tenants and leaseholders
• No significant differences in staff turnover across protected characteristics

Equality Objective 6
To work towards a CBH workforce that reflects the profile of its tenants and leaseholders and to recruit and retain staff who have
the knowledge, skills and commitment to meet the diverse needs of our tenants and leaseholders.
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To include equality and diversity questions as part
of the recruitment process

To have equality and diversity as a question or as
an objective in staff PADS

19

20
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Actions Required

No.

HR Team and Equality
and Diversity Officer

HR Team and Equality
and Diversity Officer

Responsible Officer

Ongoing

Date action
required by
Ongoing
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14

Where questions are relevant
to role they are currently
included in PADS.

Equality and Diversity is
included on every job
accountability statement.

Where questions are relevant
they are currently included in
the recruitment process.

Progress/ Comments
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Rowan House, Room 1

AGENDA ITEM:

17

SUBJECT:

Finance Assurance Report

REPORT BY:

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
 (01206) 507815
 michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide the Board with a high-level statement of the financial position at 31
July 2015.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Board:
• Notes the review of financial position as at 31 July 2015.

3.

Background

3.1

The Management Fee Budgets are managed on a risk-based approach with a
high level of monitoring on the key risk budgets. These include salaries,
premises, SLAs and new services taken on from the Council. The salaries
budget represents over 70% of the controllable budgets and a detailed model is
used to monitor this.

3.2

The Finance & Audit (F&A) Committee monitors the progress against the
budgets in detail at their meetings during the year to ensure these are
effectively monitored.

4.

Review of Financial Position as at 31 July 2015

4.1

Set out below is the actual expenditure on the operating budget and a forecast of
the 31 March 2016 outturn. This outturn forecast is the current best estimate but
will be subject to any revisions throughout the year. The August 2015 position will
be reported to the F&A Committee on 6th October 2015.
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Budget
2015-16

Expenditure
to 31 July 15

Forecast to
31 Mar 16

Projected
variance at
31 Mar 16

(£000)

(£000)

(£000)

(£000)

Management Fee - HRA

8,124

2,394

8,024

-100

Management Fee - GF

1,196

387

1,196

0

2,753

191

2,753

0

657

203

657

0

11,706

4,659

11,706

0

1,577

804

1,577

0

Other Budgets
Delegated Budgets
Corp Facilities Budget
Capital (CBC and CBH)
Revenue/other

The key reasons for variances are as follows:
Management Fee
4.2

There have been a number of vacant posts that have been hard to fill, which have
led to an underspend to date on the salaries budget. In addition, some top of grade
staff have left to be replaced by new staff on the lower end of the grade. By the
year end this is estimated to be in the region of approximately £100,000. Property
Services is also anticipating an underspend through vacant posts and lower than
budgeted expenditure on professional fees which will be reported in future months.
Delegated Budgets

4.3

4.4

Expenditure to the end of July is £330,000 below the profiled budget expected for
year to date. Although it may be a little early in the year for concern, DMT have
asked to monitor progress carefully, with CBC being kept informed over the coming
months.
Corp Facilities Budget
Expenditure to the end of July is £203,000 in line with the profiled budget.
Capital – all capital works

4.5

Expenditure to the end of July is £4,659,000 in line with the profiled budget which
is anticipated to be fully committed by January 2016 to ensure all programmes are
completed by year end.
Revenue CBC Contracts

4.6

Expenditure to the end of July is £804,000 in line with the profiled budget.
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5.

2015-16 Carry Forwards
A number of projects intended to be funded in 2014-15 were carried forward into
2015-16 following approval by F&A Committee.
In total they amount to:CBH budgets – £244,000
Delegated CBC budgets - £384,000
A recent review of progress shows that the majority of projects from both budgets
have now either been completed, or are committed.
The remainder will be closely monitored to ensure expenditure is completed within
2015-16.

6.

New Business Income

6.1

New Business trading anticipated gross profit for the year is set out below:
Description

Anticipated
Income (£)

Professional fees

3,500

Co-op properties

500

Gateway management fee
Total

6,500
10,500

7.

Financial Implications

7.1

These are incorporated in the body of the report.

8.

HR, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1

None.

9.

Residents at the Heart

9.1

Residents are indirectly involved in budgetary control as they review our
performance on a regular basis. Our performance on standards is underpinned by
our expenditure.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

28 September 2015

TIME:

5.30 pm

VENUE:

Room 1, Rowan House

AGENDA ITEM:

18

SUBJECT:

Performance Assurance Report

REPORT BY:

Karen Loweman, Director of Housing
 (01206) 282805
 karen.loweman@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide the Board with a high-level statement of the Company’s performance
against the agreed Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Board notes the KPIs that are red or amber and considers the adequacy
of measures in place to improve performance or mitigate impact.

3.

Background

3.1

The Medium Term Delivery Plan contains a selection of KPIs that reflects the
Company’s vision & objectives for the coming year as well as the targets by which
these are to be measured. These are discussed and agreed by the Operations
Committee and approved by the Board at the start of each year.

3.2

The Operations Committee reviews the suite of KPIs at each meeting, and
requests more detail where performance is below target. KPIs are shown as
‘green’, ‘amber’ or ‘red’ against the performance target:
• ‘Green’ means the project is on target to succeed.
• ‘Amber’ means the project has a problem but action is being taken to resolve
this OR a potential problem has been identified and no action is being taken at
this time but it is being carefully monitored.
• ‘Red’ means the project requires remedial action to achieve objectives.

3.3

This report gives assurance to the Board that any areas of concern are being
monitored and addressed.
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3.4

The Operations committee reviewed the key performance indicators for Quarter 1
2015/16 at its meeting held on Wednesday 2 September.

4.0

Performance Monitoring – 2015/16 Quarter 1 (to end of June 2015)

4.1

Of 18 KPIs monitored, 11 are green, five are amber and one red against agreed
target.

4.2

Below are details of the KPIs that are not green and what measures are being
taken to improve performance.

5.0

Number of households in Bed and Breakfast accommodation (RED)

5.1

Our aim is to reduce the use of B & B accommodation to zero. Where a statutory
duty to assess a person who is homeless arises we have duty to provide interim
or temporary accommodation pending further enquiries. Wherever possible we
will use supported temporary accommodation which is available for this purpose.
Where there is no suitable accommodation available, Bed and Breakfast is used
as an alternative.

5.2

In the first quarter of this year we have seen an unexpected increase in single
homeless applicants. Many of these have been referred from local support
agencies following the Supreme Court consideration of “priority need” (joint appeal
Hotak v London Borough of Southwark, Johnson v Solihull MBC, Kanu v LB
Southwark) which has required further investigation of individual circumstance.

5.3

We have been disappointed to see the number of placements in B & B
accommodation increase to 28 at the end of June. To address this, a weekly
meeting is held to review those in B & B, to ensure decisions are made as quickly
as possible and best use is made of temporary accommodation. Additional
support is being provided to move those in temporary accommodation in to more
permanent homes, which leads to some restriction of choice for applicants.

6.0

Average time taken to re let empty general needs properties (AMBER)

6.1

The time taken to re-let empty properties is measured from the date the tenancy
ends until the date a new tenancy starts. We aim to re-let properties within 17
days, which includes the time for repairs, advertising, shortlisting and letting.

6.2

The average time taken to re-let empty homes has improved over the three month
period (April 18.9 days, May 17.7 days, June 16.07 days) cumulating in an
average of 17.43 days based on the 69 properties re-let in the period.

6.3

A Void improvement project reviews performance each month to ensure good
communication and considers practical ways to improve performance. This
indicator is affected by properties which are more difficult to let. The longest
period a property has taken to let is 34 days (2 bed house in Wilson Marriage
Road).
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7.0

Percentage of under occupied homes (AMBER)

7.1

We aim to reduce under occupation in our housing stock to make best use of the
homes available. The indicator has been monitored since the implementation of
Housing Benefit restrictions which reduces benefit for claimants who underoccupy their homes.

7.2

At the end of June, 1,458 of 6,060 tenants were under-occupying their home
(24.3%) a little above our target of 24%. 330 of those under-occupying are HB
claimants subject to restrictions on their benefit, of which 49% are in arrears.

7.3

Through promotion of the Transfer Incentive scheme we continue to encourage
and support tenants to move to suitably-sized homes.

8.0

Rent collection (AMBER)

8.1

Rent is collected over a 50 week period with a “rent free” period between
Christmas and the new year and at the end of March. The target of 98%
collection is expected to be achieved by the year end.

8.2

Performance at the end of quarter one shows 95.61% of rent collected, which is
comparative with previous year’s performance at this point.

8.3

We are pleased to have been recognised by Housemark as being the top rent
collection in the East of England for our performance to the end of 2014/15.

9.0

Financial Implications

9.1

Performance for the year has been within budget expectation.

10.0

HR Implications

10.1

Staff resources are sufficient to deliver the required level of service.

11.

Equality and Diversity Implications

11.1

Performance monitoring supports CBH to ensure that services are delivered in a
fair and accessible way.

12.

Residents at the Heart

12.1

The Tenant and Leaseholder Consultative Committee and focus groups review
standards and KPIs.

10.

Appendix

10.1

Appendix 1 – Performance slides showing non-green KPIs.
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Benchmark performance comparisons are with 34 housing providers
in the HouseMark East of England group for 2013/14 (latest available)

Performance Summary Information
KPIs on Red or Amber compared to target
June 2015

Item 17. Appendix 1

1
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28

Local target

CBH outcome

Benchmark performance comparison

R
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Comment: Legal judgement regarding vulnerability of single homeless has increased the demand for interim accommodation
pending enquiries. Closure of the April Centre has also had a knock-on effect. This is reviewed each week to minimise use of
B&B.

0

CBH target

Number of households in bed & breakfast accommodation

2
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17.43 days
15 days
13.7 days
Upper Quartile = 17.03 days

CBH cumulative overall outcome

CBH repair target

CBH cumulative repair outcome

Benchmark performance comparison
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18.3
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Repair Days
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17.4
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Aug
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Dec

Comment: A review of the void monitoring system and ways of working is helping to improve our re-let times.

17 days

CBH overall target

Average days to re-let General Needs properties

Jan
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3

A

G

A

Mar
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277

24.3%
Local target

CBH outcome

Benchmark performance comparison

A

RAG

23.0%

23.5%

24.0%

24.5%

25.0%

25.5%

26.0%

13/14

26.0%

14/15

Apr

24.6% 24.5%

May

24.4%

Jun

24.3%

Jul

Aug

Aug
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Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Comment: At end of June 1453 homes were under occupied. 55 HB claimants are under occupying by 2+ bedrooms, 274 by 1
bedroom. During Q2 a project is commencing to reduce under occupation of large family homes

24%

CBH target – % of residents underoccupying
Council homes

Underoccupied Council homes

4
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6.60 days
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A
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Comment: Of 5999 properties, there are 643 non-Decent homes.
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Comment: Four high arrear cases impacting on current collection. County Court Judges have delayed proceedings on these
cases and deferred hearing dates.

98%

CBH target

(incl. arrears brought forward)

Rent collection
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Minutes of the Operations Committee Meeting
Held at 4.00 pm on Tuesday 30 June 2015
Room 1, Rowan House
Sheepen Road, Colchester

Present:

In Attendance:

Alan Blois

AB (Chair)

Mike Lilley
Michala Carey
Geoff Foster
Julia Havis

(Vice Chair)

Karen Loweman
Mark Wright
Mell Robinson
Mike Harden
Martin Whitlock

(Items 9 & 10)
(Item 3)
(Items 8 & 11)

Sue Nice
Nicorum Flaherty
Emily Brice

(Item 4)
(Item 7)
(Minutes)

Observing:
Geoff Beales
Owen Howell
Graham Lewis
Polly Hardy

(CBC)
(CBH)
(CBC)
(CBH)

1.

Apologies for absence

1.1

Apologies were received from Jamie Tuxford, Ria Eustace and Kathy Healy.

2.

Minutes of previous meeting (14 May 2015) and matters arising

2.1

The minutes were approved as a true record of the previous meeting and signed by
the Chair.

2.2

Items 4.3 and 4.4 – Ria Eustace was unable to attend the meeting so this action
will be carried over.

3.

Enoch House Refurbishment Project Plan

3.1

Mike Harden presented a slide show detailing the project plan; a copy of these
slides can be requested from Owen Howell, the new Board Assurance Officer.
There are five phases in the plan and the proposed deadline was originally set as
31/3/17. It is now estimated that works will be completed around four to six weeks
behind schedule and that there will be 36 flats.

3.2

Regarding parking issues which had been raised, some residents would prefer a
garden area whereas others would prefer parking spaces. It is likely that a
compromise will be made so that there is some of each. A detailed landscaping
design will be completed when it is time to work on this area.
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3.3

Addressing safety concerns about the French doors on the ground floor flats and
the lack of fencing around the gardens, Mike assured the Committee that these
doors can be locked securely, there is CCTV in and around Worsnop House and
the tenants decided they did not want high fences around their gardens. Karen
Loweman gave assurance that the bushes surrounding the gardens now will be
more secure once they have time to grow.

4.

Antisocial Behaviour Policy

4.1

Sue Nice talked through her report on the Antisocial Behaviour Policy. She
explained that the changes have been made around the Crime & Policing Act. This
means that the ASB team have new tools such as civil injunctions and mandatory
possession. ‘Community triggers’ are now in effect, allowing tenants to request
multi-agency meetings to discuss ASB problems. This option has been given to
several tenants, but as yet, no requests have been made.

4.2

Civil injunctions can be used on tenants of other housing associations; however,
issues regarding tenants of other housing providers/associations should be raised
with the housing association in question.

4.3

An error was noticed in Point Six, paragraph one, third sentence - ‘maybe’ should
be ‘may be’, and the special measures mentioned should be detailed and
described in the policy.
Action: Sue Nice to amend the policy with the above changes.

4.4

It was requested by the Committee that this policy should provide information for
both the victims and accused and for a link to the RESPECT Charter to be included
in the Policy.
Action: Sue Nice to add a further bullet point on page four of the Policy which says
‘provide clear information when investigating Antisocial Behaviour.’ Sue to also add
a footnote to the Policy which provides a web address for the RESPECT Charter.

4.5

The Policy was accepted by the Committee with the above mentioned amendments
to be made.

5.

Complaints Policy

5.1

Karen Loweman presented this report in Jamie Tuxford’s absence.

5.2

After consultation with the Service Improvement and Development Group, a few
changes had been made to the Policy. It has been agreed that Point Four on page
six of the Policy is to be amended to specify that complaints regarding third parties
can come through CBH in the first instance, who will liaise with the third party on
the tenant’s behalf.

5.3

Committee requested that the words ‘or indicated’ should be removed from Point
Seven (page 6) and pointed out that the first paragraph on page 10 of the Policy
should read ‘the councillor, MP or tenant panel may refer the complaint.’

5.4

Committee also agreed that on page 43 paragraph four, the reviewing of sanctions
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against vexatious complainants should be amended to specify that each sanction
will be reviewed every six months until it is decided to rescind the sanction.
5.5

On page 11, paragraph two, and page 12, paragraph five, there should be a ‘The’
in front of Operations Committee.
Action: Jamie/Ria to complete these amendments.

5.6

Subject to the above amendments, the Committee agree for the Policy to be
recommended to the Board.

6.

Pets Policy

6.1

Sue Nice presented this report in Kathy Healy’s absence.

6.2

This Policy is up for review as it is now three years old. Only a small number of
changes had been made. These include stronger emphasis on partnership working
and an explanation of the process when permission for a pet is denied.

6.3

The Committee requested that on page 53, the ‘Bio-degradable’ box should read
‘from pet shops’ not ‘for’.

6.4

On page 54, final paragraph should read ‘tenants are advised to discuss’.

6.5

On page 55, the section quoted from the Tenancy Agreement should be referenced
as to its location in the Agreement. The Committee agreed this amendment.

6.6

On page 56 in paragraph four of the grey section, the word ‘this’ should be ‘their.’

6.7

It was suggested that point 7, 8, 9 and 10 should be removed from the policy as
this information is in the document control sheet. The Committee agreed.

6.8

The document control sheets from the policies presented were in different formats
and the Committee asked if they should be standardised. Karen Loweman
explained that the control sheets had been refreshed over time, so older policies
sometimes had document control sheets of a slightly different appearance.

6.9

Sue confirmed that this Policy did not cover leaseholders, but the ASB team can
take action against leaseholders if a pet is causing nuisance. Karen Loweman
suggested that the free pet microchipping service could be advertised in the Pets
Policy. The Committee agreed this amendment.
Action: Kathy/ Sue to complete the above amendments.

6.10

Subject to the above amendments, the Committee approved the Pets Policy.

7.

Housing Options Team Update

7.1

Nicorum Flaherty gave his report and pointed out the number of households his
team had prevented from becoming homeless. His team have been focusing on
Rough Sleeping in the Borough and explained the work they have been doing to
help rough sleepers.

7.2

Nicorum explained that the Housing Options team has improved and increased the
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supply of emergency accommodation, working with Steph and Phillips estate
agents and Circle Housing. In the future he hopes that the team can find a way to
get the Rent & Deposit Guarantee Scheme back up and running.
7.3

Nicorum explained that money was left in a will to the Housing Forum, the Night
Shelter was responsible for this money and the April Centre then took on the
administration of the Rent & Deposit Guarantee Scheme. Unfortunately there were
discrepancies with the April Centre’s accounting so the Night Shelter trustees
chose to suspend the scheme in April 2013.

7.4

When individuals had been judged to be intentionally homeless, being given
assistance will depend more on circumstances rather than timescales.

8

Leasehold Performance

8.1

Martin Whitlock talked through his report and informed the committee that CBH
now has over a thousand leaseholders. Martin explained that income collection has
been improved, performance has exceeded targets and the Arrears Policy is to be
looked at by the Leasehold Focus Group.

8.2

Martin explained that there is not a separate policy for probate cases, it just takes a
long time - appropriate time (usually 6 months) is given before enquiries are made
into the situation.

8.3

Referring to the 10 current legal cases, Martin explained that after the Leasehold
team has done their work on legal cases they are then passed to CBC’s legal team
to deal with, Martin informed the Committee that there is a good chance of getting
the outstanding arrears paid back.

9

Developing Resident Scrutiny

9.1

Mell Robinson explained to the group that task and finish groups are a popular way
for tenants and leaseholders to scrutinise strategies, policies and procedures.

9.2

Mell informed the Committee of the training and development for tenants and
leaseholders that takes place as well as the networking events and mystery
shopping. Mell wanted to reassure members of the Committee that CBH is always
looking into ways of strengthening scrutiny in the future.

9.3

Mell admitted that not all of the 69 Quality Assurance Advisors (QAAs) are active.
Mell explained to the group that CBH are looking at ways to take the number of
QAAs and Village Voices up to 180.

9.4

Mell explained that the Reading Panel does not scrutinise material to go on the
CBH website because this has already been scrutinised and news stories/press
releases need to have a quick turnaround time.

10

Focus Group Activity

10.1

Mell Robinson gave her report to the Committee.

10.2

Regarding why no minutes or agenda were available for the Community Services
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for Older People meeting on 10 April, Mell informed the Committee that this was
owing to the meeting being in a different format which included a tour and
presentation from CBC.
10.3

Mell confirmed that at the Community Budget Group on 24 June, 4 members
attended and they agreed 7 out of 8 applications and deferred 1 for further
information, 4 members attended the Media Panel meeting on 18 June.

10.4

Mell introduced Polly Hardy (the new Resident Infoldment Officer) to the
Committee.

11

Leasehold Focus Group

11.1

Martin Whitlock took the committee through his presentation (available on request
from Owen Howell, Board Assurance Officer). Martin explained that the group
formed in 2011 and is now meeting every two months. The group now has five
leaseholders in attendance after Carolyn Turrall’s relocation to Norfolk.

11.2

Martin explained to the Committee that the Focus Group welcomes guest
speakers, discusses the Star Survey, strategies, the leaseholder section of the
CBH website and other items detailed in the slideshow.

11.3

Martin detailed plans for the Leasehold Focus Group including more involvement in
scrutiny, further work on the CBH website and continue to job shadow.

12

Service Improvement & Development Group

12.1

Karen Loweman read through this report on Ria’s behalf, Karen explained that the
group will be looking at the starting and ending of tenancies process in the next
financial year.

13

Work Plan 2015

13.1

It was agreed that if there is any information that members would like to be
presented with at a future meeting, they should request this beforehand to give the
relevant officer time to prepare. The Chair is to be copied into any information
request emails to officers regarding Committee matters.

13.2
Mark Wright raised two items that he felt the Committee should consider this year.
The first being the occurrence of a breach of OHSAS 18001 regarding a minor nonconformity around document control. The second is the 2015 changes to the Public
Procurement Regulations as some of these relate to reporting/recording and
changes to the Financial Statutory Instruments. These two items are to be added to
the agenda for the Operations Committee on 14 October 2015. It was agreed that
the changes to Public Procurement Regulations will also have to be examined at
the next Finance & Audit Committee.
Action: Owen Howell to complete the above amendment.
14

Any Other Business

14.1

With no further business the meeting finished at 6.30 pm.
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Minutes of the Operations Committee Meeting
Held at 4.00 pm on Wednesday 2 September 2015
Room 1, Rowan House
Sheepen Road, Colchester

Present:
Mike Lilley (ML)
Julia Havis (JH)
Michala Carey (MC)
Geoff Foster (GF)

In Attendance:
(Acting Chair)

Mark Wright (MW)
Karen Loweman (KL)
Kirk Braker (KB)
Ria Eustace (RE)
Andy Gray (AG)
Kathy Fitzgerald (KF)
Owen Howell (OH)

(Minutes)

Observing:
Geoff Beales
Lynn Thomas
Royston Theobold

(CBC)
(CBC)

1.

Apologies for absence

1.1

Apologies for absence had been received from Alan Blois.

6.

‘Total Mobile Solution’ Demonstration

6.1

It was agreed to move Item 6 up the agenda order. KB and AG presented the ‘Total
Mobile’ system and explained to the Committee how it worked to improve the
workflow of members of staff, saving unnecessary travel, directing to the next job,
giving job details/risks and recording job statuses and completion.

6.2

It was explained that this system is greatly superior to the previous one and uses
new tablets and Opti-Time to help make the improvements detailed in 6.1.

6.3

Hard copies of Opti-Time sheets are printed off and kept for the next day in order to
mitigate the small risk that CAPITA might go offline.

6.4

Risk assessments and ‘Cards for Concern’ will be available on the PDAs, including
non-repair tenancy issues.

6.5

It was explained that this system had helped to control costs (saves paper, time &
waste), even as general costs have increased in the construction industry. Unit
costs for repairs have stayed low for CBH, with CBC covering the development
costs of the system (Galaxy tablets) as part of the HouseMark improvement plan.

6.6

The reactive nature of this system means that when tenants are unhappy at work
done, tradesmen can be quickly despatched to deal with any problems. This
reduces the number of formal complaints.

6.7

KL confirmed that Housing Officers will soon be using a similar system.
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2.

Confirm minutes of previous meeting (30 June 2015) and matters arising

2.1

KL confirmed that the action listed in 4.4 had been carried out, and that both
accusers and those accused of ASB now received information about the process
for dealing with this. Action: KL to provide an example copy of this information to
GF.

2.2

At point 10.4, ‘Infoldment’ should be amended to read ‘Involvement.’

2.3

All action points from the last meeting were noted as having been completed.

2.4

The minutes were approved as a true record of the previous meeting and signed by
the Chair.

3.

Performance Report (Q1) and Medium Term Delivery Plan Update

3.1

KL and MW presented the Delivery Plan Update and KPIs to the Committee. KL
summarised the Q1 achievements (see Progress Report, pg1 ‘Highlights’) and the
‘To note’ points (Progress Report, pg1). She informed the Committee that we have
only a small amount of work to do in order to be able to achieve Silver level in the
‘No Second Night Out’ category of the Homelessness Gold Standard.

3.2

The closure of the April Centre has had an impact, with CBH working with local
landlords to find alternative accommodation for those who had used it. This
involved two members of staff working on it for approximately 6 weeks. This limited
the numbers made homeless.

3.3

There have been three Court judgements which have changed how homelessness
legislation works, which has led to challenges to some of our decisions.

3.4

Attention was drawn to the escalation in numbers of tenants claiming Universal
Credit (UC), from 16 claimants in the first month of Q1, 34 in the second and 49 by
the end of June.

3.3

MW confirmed that the possibility of establishing a Trading Subsidiary was now on
hold, but would be discussed at the Board Meeting on 28 September and would
then be kept on hold until such time as CBC approved its creation.

3.4

Regarding Section 1, Point 1 of the Progress Report, MW assured the Committee
that CBC had a balanced capital programme with some receipts from Right to Buy
transactions retained and reserved to fund the building of new stock.

3.5

KL explained that, with regard to Section 3, Point 1, there was no need for CBH to
seek legal advice regarding the threshold test as the case law has set clear
precedents which we follow.

3.6

The mental health discharge process was explained. Every Wednesday a list of
those about to be discharged from mental health accommodation. This is provided
to CBH and acts as an early-warning system so that we can ensure that those who
need to be put on the housing register are correctly registered and that CBH fulfils
its safeguarding responsibilities.
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3.7

KL notified the Committee that CBH was working closely with DWP on UC and
wherever possible was arranging for tenants who receive UC to pay their rent via
direct payments.

3.8

Regarding the advertising of low-cost insurance (eg in Housing News & Views), it
was requested that it be made clear what low-cost insurance was available for
leaseholders as well as tenants. It was agreed that this would be done in the future.

3.9

As time was pressing and the meeting would soon become inquorate, it was
agreed that further questions on this agenda item would be emailed to KL Action:
KL to respond to any outstanding questions which she receives from Committee
Members.

3.10

The Acting Chair (ML) requested that questions for officers be submitted, when
possible, to those officers prior to Committee Meetings (copying in the Chair). This
would allow officers time to provide answers which could be emailed to all
Committee Members.

3.12

It was agreed that the KPI slides would be examined at the end of the meeting as
they were an information item and several reports on the Agenda had to be
considered before the Committee became inquorate.

4.

Complaints & Compliments Performance (Q1)

4.1

RE presented the report, highlighting the work being done to minimise formal
complaints.

4.2

A breakdown of complaint outcomes was requested for the Q2 Ops Meeting on 18
November. Action: RE to provide this breakdown for 18 November Meeting.

4.3

RE explained that the complaint to the Ombudsman during Q1 was partially upheld
because CBH had apologised in the initial response, which was taken as a partial
admission of culpability (whether real culpability existed or not).

4.4

RE notified the Committee that she will be checking to ensure that the elderly do
not face barriers to lodging complaints. Visiting Officers can pick up potential
complaints and help to deal with issues before they become formal complaints.
This will form part of our work to comply with Equality and Diversity legislation and
best practice.

4.5

All allegations of discrimination are logged and will be investigated.

5.

Resident Involvement Activities (Q1)

5.1

KF presented this report in Mell Robinson’s absence.

5.2

With regard to points 4.3 and 4.4, KF informed the Committee that Polly Hardy has
made it a priority to help set up and support Tenants’ and Residents’
groups/Associations.

5.3

The review of resident involvement has commenced, with contact lists for involved
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residents (eg QAAs), looking at the Focus Groups and looking to begin the
expansion of resident involvement once Mell returns.
5.4

In response to questions, KL clarified that Ops Committee was currently a closed
Committee which ruled out a ‘Have Your Say’ section for residents, but that the
review would explore different ways for people to put their views forward.

5.5

KF stated the priorities of the current review as being to recruit more involved
tenants to the available groups and, most importantly, to the TLCC. The review’s
findings and recommendations were hoped to be ready by the end of September.
Any changes would have to come before Ops Committee for approval before going
to Board and CBC for approval.

5.6

KF gave an example of the long-term success of MAD Days. She informed
Committee that the MAD Day at Carrington Court (Mersea) had led to a reduction
in ASB issues, an increase in the care taken of the area and good resident
feedback. Updates will be given as time progresses.

5.7

GF informed the Committee that a Leaseholders’ meeting had been held on 11
August, at which they had met Polly Hardy.

7.

Proposed Work Plan 2015-16

7.1

Action: OH to set the start time for the next Ops Meeting as 4pm.

7.2

Action: Committee Members to discuss with the Chair (Alan Blois) whether to
continue with the half hour pre-meeting before Ops Committee meetings. OH to be
copied in to these discussions in case changes to the meeting are required.

7.3
JH gave her apologies in advance for the 14 October Ops Committee Meeting.
JH and MC both the meeting. The meeting thus became inquorate at this point and
the remaining Committee Members were taken through the KPI data sheets for
their information.
3.

Performance Report (Q1) CONTINUED – KPI data sheets.

3.13

Pg2: KL reported that CBH was receiving increased reports of domestic violence,
including some of violence towards males. CBH has been dealing well with such
cases and this is likely to have led to more tenants coming forward as confidence in
our approach increases. CBH has been working closely with partner agencies and
this area of ASB is a priority for the Police and Crime Commissioner, Nick Alston.

3.14

Pg3: A new Private Sector Lettings Negotiator is now in post, which has helped
CBH to improve its performance in preventing homelessness.

3.15

Pg4: KL explained that the rise in B&B use in May and June comes at what is
always a busy time of year, and has been further exacerbated by the closure of the
April Centre and the legal judgements concerning vulnerability. As of this date,
there are six families in B&B, and 12 single people. Eight are temporarily outside
the Borough owing to fires reducing local availability, but will be moved on Monday
(7 September).
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3.16

Pg6: Under-occupancy is still an important issue. Freeing up under-occupied fourbedroom stock for families in temporary accommodation is a priority. Some who
initially resist downsizing find that it is actually preferable for them.

3.17

Pg7: No significant issues to report and the Audits had proceeded at an abovetarget rate. Although some tenants were initially suspicious, feedback shows it has
generally been a positive experience for them.

3.18

Pg10: The percentage is cumulative, with a percentage of houses automatically
failing at the start of the year (April), with work then being carried out to bring this
down to 0% over the course of the year.

3.19

Pg12: The commitment to the capital programme and planned work is geared
towards keeping down the cost of reactive repairs.

3.20

Pgs13-14: The call centre is working well. Works planners and call centre staff
have shadowed each other to gain understanding of each other’s work. The Library
is working well as a contact centre.

3.21

Pg17: The figures for rent collection have been affected by four very high arrears
cases (with 300 cases being classed as in high arrears). CBH will be seeking
possession in the case of the four worst cases. When completed, this will make
these cases of former-tenant arrears.

3.22

KFs team has worked hard to reduce overall number of arrears cases.

3.23

Pg18: HouseMark has informed us that our income collection is the best in the East
of England. The improvement is a sign of the background work done to improve our
service and work with tenants and communities.

8.

Any other business

8.1

There was no other business.
With no further business, the meeting finished at 18:53.
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Minutes of the Governance and Remuneration Committee
Held at 4.15 pm on 9 July 2015
Room 1, Rowan House
Sheepen Road, Colchester

Present:
Tina Graves
Michala Carey
Anne Grahamslaw
Gerard Oxford

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)

In Attendance:
Greg Falvey
Michael Hadjimichael
Mark Wright
Angelique Ryan
Claire Holland
Owen Howell
Sara Turner

(Minutes)

1.

Apologies for absence

1.1

Apologies were received from Dionne Philp

2.

Minutes of previous meeting and matters arising

2.1

Item 6.4 (Board Members’ training plan) is still outstanding – Action: Angelique
Ryan & Owen Howell to follow this up.

2.2

The Chair passed on the Committee’s congratulations to everybody on obtaining
the Investors in People Silver Award.

2.3

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2015 were confirmed as an accurate
record of the meeting and signed by the Chair.

3.

Construction Design Management Regulations – Recruitment of Compliance
Officer

3.1

Mark Wright presented the report for decision by the Committee. Mark explained
the changes to the CDM regulations and how it effects the organisation. He
outlined the recommendations and asked for the Committee’s approval for the
creation of a CDM Compliance Officer position within the Property Services
Directorate

3.2

Mark confirmed that the savings mentioned on Page 11, second from last
paragraph, were £50,000 per annum and that the savings would be reinvested in
the organisation.

3.3

The proposed recruitment of a Compliance Officer was approved by the
Committee.

4.

Equality and Diversity update Report – (change of order from Agenda)

4.1

Claire Holland presented the annual update report to the Committee, highlighted
section 4.7 and advised that there would be a peer to peer Review in April/May
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2016 once confirmation of the dates had been given by the Local Government
Association. Claire advised that they were hoping to have a mock peer-to-peer
Review with South Essex Homes beforehand.
4.2

Angelique Ryan confirmed that the Equality Data was forwarded through the
Operations Committee.

4.3

Claire advised that the Allocations process was carried out through the Gateway to
Homechoice and that we work with our partners to ensure that the protected
characteristics were analysed when people applied, when their banding was
confirmed and also when they were housed to ensure no differences. Claire
confirmed it would be part of the peer-to-peer review.

5.

Information & Confidentiality Policy update

5.1

Owen Howell presented the updated Policy to the Committee for consideration and
approval. He advised that the minor amendments to the policy were highlighted in
red. On section 3.1. (Forced Subject Access Requests), Owen confirmed that CBH
has never required an individual to request these and would never do so.

5.2

Regarding concern over how paper and electronic data is protected in the event of
a fire, Greg Falvey advised that there is a Disaster Recovery Plan in place and
which highlights how data is secured in the event of a disaster. Angelique Ryan
advised that there is a fire proof cupboard where copies of signed minutes are
stored. Greg Falvey also advised that electronic data is stored offsite along with
CBC’s data on an offsite server which is backed-up.

5.3

Greg Falvey recommended that the Committee should review the Disaster
Recovery Plan in the future.

5.4

On the question of when policies were reviewed, Angelique Ryan advised that this
happened every time there was a change to the policy with reviews occurring after
a maximum of 3 years, with some reviewed annually or biennially. Greg Falvey
advised that all policies were reviewed regularly and that the Code of Governance
looked at the top 15 policies which always go to the Board for review. Action:
Owen Howell to check if this policy is in the Code of Governance.

5.5

The Committee recommended this Policy to the Board.

6.

Standard Paragraphs in Board and Committee reports

6.1

Owen Howell presented the report to the Committee for discussion. Michael
Hadjimichael pointed out that the Value for Money section has been added to the
report.

6.2

The Committee felt the standard paragraphs were a good prompt and that they felt
more comfortable now that guidance notes were in place.

6.3

It was agreed that the heading Purpose should be added to the list with 2 or 3
prompts underneath. Action: Owen Howell to amend.

6.4

The report was agreed by the Committee.
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7.

Human Resources update report

7.1

Angelique Ryan presented the report and highlighted Section 3 regarding salary
sacrifice.

7.2

When asked if sickness figures were comparative with other peer groups for
ALMOs, Angelique advised that Housemark is used for comparatives and we were
medium quartile for ALMO’s of a similar size.

7.3

Angelique advised that on section 4.2 there was a positive note for one employee
on long-term sick leave who was hoping to return to work on a phased return. They
are still awaiting further medical reports on the second employee.

8.

Governance Action Plan update

8.1

Owen Howell outlined the update to the Committee and highlighted the 2 red
sections which needed further action.

8.2

Item 5 – it was agreed that Owen would commence this action from the start again.
Action: Owen Howell to commence.

8.3

Item 13 – Owen advised that he has received the workings of the Operational
Scheme of Delegation. Angelique & Greg confirmed they will assist Owen with this
item, once DMT have finished their consideration of this.

8.4

Greg Falvey commented that Berkeley Young had circulated the scheme to DMT
members and asked them to check as part of a clearing up session to ensure they
are correct and up to date. Once these have been returned Greg would discuss
further with Owen.

9.

Electronic Decision – Pay Award 2015/16

9.1

Angelique advised that the Committee had approved this decision electronically
and the pay award had been implemented.

10.

Work Plan

10.1

Angelique advised that Salary Sacrifice needs to be added to the Work Plan for the
November meeting.

10.2

Greg Falvey asked that an extraordinary Governance and Remuneration meeting
in September (to review the Market Supplement policies) be added to the Work
Plan. The Committee agreed the date of 1 September 2015 to hold the meeting.

11.

Any Other Business

11.1

No issues were raised and the open meeting concluded at 4.46 pm.
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Minutes of the Governance and Remuneration Committee
Held at 4.00 pm on 1 September 2015
Room 1, Rowan House
Sheepen Road, Colchester

Present:
Tina Graves
Michala Carey
Dionne Philp
Gerard Oxford

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)

In Attendance:
Karen Loweman
Michael Hadjimichael
Mark Wright
Angelique Ryan
Owen Howell
Sara Turner

(Minutes)

1.

Apologies for absence

1.1

Apologies were received from Anne Grahamslaw & Greg Falvey

2.

Minutes of previous meeting and matters arising

2.1

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2015 were confirmed as an accurate
record of the meeting and signed by the Chair.

3.

Strategic Health & Safety Policy

3.1

Mark Wright presented the report for decision by the Committee. Mark advised that
the policy is updated annually and will be an item for information on the Board
Agenda for 28 September, but must first be approved by the G&R Committee.

3.2

Mark explained that whilst organisations over a certain size have to have a Health
& Safety Policy there was not a legal requirement to have a Strategic Health &
Safety Policy. He asked the Committee to decide if CBH should continue with the
Strategic Policy and recommended approval for its consideration by the full Board.

3.3

Mark confirmed that all areas were adequately served by first aiders and that
procedures were in place to ensure tradesmen were covered in the case of an
emergency whilst out on appointments.

3.4

The Committee approved the update. A signed copy of the Policy would be
presented at the Board meeting on 28.9.15.

4.

Work Plan

4.1

Owen Howell presented the Work Plan to the committee.

4.2

The committee felt that the list of items on the plan for the meeting on 12
November 2015 was quite lengthy and some needed to be redistributed to the
meeting after that. Action: Michael Hadjimichael and Owen Howell to review the
plan before the next meeting
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5.

Any Other Business

5.1

No issues were raised
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Minutes of the Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
Held at 3.00 pm on Thursday 30 July 2015
In Room 2, Rowan House
Present:
Nigel Chapman
Geoff Foster
Mike Lilley

In Attendance:
(Chair)

Michael Hadjimichael
Mark Wright
Brian Richardson
Sarah Johnson
Alan Woodhead
Tim O’Connor
Owen Howell

(Item 4)
(Item 4)
(Mazars)
(Scrutton Bland)
(Minutes)

n.b. Pre-meeting with External Auditors (without officers) was cancelled.
1.

Apologies for absence

1.1

Julie Parker and Glenn Houchell had given their apologies.

2.

Minutes of the meeting held 4 June 2015 and Matters Arising

2.1

The minutes were approved as an accurate record and signed by the Chair. It
was agreed that future minutes would include a record of questions arising from
Committee papers and asked by Committee Members in the run-up to meetings

2.2

Action from 4 June 2014: It was noted that there were still certain items
outstanding, but understood that these were in hand now that Michael
Hadjimichael had taken over as the Director of Resources.

3.

Strategic Risk Register review

3.1

Michael Hadjimichael presented the report and presentation, highlighting the fact
that the Risk Register and Heat Map had been simplified (without losing any
information). Committee agreed that the new-look Risk Register was a marked
improvement on the previous format. A ‘comments’ column had been added, as
had relevant dates (status column). All further actions were being worked on.

3.2

Two new items (7 & 8) had been added as a result of the 2015 budget. The
current mitigated score on these were currently high, owing to their newness, but
work was quickly being done to improve this. Further actions and assurances are
being examined and put together and the Risk Register would be updated as
these are finalised. Michael explained that CBC had formed a working group to
find the best way to make use of the HRA going forwards and has invited CBH to
participate. This would commence in the following week.

3.3

It was explained that the Salary Sacrifice scheme being worked on (listed under
item 6) would be overseen by the Governance and Remuneration Committee
under delegated powers from the Board.

302
3.4

Regarding our discussions with CBC (page 10, para 3.1), Michael described the
CBH position as wanting to protect the management fee as much as possible so
that the service provided to tenants does not suffer. Falling rents may result in
reduction of service levels. Indications are that CBC are keen to work with CBH
to ensure that services and investment commitments are not unduly affected
over the next year. Michael is preparing to potentially deliver a budget for
2016/17 with a 1% cut.

4.

CBH Construction Services Subsidiary Business

4.1

Michael presented this report, with contributions from Brian Richardson and Mark
Wright (presentation found in Appendix 1). He gave confirmation that when
CBC’s leadership were presented with the CBH plans, CBC gave backing for
extra trading to occur, but not through a subsidiary trading organization at this
point in time. Mark confirmed that this had now been put formally in writing by
CBC. Brian explained that CBC desired CBH to achieve a certain level of
increased business activities before they would allow a subsidiary trading body to
be set up. The task now was to find alternative ways to achieve the advantages
which would have been given by a subsidiary trading body.

4.2

Committee was briefed on:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

The Teckal limit and its implications for future trading
Cost-sharing models
Possible co-operation with Colne Housing
Revenue streams and start-up costs
Use of KPI monitoring to protect core business
How to hire commercial staff: front-load the process vs hiring as trading
increases and demand identified
Predicted ease of gaining property maintenance work
Predicted difficulties in gaining property management contracts from HAs
Potential to manage a £4m contract for the Mercury Theatre?
How profits would and could be used, e.g. for improving service provision
What percentage of profit would be claimed by CBC (unknown as yet)

4.3

Greg Falvey would be presenting this issue to the Board in September.
Committee was told that they must be satisfied by the governance arrangements
to be proposed over the additional trading activity before this goes ahead. The
Board must then be satisfied that strong governance is in place, that core
services are not being negatively affected and that CBC will be satisfied that our
staff are not being taken from core work in order to work on contracts outside of
our core business.

5.

CBH financial update (Q1 2015/16)

5.1

Michael Hadjimichael introduced the report and explained that the figures were
now being presented in a simplified fashion, including only items which affected
the CBH budget. Consolidating the financial position in this way allows DMT to
identify capacity to deliver additional projects and avoid having to use budgetary
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carry-forwards. Committee approved of the new format and its clarity.
5.2

It was agreed that an initial outturn position report would be presented to the next
F&A Committee. Action: Director of Resources to ensure that this report is
prepared.

5.3

Sarah Johnson presented the body of the report. She explained that the financial
profile would be modified to spread the effect of costs incurred once annually
(such as the payments for our Service-level Agreements) across the year. It is
hoped that this will be done before the next F&A Committee meeting.

5.4

The Committee was briefed on the following issues:
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

How money entering and leaving budgets is recorded
Prevention of underspends and ‘budget hoarding’
Promotion of best practice in controlling and using budgets
CBC’s HRA working group
Amalgamation of data from multiple appendices into Appendix C
The effect that timings of incoming and outgoing payments had on the
figures
Since the report was written, the majority of debt owed to CBC had now
been paid, leaving £131.6k outstanding.
CBH not using penalty clauses on payments made over the 30day limit

6.

Audit of Company Accounts

6.1

Tim O’Connor presented Scrutton Bland’s audit of CBH’ financial statements.

6.2

Tim explained the following items:
•
•
•
•

The effects of FRS17 adjustments on CBH’s accounts and that these
were only available after the audit had been conducted
The shift upwards in staff costs and downwards in operating charges
The £766 credit shown under tax for the year
That the Essex Local Government pension scheme was currently the 3rd
best performing in the UK.

6.3

The letter of representation (Appendix 2) is now to be signed by a member of the
Management Team, as well as a signatory on behalf of the Board. This is
considered to be best practice in the ‘not for profit’ sector.

6.4

Tim noted that the following amendments to the accounts have been made:
•
•
•

On page 59, in paragraph 8, ‘The company operates…’ has been
amended to ‘The company participates in…’
On page 61, point 4, the double underlining will be removed.
On page 69, the final bullet point, the words ‘County Council’ will be added
after the words ‘The Essex…’
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•

On page 62, in point 6, ‘The ‘Council’’ will have its apostrophes removed.

6.5

The Audit Report was confirmed as being a clean report.

6.6

The company’s deficit is improving. There has been an unexpected improvement
in performance of pension plan assets (a 6% growth had been expected, but
12% growth was experienced).

6.7

Regarding page 69, paragraph 2, Tim and Sarah explained that, whilst there had
been no back funding this year, CBC had committed to support CBH’s pension
contributions when necessary through the management fee.

6.8

Michael Hadjimichael notified the Committee that the presentation to CBC of the
Annual CBH Governance Statement (which was approved at the June’15
meeting) had been cancelled as there were currently no issues on it to address
which would require CBC’s sign-off.

6.9

Committee was reminded that it had been agreed that the Board Assurance
Officer would notify Members when the Accounts had been filed. Action: Board
Assurance Officer to ensure F&A Committee Members are notified of Annual
Accounts submission.

6.10 Committee accepted the External Audit of the CBH Accounts.
7.

Internal audit progress & follow up

7.1

Alan Woodhead the internal auditor’s Progress Report and Follow Up Report. He
confirmed that there were no outstanding recommendations to be implemented
and that all recommendations had been carried out before their due dates were
reached.

7.2

Responding to questioning about Capita Connect (pg 110), the Committee was
assured that there had been no migration of data over to Covalent as yet, so this
was not a problem.

8.

Internal Audit Charter

8.1

Committee accepted Mazars’ Internal Charter and Nigel Chapman agreed to sign
it in his capacity as Chair of the Committee.

9.

Annual Report from the Finance & Audit Committee

9.1

Committee approved the report to be given to the next Board Meeting on 15
September.

10.

Annual Fraud Report

10.1 Owen Howell confirmed that there had been no instances of Fraud recorded
during the past year.
10.2 Committee accepted the report.

305
11.

Governance Actions

11.1 Owen reported that he had submitted the Annual Return for CBH and that this
had been accepted by Companies House. The next Annual Return would be due
at this time next year.
11.2 It was confirmed that the first three items on the Policy Update list had been dealt
with, and that this was now noted in the comments section. They would be
removed prior to the next F&A Committee Meeting.
11.3 It was explained that the Board Member Expenses Scheme was due to be
examined and updated in 2016.
11.4 Regarding ‘Matters Arising,’ Owen confirmed that the Annual Governance
Statement had been brought fully up-to-date and amendments made as had
been previously accepted.
11.5 Regarding the work plan, Michael expressed concern that the process of
appointing Internal Auditors may not be completed by the December meeting,
and so the confirmation of the Internal Auditors should be pushed back to
March’s meeting of the F&A Committee. Action: Director of Resources to
confirm this and inform the Board Assurance Officer who will amend the work
plan accordingly.

With no further business, the meeting concluded at 16:38 pm.
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Board Forward Plan 2015
Date

Item

27 Oct 2015

AGM

Committee

Future Proofing Recommendations – Stage 1

Annual Resident Involvement Report
Appointment of Tenant Board Members
Appointment of Independent Board Member

9 Dec 2015

Housing Investment Programme 2016/17
Future Proofing Recommendations – Final Stage
Approve Committee Terms of Reference

ALL

Anti-Fraud & Corruption Procedure

F&A Oct 2015

Reports to be scheduled:
Trading Strategy Protocol and Business
Case: Six-month Review

Chief Executive

Trading Opportunities: Year One Review

BOP Chair

Mitigating the risks to CBH of increasing
Right to Buy completions

DMT

Allocations Policy (for consultation)

CBC

CBH Role in Phase 2 Development

Director of Property Services

Future Proofing project end report (April 2016) Chief Executive
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